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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS




April 18, 2005

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council:

It is my pleasure to present the City of San Antonio’s (City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. This report is published to provide the City Council, City staff, our
citizens, and other readers with detailed information concerning the financial position and activities of the City.

This document was prepared and is presented by the City’s Finance department. Accordingly, City management is
responsible for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures.

It should be noted that the public accounting firms KPMG LLP, Leal & Carter PC, and Robert J. Williams, CPA,
have audited the basic financial statements contained herein. As reflected in the independent auditors’ report, the
City’s financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The audit of the aforementioned independent auditors was also designed to meet the requirements of the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, and the State of Texas
Single Audit Circular. The Independent Auditors’ Report on the basic financial statements, MD&A (required
supplementary information), and required disclosures and schedules are included in the Financial Section of this
CAFR. Required reports and schedules mandated by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, OMB Circular A-
133, and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular are in separate documents.

THE REPORT
The CAFR is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical.

o The introductory section contains the transmittal letter, a copy of the Government Finance Officers
Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, the City’s
organizational chart, and a list of principal officials.

e The financial section includes the Independent Auditors’ Report, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), the basic financial statements, which consist of government-wide and fund
financial statements and notes to the financial statements, required supplementary information other
than MD&A, and other supplementary information.

» The statistical section consists of selected financial and demographic information presented on a
multi-year basis.

® As noted above, included in the Financial Section of the CAFR is the MD&A, which presents a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. This transmittal
letter complements the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of San
Antonio’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND CITY SERVICES

The City of San Antonio is a home rule city that was incorporated in 1837 and chartered in 1951. It is structured as
a Council-Manager form of government with a Mayor and ten Council Members each serving two-year terms,
limited to two consecutive terms. San Antonio is located in South Central Texas, approximately seventy-five miles
south of the state capital of Austin and serves as the county seat for Bexar County. San Antonians enjoy first-rate
medical services, a convenient and efficient airport, an excellent highway system, mild weather, and superb
recreation choices, including championship golf courses, theme parks, historical attractions, museums, professional
sporting attractions and a lively performing arts environment.

As of September 30, 2004, the City’s geographic area was approximately 512.2284 square miles making it one of
the largest cities in the United States. The United States Census Bureau cites the City as the second most populated
city in the state of Texas and eighth most populated city in the country. The estimated population grew from
1,262,800 in fiscal year 2003 to 1,278,300 in fiscal year 2004, an increase of 1.23%.

Below are further details regarding the City as a reporting entity and public service provider.
Reporting Entity

Pursuant to the reporting standards contained in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
14, “The Financial Reporting Entity", as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, “Determining Whether Certain
Organizations Are Component Units - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14”, other related entities are
included in the CAFR as blended or discretely presented component units. Blended component units are those
entities that are considered as part of the City’s operations but are legally separate entities. Those entities are the
City of San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation, the City of San Antonio Industrial Development
Authority, the San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund, the San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care
Fund, the City of San Antonio Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation, and the City of San Antonio Texas
Starbright Industrial Development Corporation.

Entities that require discrete presentation are the San Antonio Development Agency (SADA), the City of San
Antonio Education Facilities Corporation (SAEFC), the Greater Kelly Development Authority (GKDA), the San
Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc. (SAHTF), the San Antonio Local Development Company, Inc. dba South
Texas Business Fund (SALDC), Brooks Development Authority (BDA), San Antonio Water System (SAWS) and
City Public Service (CPS). SAWS and CPS are independently managed, municipally owned utility systems that
operate under quasi-independent boards of trustees. For additional details on each of these entities and the basis for
their respective presentation in our financial report, please refer to the Financial Section, Note No. 1, entitled
“Reporting Entity”.

Services

The City provides a vast array of municipal services. These services include but are not limited to fire and police
protection, street and sidewalk maintenance, libraries, parks, water and electric services, and solid waste disposal.
In addition, the City maintains preventive health services, and facilitates economic and neighborhood development.
These services are funded from various sources, which include ad valorem taxes, hotel/motel taxes, sales taxes,
grants, user fees, revenues from municipally owned utilities, and bond proceeds.

City services are augmented through non-City agencies and local foundations such as SADA, SAEFC, SAHTF, and
SALDC.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

As a community, San Antonio has positioned itself for long-term growth and prosperity by successfully following a
strategy to diversify its economy and improve quality-of-life for all citizens. City government has played an
integral part by implementing “A Strategic Plan for Enhanced Economic Development” through the collaborative
efforts of San Antonio, Inc., a group of economic development organizations within San Antonio.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

The City’s economic plan involves further development of San Antonio’s major industries, which include
biomedical research and health services, international trade and distribution, information technology and security,
telecommunications, aerospace, tourism, financial services, automotive manufacturing and the military. Untapped
economic opportunities are also a part of the City’s economic development plan.

The City is also undertaking on-going infrastructure improvements, neighborhood revitalization, and workforce
development initiatives, as well as providing assistance and attraction programs that are geared to businesses of all
sizes. Both government and citizens are working toward increasing the caliber of educational and economic
opportunities, expanding arts and leisure choices, revitalizing older neighborhoods, and planning for overall growth
in San Antonio.

The North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA) has enabled the City to capitalize on international trade
opportunities by becoming a distribution point and center for companies doing business in Mexico. San Antonio is
the closest major U.S. city to Mexico’s biggest markets and enjoys close cultural and business ties to that nation.

Following are additional details that provide a more in-depth look at the business climate and local economy for the
City of San Antonio.

Business Climate and [.ocal Economy

San Antonio’s healthy economy and positive business climate are enhanced by elements key to continued economic
growth, such as an advanced telecommunications system, significant recent accomplishments in the area of higher
education, and strong workforce development programs. Also enhancing San Antonio’s business appeal is the high
quality-of-life the City offers and a cost-of-living that is well below the national average. Below is a brief
discussion on the City’s local economic development activities that will help to ensure its economic sustainability
and viability.

KellyUSA
At KellyUSA, a former U.S. Air Force Base, GKDA is transforming the base into a multi-use airport and rail-served

business park. As of December 2004, there were 70 tenants (commercial companies and federal agencies)
employing over 12,171 people with an average salary of $38,000 and a total economic impact of $2.5 billion per
year. Major commercial employers at KellyUSA include Boeing, Lockheed Martin, General Electric, Standard
Aero, Pratt & Whitney, Chromalloy, and EG&G.

With 96 percent of the marketable 8.6 million square feet leased, GKDA is now focused on development of new
Class A facilities leveraging public and private investment to create more jobs for San Antonio. GKDA has begun
Phase II development at KellyUSA to construct another 514,400 square feet of new facilities to accommodate
market demand over the next one to three years. This growth is projected to increase the economic impact on San
Antonio to over $4.3 billion per year. GKDA is also planning in Phase II to generate some $364 million in
investment capital by leveraging City, State, Federal and GKDA funding. Phase II includes key transportation
infrastructure projects that will facilitate the development of several facility projects that allow KellyUSA to
respond to market demand opportunities. These projects are expected to create employment for an additional 6,400
employees at KellyUSA.

Brooks City-Base

Brooks City-Base is a collaborative effort between the Air Force and the City designed to retain the Air Force
missions and jobs at Brooks AFB, improve Air Force mission effectiveness, assist the Air Force in reducing its
support operating costs, and promote and enhance economic development on Brooks AFB and in the surrounding
community. Both the City and the Air Force are partnering to utilize City incentives and existing Brooks AFB
resources to create the Brooks Technology & Business Park, a facility that will foster the development of key
targeted industry sectors, such as health services and biotechnology. Brooks Technology & Business Park was
officially established on July 22, 2002, with the transfer of the 1,310 acres of land and improvements.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Brooks City-Base (Continued)

The City and County are also planning to construct a $24.5 million new Emergency Operations Center at Brooks.
Additionally, BDA also recently completed the sale of 62 acres for a major commercial retail development at the
northeast end of the park called City-Base Landing. This $50 million investment will bring 500 new jobs to the
Southside. The BDA is contracting with Grubb & Ellis, a national real estate developer and property management
firm, to manage Brooks Technology & Business Park facilities.

Fort Sam Houston

Fort Sam Houston has also initiated leasing activities to reduce infrastructure costs and pursue asset management
opportunities using military facilities. In April 2000, the United States Army (the “Army”) entered into a
partnership with the private organization, Fort Sam Houston Redevelopment Partners, Ltd. (FSHRP), for the
redevelopment of the former Brooke Army Medical Center (BAMC) and two other buildings at Fort Sam Houston.
These three buildings, totaling about 500,000 square feet in space and located in a designated historic district, have
been vacant for some time and are presently in a deteriorating condition. On June 21, 2001, FSHRP signed a 50-
year lease with the Army to redevelop and lease these three properties to commercial tenants. In September 2003,
the Army relocated U.S. Army South from Puerto Rico to Fort Sam Houston, bringing approximately 500 new jobs
to San Antonio with an annual economic impact of approximately $200 million. To facilitate this relocation, the
Army negotiated a lease with the FSHRP to locate U.S. Army South and the Southwest Region Installation
Management Agency in the old BAMC.

The continued success of this unique public-private partnership at Fort Sam Houston is critical to assisting the Army
in reducing infrastructure support costs, preserving historical assets, promoting economic development
opportunities, and generating net cash flow for both the Army and FSHRP. This project supports the City’s
economic development strategy to promote development in targeted areas of the City, leverage military installation
economic assets to create jobs, and assist our military installations in reducing base support operating costs. The
Army intends to extend the public-private partnership initiative to include other properties at Fort Sam Houston
currently available for redevelopment.

Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC 2005

In 2005, another round of military base realignment and closures BRAC is scheduled. The community has been
proactive in strengthening the value of its military installations through unique initiatives like the Brooks City-Base
project and the Fort Sam leasing project. To prepare for BRAC 2005, the City of San Antonio in partnership with
the Greater San Antonio Chamber of Commerce and Bexar County, has established the San Antonio Military
Missions (SAMM) Task Force. In November 2003, the SAMM Task Force hired an Executive Director and staff
to begin developing and implementing a strategy for BRAC 2005 focused on promoting the military value of the
community’s military assets.

San Antonio Technology Accelerator Initiative (SATAI)

SATALI is a targeted economic development initiative focused on developing an advanced technology economy in
the San Antonio region. SATAI’s mission is to accelerate the regional technological economy through providing
hands-on development of advanced technology start-up companies and assisting established companies in accessing
tech-based solutions through Enterprise Services. One of the largest SATAI projects is the coordination of several
homeland security initiatives through its leadership of the Southwest Enterprise for Regional Preparedness.
SATATD’s efforts in this area will lead to several state of the art technologies that will be commercialized through
new start-up technology companies.

SATALI has been very successful in becoming a key component in the development of San Antonio’s advanced
technology economy. For example, SATAI helps companies pursuing venture capital funding prepare for venture
capitalist presentations. Statistics indicate that companies completing this preparation program have a 50% chance
of receiving funding. Conversely, companies that do not complete this program have a 1-5% chance of receiving
funding from venture capitalists. SATAI has also been very successful in attracting the interest of venture capital
firms throughout the country to participate in the San Antonio investment market. This has filled a huge void in the
community’s efforts to develop the advanced technology economy.



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Aerospace Industry Development

The aerospace industry’s annual economic impact to the City is about $2.9 billion. This industry provides over
8,283 jobs, with employees earning annual wages totaling over $320 million. The aerospace industry continues to
expand as the City leverages its key aerospace assets, which include San Antonio International Airport, Stinson
Municipal Airport, KellyUSA, Randolph AFB, Lackland AFB, and training institutions. Many of the major
aerospace industry participants have significant operations in San Antonio, such as Boeing, Lockheed Martin,
General Electric, Pratt & Whitney, Raytheon, Cessna, San Antonio Aerospace - a division of Singapore
Technologies, Southwest Airlines, American Airlines, Delta, Continental, FEDEX, UPS, and others. The industry
in San Antonio is very diversified with continued growth in air passenger service, air cargo, maintenance repair and
overhaul (MRO), and general aviation.

San Antonio International Airport (SAT) has added three new non-stop passenger routes in the past 12 months and
currently has flights to 28 non-stop destinations, with seasonal charter service to Mexico available during the spring
and summer. SAT is currently developing construction plans for a new Terminal B and Parking Garage, with
ground breaking expected respectively in the spring and summer of 2005. SAT is also in the process of an
Environmental Impact Statement for implementation of proposed airfield capacity enhancement projects
recommended in the Airport Master Plan.

Stinson Municipal Airport is at 100% occupancy rate and has a tenant waiting list for facilities. A Stinson Master
Plan was approved by the City Council in October 2002. Implementation of the Master Plan recommendations is
currently in process pending the successful completion of an Environmental Assessment for certain airfield
improvements.

At KellyUSA, the MRO business is strong as tenants such as Boeing and Lockheed Martin continue to secure long-
term government contracts. KellyUSA is also working to add air cargo activity as recommended by an Air Cargo
Study and Strategic Plan completed in June 2002. This study also provided San Antonio International Airport with
an Air Cargo Strategic Plan that includes recommendations on expanding the existing integrator service primarily
provided by UPS, FedEx, and Airborne Express.

Brooks Air Force Base 311" Human Systems Wing’s School of Aerospace Medicine, long active in research and
development related to aviation and human systems, conducts research related to human effectiveness in aviation
and is opening a new aircraft sustainability laboratory that will conduct research and development applicable to
commercial aviation.

New Business Prospects

As of the third quarter of 2004, the San Antonio Economic Development Foundation, Inc., reported to the City’s
Economic Development department that it had 107 active business prospects. The new businesses are categorized as
business services, transportation equipment, miscellaneous manufacturing, fabricated metal products, food products,
and others.

Downtown Development Projects

During 2004, a new 265 all-suites hotel, La Contessa, began construction. A proposal by Drury Inns Southwest,
Inc. to redevelop the historic Alamo Bank Building into a Drury Plaza Hotel utilitizing Empowerment Zone facility
bonds to partially fund the project has had a positive reception by the City Council. Included in that project is a
$1.5 million extension of the Riverwalk at the developer’s expense. Construction continued on the 350-room La
Quinta Inn & Suites hotel project, which will reshape the downtown skyline. The City also continued its efforts to
facilitate the development of a convention headquarters hotel adjacent to the recently enlarged Henry B. Gonzalez
Convention Center. The Convention Center Hotel Advisory Board (CCHAB) commissioned a study to recommend
financing and development options for this 1000-room hotel. Additionally, La Cascada, a 150-unit condominium
project along the San Antonio River is the first high-rise project in the downtown. Sales of housing units have been
brisk in anticipation of this project’s completion.
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

International Trade
The Directory of San Antonio Exporters and Support Organizations has identified over 500 local companies that

export to other nations or provide export assistance.

During FY 03-04 the International Affairs Department worked with 73 international delegations that included 1,578
delegates that visited San Antonio. The department also assisted more than 600 business clients that generated over
$27 million in bilateral trade between San Antonio and Mexico for the last 2 years.

As of December 31, 2004 the North American Development Bank (NADB) had authorized loans and grants totaling
approximately $695.8 million for the development and financing of 84 infrastructure projects throughout the 10
states that compromise the U.S.-Mexico border region. These projects represent a total investment of
approximately $2.33 billion, and are benefiting an estimated 7.8 million border residents in the United States and
Mexico.

The NADB has been the catalyst to significant and unprecedented levels of investment in environmental
infrastructure along the U.S. Mexico border. NADB participation represents about 30% of the total investment in
these projects. Of these, 20 have completed, 52 are currently under construction or in various states of completion
and 12 are in the design or bidding stage. In the area of local capacity building, the NADB to date has authorized
technical assistance for 163 projects in 77 communities on both sides of the border.

As of the fourth quarter of 2004, the Free Trade Alliance San Antonio through its International Business
Development Center, an incubator program for foreign companies, has nine companies enrolled with an economic
impact of over $1.5 million for the year.

International Outlook

After five years, the City’s International Affairs Department continues to develop an Export Leaders Program that
focuses on small to medium size San Antonio companies with a high potential and strong commitment to develop
and expand international markets. The San Antonio Export Leaders Program is a competitive eight-month program
that offers the tools, training, consultation and coaching necessary for about fifteen companies to be successful in
exporting and offers the participants a new export experience. In five years, the program has graduated 57
companies and generated $5.4 million in trade in 2003.

San Antonio continues to develop itself as an INLAND PORT for imports and exports to/from Mexico, Latin
America and other regions of the world. This encompasses transportation, manufacturing, and logistics facilities,
professional services and value-added services involved in producing, marketing and moving freight within, into
and out of the San Antonio area. Over the past twelve years, the City has operated three commercial trade offices in
Mexico’s three largest cities: Mexico City, Guadalajara, and Monterrey.

The City’s commitment to international trade is evidenced in the City’s International Center which houses the North
American Development Bank, International Conference Center, the Trade Commission of Mexico, Mexican State
Trade Offices, the Free Trade Alliance San Antonio, the U.S. Department of Commerce, the City’s International
Affairs Department and the Convention & Visitors Bureau.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting system and budgetary control

The City’s accounting system supports an adequate internal control structure. The structure helps to safeguard the
City’s assets against loss, theft, or misuse. The accounting system provides reliable financial records for preparing
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure
provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the City’s assets are safeguarded. The concept of reasonable
assurance first recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. Secondarily,
the evaluation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.
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Accounting System and Budgetary Control (Continued)

Budgetary compliance is a significant tool for managing and controlling governmental activities, as well as ensuring
conformance with the City’s budgetary limits and specifications. The objective of budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by City Council. Levels of
budgetary control, that is the levels at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriated amounts, are
established by function and activity within individual funds. The City utilizes an encumbrance system of
accounting as one mechanism to accomplish effective budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end,
however, encumbrances generally are appropriated as part of the following year’s budget. For the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2003, the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”)
presented an award of Distinguished Budget Presentation to the City.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules in the Financial Section of this report, the City continues to meet
its responsibility for sound financial management. As in the Financial Section, all monetary amounts presented in
the remainder of this letter are expressed in thousands, except where noted.

Fiscal Management and Administrative Topics

Pension and Postemployment Retirement Benefits

The City provides pension retirement benefits for its eligible employees through two plans. For uniformed Fire and
Police employees, retirement benefits are provided through the Fire and Police Pension Fund, a single-employer
defined benefit retirement plan. Contribution and benefit levels are established under State statute. For fiscal year
2004, active members contributed 12.32% of covered payroll, or $24.13 million and the City contributed 24.64%, or
$48.04 million.

The City provides all other eligible employees, exclusive of fire and police employees, retirement benefits through
the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), a nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan.
TMRS is a statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. Contributions to the system are
actuarially determined. The required contribution from City employees is 6%, while the City matches at a rate of
approximately 11.63%. Both the City and its covered employees made the required contributions of $23.06 million
and $11.95 million, respectively. For additional information on the City’s pension plans, see Note 8 in the notes to
the financial statements.

With respect to post-employment health benefits, the City provides benefits for all non-uniformed City retirees and
for all pre-October 1, 1989 uniformed fire and police retirees. The cost of the program is reviewed annually and
actuarially determined costs of medical claims are funded jointly on a pay-as-you-go basis with the City
contributing 2/3 and the retirees contributing 1/3 of the cost. As of September 30, 2004, 1,512 retirees were
participating in the program and currently there are 6,067 active civilian employees who may become eligible for
this program in the future.

The second post-employment health benefit program provides retirement health care benefits for eligible fire and
police retirees under the Fire and Police Retiree Healthcare Fund (“Fund”). Contribution and benefits levels are
established under the City’s collective bargaining agreements with the Fire and Police Unions. The benefits of this
plan are financed on a prefunded basis. For fiscal year 2004, the City contributed $16.56 million to the Fund and
active employees and retirees contributed $2.5 million. Recent actuarial studies have resulted in different results
and indicate that the current contribution levels are not sufficient to amortize the unfunded liability of the Fund.
The City continues to review the Fund in order to develop a comprehensive framework for a long-term solution.
For additional information on City’s post-employment health benefits, please see Note 9, of the notes to the
financial statements.
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Fiscal Management and Administrative Topics (Continued)

Employee Benefits Program

The City’s Self-Insurance Fund continues to experience increased expenses due to rising health care costs, increased
prescription drug costs, increased claims volume and changing employee demographics. The City continues to
focus on cost containment programs such as: hospital audits, hospital pre-certification, utilization review, large case
management, prescription benefit management, and a preferred provider organization to assist in managing the
rising cost of medical care. Such strategies have been effective for the City in managing medical costs in a
changing health care industry.

In addition to continuing enhancement of these cost containment programs, the City will seek the services of an
outside consultant in 2005 to perform a comprehensive review of the Employee Benefits Programs. To maximize
efficiency and ensure competitive medical pricing in the plan, a combined Health and Benefits Request for Proposal
(RFP) was released in March of 2004 to consolidate plan administration and improve provider discounts. The total
cost savings projected for fiscal year 2005, as a result of the new contract, program changes and increased
premiums, is estimated at $8.1 million. In fiscal year 2004, the Employee Benefits Fund had cash and investments
in reserve totaling $126,683 and a negative net assets balance of $31.75 million. For additional information on the
City’s risk and employee benefit programs, please see Note 12, of the notes to the financial statements.

Risk Management Programs

For the seventh time in thirteen years, the Insurance Reserve Fund maintained a positive net assets balance of $4.56
million for the fiscal year 2004. The Workers’ Compensation Fund reflected a negative net assets balance of $6.59
million for the fiscal year 2004. The Insurance Reserve and Workers’ Compensation Funds carried cash and
investments in reserve at September 30, 2004 in the amount of $11.62 million and $4.06 million, respectively.

The Risk Management Division Safety Office has continued aggressive efforts this year to promote Accident
Prevention/Loss Control projects. This year 2,347 employees received formal classroom training on a number of
subjects, totaling 18,776 classroom hours collectively. Training classes include Defensive Driving, First Aid and
CPR, Drug and Alcohol Awareness training for commercial drivers and supervisors, New Employee Safety
Orientations, Professional Truck Driving, Supervisor’s Accident Investigation training, Hazardous Chemicals
training, Ergonomics Awareness, and other specialized training courses.

In addition, the Safety Office continues to improve the quality of safety and health education to serve the needs of
all City employees by developing customized training programs and updating training materials and/or training
methods. The Safety Office has also provided departments 2,946 hours of technical assistance and one-on-one
informal training on a variety of safety and health topics in fiscal year 2004.

Cash and Investment Management

The City’s investment policies are governed by state statute and the City’s own written investment policies. Under
Texas law, the City is required to invest its funds under written investment policies that primarily emphasize safety
of principal and liquidity; investment diversification, yield, maturity, and the quality and capability of investment
management; and include a list of authorized investments for City funds, maximum allowable stated maturity of any
individual investment, and the maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed for pooled fund groups. All
City funds must be invested consistent with a formally adopted “investment strategy statement” that specifically
addresses each fund’s investment. Each investment strategy statement will describe strategy objectives concerning:
(1) suitability of investment type, (2) preservation and safety of principal, (3) liquidity, (4) marketability of each
investment, (5) diversification of the portfolio, and (6) yield.

The City is authorized to use demand accounts, time accounts, certificates of deposit, and other permissible
investments including Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, Obligations of States and Cities,
Commercial Paper, Repurchase Agreements, Money Market Funds, and Investment Pools. The City’s investment
portfolio does not include callable obligations or any derivative products. It is not the City’s policy to use
derivative products in its portfolio, nor does the City leverage its investments.
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Fiscal Management and Administrative Topics (Continued)

Cash and Investment Management (Continued)

At September 30, 2004, City investment funds were 87.41% invested in obligations of the United States, or its
agencies and instrumentalities, and 11.38% invested in a money market mutual fund, with the weighted average
maturity of the portfolio being less than one year. The remaining 1.21% of the City’s portfolio includes the
Convention Center Debt Service Reserve Fund of $8.5 million, which was invested in a fully collateralized
repurchase agreement that is fully secured by obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities.
The investments and maturity terms are consistent with State law, and the City’s investment policy objectives,
which are to preserve principal, limit risk, maintain diversification and liquidity, and to maximize interest earnings.
For additional information on Cash and Investments, please see Note 3 of the notes to the financial statements.

Debt Administration

The City utilizes a comprehensive debt management financial planning program (The Debt Management Plan),
which is updated annually. The Debt Management Plan is a major component of the City’s financial planning. The
model projects financing needs while measuring and assessing the cost and timing of each debt issuance. It involves
comprehensive financial analysis which utilizes computer modeling, and incorporates variables such as interest rate
sensitivity, assessed values changes, annexations, and current ad valorem tax collection rates. Use of this financial
management tool has assisted the City in meeting its financing needs by facilitating timely and thorough planning
which has allowed the City to capitalize on market opportunities.

Strict adherence to conservative financial management has allowed the City to meet its financing needs while at the
same time maintaining its “Aa2”, “AA+” and “AA+” bond rating by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”),
Standard & Poor’s Public Ratings Services, a division of McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”), and Fitch Ratings
(“Fitch”) respectively. The positive trend in the City’s credit strength is evidenced by S&P’s rating upgrade in
December 1998 from “AA” to its current “AA+" and Fitch’s rating upgrade in October 1999 from “AA” to “AA+”.
For additional information on the City’s long-term debt, please see Note 6 of the notes to the financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

State statutes require that an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant be conducted. The City’s
Audit Committee selected the accounting firms KPMG LLP, Leal & Carter PC, and Robert J. Williams, CPA in
2002. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the
requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, OMB Circular A-133, and the State of Texas Single
Audit Circular. The Independent Auditors’ Report on the basic financial statements, management’s discussion and
analysis (required supplementary information), required disclosures and schedules is included in the Financial
Section of this CAFR. The Independent Auditors’ Report along with other required reports and schedules mandated
by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, OMB Circular A-133, and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular
are in separate documents.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2003. This was the 28" consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.



OTHER INFORMATION

Awards (Continued)

The City of San Antonio Planning Department was recognized by the Texas Chapter of the American Planning
Association (APA) with two (2) 2003 Texas APA Planning Awards. The Department received the 2003 Project
Planning Award for the Southside Initiative Community Plan. In addition, the Neighborhood Conservation District
program was honored with the 2003 Current Planning Award.

The preparation of the City of San Antonio, Texas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2004, was made possible by the dedication and hard work of the Finance Department,
particularly the staff of the Accounting Division. Each member of the Department has my sincere appreciation for
their contributions to the preparation of this document. In closing, please accept my sincere gratitude to the Mayor
and City Council, City Manager, Deputy City Manager, Assistant City Managers, Assistants to the City Manager,
and their staff, for their continued support.

Respectfully Submitted,

Milo D. Nitschke
Director
Finance Department
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LEAL & CARTER, P.C.
RJW CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
11122 Wurzbach Rd. / Suite 200

San Antonio, Texas 78230-2573

hcpnic

300 Convent, Suite 1200

San Antonio, TX 78205 Robert J. Williams

Certified Public Accountant
P.O. Box 34058
San Antonio, TX 78265-4058

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of City Council
City of San Antonio, Texas:

We have jointly audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Antonio, Texas, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the City of San Antonio, Texas’ basic financial
statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents under “Basic Financial Statements.” These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City of San Antonio, Texas’ management. QOur
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly
audit the financial statements of certain discretely presented component units and blended component units
included in the governmental and fiduciary funds of the City of San Antonio, Texas, which represent the
indicated percent of total assets and total revenues as presented in the table below. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors, including KPMG LLP, Robert J. Williams, CPA, and Leal &
Carter, P.C., acting separately, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar
as they relate to the amounts included for those component units, are based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

Percent not jointly audited

Total assets Total revenue
Government-wide
Governmental activities 0% 0%
Business-type activities 0% 0%
Discretely presented component units 100% 100%
Fund statements
Major funds 0% 0%
Aggregate remaining fund information 75% 32%
Percent audited by Percent audited by Percent audited by
KPMG separately Leal & Carter separately Robert J. Williams separately

Total assets Total revenue Total assets Total revenue Total assets Total revenue

Govemnment-wide

Discretely presented compenent

units 72% 82% 1% 1% 72% 82%
Fund statements
Aggregate remaining fund
information 0% 0% 6% 4% 0% 0%

KPMG LLP. KPRAG LLE a U.S. limited liability partnership, is
a member of KPMG Imtarnational, 3 Swiss cooperative.



We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Antonio, Texas, as of September 30,
2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages | through 12, the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
on page 119, and Schedules of Funding Progress on page 120 are not required parts of the basic financial
statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We, and the other auditors, have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we, and the other auditors, did not audit this
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of San Antonio, Texas’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, the
combining financial statements, schedules and other supplementary information, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.
The combining financial statements and schedules and other supplementary information have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPMG LUP bt fdlloms P Fouk § Corllin, .

April 1, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of San Antonio (City) presents the following discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. This discussion and analysis is intended to assist readers in
focusing on significant financial issues and changes in the City’s financial position, and identifying any
significant variances from the adopted budget. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal and the financial
statements provided in this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $2,535,564 (net assets). Of this amount, $105,630
(unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

e As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $536,728, an increase of $10,478 compared to the fiscal year 2003 fund balance. The total
unreserved fund balance of $317,992 is available for spending at the government’s discretion. Of this
amount, $39,620 designated and $278,372 is undesignated fund balance.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $90,410 or 16.9%
of the total General Fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as the introduction of the City of San Antonio’s basic financial
statements which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business financial presentation.

The statement of net assets is a presentation of the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital and infrastructure
assets, and long-term liabilities. This statement reports the difference between assets and liabilities as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information regarding increases and decreases to the government’s net assets
for the fiscal year. Changes in net assets are recorded when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs
regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some
items will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
leave). Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees or charges (business-type activities).
Governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, sanitation, health services,
environmental protection and control, culture and recreation, convention and tourism, conservation, urban
redevelopment and housing, welfare and economic development opportunity. The business-type activities of the
City include the airport system, parking system, and environmental services.

In addition, the basic financial statements provide information regarding the City’s legally separate discretely
presented component units. Component unit financial information is reported separately from the primary
government in the government-wide financial statements.
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Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Fund financial statements are used to present financial information detailing resources that have been identified
for specific activities. The focus of the fund financial statements is on the City’s major funds, although non-major
funds are also presented in aggregate and further detailed in the supplementary statements. The City uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with requirements placed on resources. Funds are divided into
three types: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Fund financial statements allow the City to present
information regarding fiduciary funds, since they are not reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used for essentially the same functions reported in the
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
statement, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

As the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented in the governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental fund and governmental activities.

The City of San Antonio maintains five individual governmental funds for financial reporting purposes.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the debt service fund,
both of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each non-major governmental fund is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. FEnterprise funds are used to report the
functions presented in business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its airport, parking and environmental services funds. [Internal service funds are
used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions, including, self-insurance
programs, other internal services and information technology services. The services provided by these funds
predominantly support the governmental rather than the business-type functions. They have been included within
the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements that are reported alongside the business
activities.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide separate and more detailed information for the airport, parking, and
environmental services funds. The airport and parking funds are considered major funds of the City while
internal service funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
primary government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements as the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s programs and operations. The accounting for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for the proprietary funds.
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Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information on the City’s General Fund budget, which is adopted on an
annual basis, and schedules of funding progress related to pension and retirement plans. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for this fund in order to demonstrate budgetary compliance with this budget.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements- and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and
Local Governments, requires that the City provide a comparative analysis of government-wide data. Below is a
comparative summary of the governmental activities and business-type activities as required by GASB Statement
No. 34:

City of San Antonio, Texas
Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2003)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Current and other assets $ 708,633 $ 731,143 $ 202,559 $ 206,703 § 911,192 $ 937,846
Capital Assets 3,047,629 3,001,042 296,394 294,308 3,344,023 3,295,350
Total Assets 3,756,262 3,732,185 498,953 501,011 4,255,215 4,233,196
Current and other liabilities 135,687 146,728 11,900 13,440 147,587 160,168
Long-term liabilities 1,312,631 1,287,466 259,433 266,780 1,572,064 1,554,246
Total Liabilities 1,448,318 1,434,194 271,333 280,220 1,719,651 1,714,414
Net Assets
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt 2,118,418 2,079,719 197,929 156,567 2,316,347 2,236,286
Restricted 89,867 92,524 23,720 56,489 113,587 149,013
Unrestricted 99,659 125,748 5,971 7,735 105,630 133,483
Total Net Assets $ 2,307,944 $ 2,297,991 $ 227,620 $ 220,791 $ 2,535,564 $ 2,518,782

For the year ended September 30, 2004, total assets exceeded liabilities by $2,535,564. The largest portion of the
City’s net assets, $2,316,347 (91.4%) represents its investment in capital assets less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding, and includes assets such as land, infrastructure, improvements,
buildings, machinery and equipment.

Capital assets are used to provide services to the citizens of San Antonio and are not available for further
spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to
repay the debt must be provided from other sources, as capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Of the total net assets, $113,587 (4.5%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The remaining $105,630 (4.1%) represents unrestricted net assets, which can be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.




Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Revenues from Utilities
Investment Eamnings
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments
Miscellaneous
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Capital Contributions

Total Revenues

Expenses:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Sanitation

Health Services

Environmental Protection and Control

Culture and Recreation

Convention and Tourism

Urban Redevelopment and Housing

Welfare

Economic Development Opportunity
Commercial Paper Fees
Interest on Long-term Debt

Business-type Activities:

Airport

Parking Facilities

Environmental Services
Total Expenses
Increase in Net Assets before transfers
Transfers

Net Increase in Net Assets

Beginning Net Assets

Ending Net Assets

City of San Antonio, Texas
Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended September 30, 2004
(With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2003)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

$ 133,709  § 136,118  § 103,739 § 100,998 237448  $ 237,116

168,120 190,746 168,120 190,746

16,614 51,189 27 3,865 16,641 55,054

257,514 236,947 257,514 236,947

238,700 232,009 238,700 232,009

196,793 210,854 196,793 210,854

7,189 8,556 2,046 2,557 9,235 11,113

(0) ©) (26)

28,542 (1,639) 10,378 9,406 38,920 7,767

611 542 39 611 581

1,585 1,115 1,585 1,115

$ 1,049377  $ 1066417  § 116,190  § 116,859 1,165,567  § 1,183,276

63,610 67,034 63,610 67,034

428,607 378,316 428,607 378,316

116,629 128,374 116,629 128,374

2,787 7,102 2,787 7,102

82,233 84,239 82,233 84,239

36 298 36 298

80,051 77,434 80,051 77,434

50,100 51,141 50,100 51,141

23,981 28,653 23,981 28,653

116,701 133,455 116,701 133,455

21,277 19,847 21,277 19,847

84 &4

55,855 54,490 55,855 54,490

49,427 45,164 49,427 45,164

6,264 7,523 6,264 7,523

51,227 48,252 51,227 48,252

1,041,867 1,030,467 106,918 100,939 1,148,785 1,131,406

7,510 35,950 9272 15,920 16,782 51,870
2,443 5,488 (2,443) (5,488)

9,953 41,438 6,829 10,432 16,782 51,870

2,297,991 2,256,553 220,791 210,359 2,518,782 2,466,912

$ 2307944 $ 2297,91  § 227620  $ 220,791 2535564 § 2,518,782




Governmental Activities

The City’s total revenues were $1,165,567 for fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. Revenues from
governmental activities totaled $1,049,377 and revenues from business-type activities totaled $116,190. General
revenues represented 63.8% of the City’s total revenue, while program revenues provided 36.2% of revenue
received in fiscal year 2004.

Expenses for the City totaled $1,148,785. Governmental activity expenses totaled $1,041,867, or 90.7% of total
expenses.

Expenses and Revenues-Governmental Activities
OExpenses
ERevenues
- : EL_,_‘:h_,_‘:L_,_EI—_,_z__,_I:. : |
N <
OOA\ %,‘;\éd $0&6 S 2 0\\0(\ 0{\%@ 0\)5;,\&’ e{@@ R < e\e? Oo\(\@
& © © e & <° S N o ©
O N F & &
Q\Ql \§\\>\ 00 ) Q/Q
@)
Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
O03%
0,
W 1% B13% OCharges For Services
O019% B Operating Grants and Contributions
O Capital Grants and Contributions
W 16% OProperty Taxes
B Other Taxes
ORevenues from Utilities
02% B Investment Earnings
m22% O Other
024%

Revenues exceeded expenses by $16,782. General revenues increased over fiscal year 2003 by $42,488, which
was partially attributed to an in increase in Property Taxes by $20,567 and an increase in Miscellaneous Revenues
by $31,153. The City collected more in Property Taxes in fiscal year 2004 because the overall estimated
appraised value of properties increased over the prior year, thereby increasing revenues.

Expenses increased slightly over prior year amounts. Public Safety spending increased by 13.3%, which was due
to an increase in salaries and depreciation expense for the City’s radio system tower and equipment, most of
which was placed into service during fiscal year 2004. Welfare expenses decreased by 14.4% as a result of
increased expenses from the prior year for the Child Care Delivery System federal grant received in fiscal year
2003, but not in 2004. Public Works expenses also decreased by 10.1%, which was mostly attributable to a
decrease of project related expenses in the Categorical Grant-In Aid fund from fiscal year 2003.
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Business-type Activities/Proprietary Funds

Program revenues for the City’s business-type activities totaled $103,766, which is $1,097 lower than the
previous fiscal year. Expenses for business-type activities were $106,918 compared to prior years expenses of
$100,939. The current year’s increase in expenses is attributed to increased expenses incurred in the Airport and
Environmental Services funds over the prior year. The remaining revenue was a result of interest and other
miscellaneous items.

Expenses and Revenues Business-type Activities
$60,000
$50,000 -
$40,000
$30.000 | OExpenses
' ERevenues
$20,000
$_
Airport System Parking Facilities Environmental Services
Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
O011%
H2% O Charges For Services
H Investment Earnings
OOther
O87%

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds

Activities of the Primary Government’s General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds are
considered general government functions. The General Fund is the City’s general operating fund. Special
Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted as to
expenditure. The Debt Service Funds are used to account for financial activity related to the City’s general bonded
indebtedness, as well as other long-term obligations.

Revenues from taxes increased by $27,258 which was primarily attributable to: (1) a $13,173 or 8.8% increase in
property tax revenue in the General Fund, (2) an $9,856 or 6.9% increase in sales tax revenue in the General
Fund, and (3) a $5,345 or 5.2% increase in property tax revenue for the Debt Service Fund as a result of increased
property valuation, new construction, and annexation. Revenues for the utilities category, which is represented in
the City’s General Fund decreased by $14,061 or 6.7%. This is primarily attributed to a decrease of $14,510 in
the City’s payment from CPS which is based on CPS’ gross revenues. CPS revenues are impacted by a number of
variables such as fuel costs, weather, types of electric generation used as well as other factors.
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The total fund balance of the General Fund at year-end was $98,510, an increase of $16,868 from the total fund
balance of $81,642 for the close of fiscal year 2003. The total unreserved general fund balance for fiscal year
2004 is $90,410, which represents $29,175 in designated and $61,235 in undesignated fund balance. The
undesignated fund balance, which represents amounts available for additional appropriations, in the General Fund
at the close of the fiscal year increased by $19,751 from the previous year.

The total fund balance of the Debt Service Fund at year-end was $83,723; a decrease of $4,165 from the total fund
balance for the close of fiscal year 2003. The entire fund balance is reserved for payment of debt service.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Significant Variances in Budget Appropriations
General Fund
Original Final Actual
Budget Budget Results
General Government $ 57,504 $ 77,710  $ 54,215
Public Safety 365,593 378,062 376,925
Public Works 14,041 10,638 10,657
Health Services 15,811 12,911 13,410
Sanitation 2,537 2,536 2,380
Welfare 17,366 16,989 16,481
Culture and Recreation 62,676 62,463 57,919
Economic Development
and Opportunity 19,126 22,864 8,043
Transfers to other funds 72,786 76,111 76,441
Total $ 627440 $ 660284 $ 616471

Changes in original budget appropriations to the final amended budget appropriations were a $32,844 increase in
appropriations. This increase can be summarized by the following discussion.

General Government had a $20,206 increase composed of $5,928 of budget carry forwards and a $14,278 budget
increase. Of the $12,469 increase in Public Safety, $1,076 was due to budget carry forwards and an $11,393
budget increase. Public Works had a $3,403 decrease composed of an increase of $106 in budget carry forwards
and a $3,509 budget decrease. Health Services had a $2,900 budget decrease, which consisted of $125 of budget
carry forwards and $3,025 of budget decreases. Sanitation had a $1 budget decrease. All of the $377 decrease in
Welfare was due to a budget decrease. Culture and Recreation’s $213 decrease was due to a $1,098 increase for
budget carry forwards and $1,311 as a decrease in budget. The $3,738 increase in Economic Development and
Opportunity was due to a $169 increase in budget carry forwards and a $3,569 budget increase. The $3,325
increase in transfers was due to amounts funded from various government functions.
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Final budgeted appropriations for the General Fund were $660,284 while actual expenditures were $616,471,
creating a positive variance of $43,813. Significant variances are as follows:

e General Government had a $23,495 positive variance, which was composed of $13,278 of budgeted
salaries, $1,235 of anticipated improvements, $601 of improvements to computers to include software
licenses, $210 for training and incentives, $6,533 in various contractual services, and $1,281in
unrealized expenditures for commodities such as supplies and repair and maintenance, and $357 in
unrealized capital expenditures.

e Culture and Recreation had a positive variance of $4,544, which was due to $2,447 of budgeted
salaries, $1,603 in contractual services, $449 in expenditures for commodities, and $45 in capital
expenditures

e Economic Development and Opportunity had a $14,821 positive variance, which was mostly
attributable to $12,000 in anticipated expenditures for infrastructure improvements to be made at
Brooks City-Base. Other savings include $2,741 in contractual services and $80 in unrealized capital
expenditures.

The following charts provide a comparison of the City’s budget appropriations.

Significant Variances in Budget Appropriations - Fiscal Year 2004
$680,000 ..
$660,000 O Original Budget
640,000 .
gezo,ooo B $616,471 OFinal Budget
$600,000 B Actual Results
$580,000
Total
General Fund
Budget Appropriations by Function  Original Budget Appropriations by Function
Budget - General Fund Final Budget-General Fund
m$76,111 m$77,710
0$22,864
72,786
m$ b $57,504 B$62,463
0$19,126 0 $16,989
W $62,676 W $2,536
0%$12,911
b$17,366
[0$10,638
W $2,537 | $378,062
0O $15,811

O $14,041 W $365,593
O General Government B Public Safety
O General Government W Public Safety O Public Works O Health Services
OPublic Works O Health Services B Sanitation O Welfare
H Sanitation O Welfare B Cul & Rec OEco Dev & Opp
B Cul & Rec OEco Dev & Opp W Trfs to other funds
B Trfs to other funds




Capital Assets

The City of San Antonio’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2004, amounts to $3,344,023 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and machinery and equipment. The total increase in the
City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1.5%, which is comprised of a 1.6% increase for
governmental activities and a 0.7% increase for business-type activities.

Total

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Land $ 1259362 § 1,238,908 § 11,988  § 11,988 § 1,271,350 $§ 1,250,896
Buildings 220,650 239,019 72,140 75,380 292,790 314,399
Improvements 40,379 34,974 88,052 92,682 128,431 127,656
Infrastructure 788,894 805,327 788,894 805,327
Machinery and Equipment 92,823 96,856 3,594 4,690 96,417 101,546
Construction in Progress 645,521 585,958 120,620 109,568 766,141 695,526
Totals $ 3,047,629 § 3,001,042 § 296394 § 294308 § 3,344,023 § 3,295,350

The following schedule provides a summary of the City’s capital assets:

Total Capital Assets $3,344,023

$1,400,000 1,271,350
$1,200,000 -
$1,000000 — [\ 788,894 766,141 Bland

$800,000 L \ 292,790 A A M Building

$600,000 | \ / OImprovements

’ Olnfrastructure

$400,000 | 128431 | B auipment

$200,000 O Construction in progress

$_,

Governmental and Business-type Activities

For Fiscal Year 2004
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Change in Capital Assets

September 30, 2004
Governmental Business-Type
Activites Activities Total
Beginning Balance $ 3,001,042 $ 294,308 $ 3,295,350
Additions 154,271 11,476 165,747
Deletions (13,460) (933) (14,393)
Accumulated Depreciation (94,224) (8,457) (102,681)
Total $ 3,047,629 $ 296,394  § 3,344,023

The following charts provide a summary of the changes in capital assets:

Total Capital Assets
— 183,647,629
$3,060,000 Bl $3,001,042
$3,040,000
$3,020,000 |
$3,000,000
$2,980,000
$2,960,000 -
Governmental Activities
\ O Fiscal Year End 2004 M Fiscal Year End 2003
Total Capital Assets
O $296,394
$298,000 W $294,308
$296,000
$294,000
$292,000-
Business Type Activities
OFiscal Year End 2004 M Fiscal Year End 2003

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the notes to the financial statements.
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Debt Administration
Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of San Antonio had a total of $1,394,988 in bonds, certificates,
revenue bonds and commercial paper outstanding, an increase of 1.3% over last year. Additional information on
the City of San Antonio’s long-term debt, including descriptions of the new issues, can be found in Note 6 in the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

City of San Antonio’s Outstanding Debt
September 30, 2004 and 2003

Governmental Activities
2004 2003
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds $ 655,141 $ 666,983
Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper 10,500
Tax-Exempt Certificate of Obligation 214,470 196,280
Taxable Certificates of Obligation 4,580 5,165
Revenue Bonds 264,697 234,918
Total $ 1,138,888 $ 1,113,846
Business-type Activities
2004 2003
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds § 13,245 $ 12475
Tax-Exempt Certificate of Obligation 135
Revenue Bonds 242,855 250,265
Total $ 256,100 $ 262875

On September 30, 2003, outstanding bonds, certificates and commercial paper debt totaled $1.377 billion. In
April 2004, the City issued additional indebtedness for a total of $63.1 million. The $63 million was comprised
of $33,570 in general obligation bonds and $29,525 in tax-exempt certificates of obligation. The general
obligation bonds and certificates of obligation are to be utilized to fund capital improvement projects to include
streets and pedestrian improvements, drainage improvements, library system improvements, parks and recreation
improvements and public health and safety. Additionally, in April 2004, the City issued $13.2 million in taxable
general obligation refunding bonds, together with a cash contribution from the City, which were used to refund
$11.7 million of the City’s outstanding tax supported debt, which was used to finance or refinance certain parking
facilities owned and operated by the City. Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding bonds
were issued in June 2004, for the amount of $10.4 million, for the purpose of refunding certain of its outstanding
Prior Lien Bonds. Another $111.4 million in Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Revenue and Refunding
bonds were issued in June 2004, which was used, together with a cash contribution from the city, for the purpose
of construction of permanent improvements relating to the expansion of the Convention Center, and refunding
$82.2 million of Prior Lien Bonds.
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Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch’s underlying rating for City obligations are as follows:

Standard
& Poor's Moody's Fitch
General Obligation/

Certificates of Obligation AA+ Aa2 AA+
Airport A+ Al A+
Airport PFC A- A2 A+
Convention Center - Prior Lien A+ Al A+
Convention Center - Subordinate Lien A+ A2 A
Parking A+ A2 A+
Drainage AA- Al A+

The Constitution of the State of Texas and the City Charter limit the amount of debt the City may incur. The City
Charter establishes a limitation on the general obligation debt supported by ad valorem taxes to an amount not to
exceed 10% of the total assessed valuation. The total assessed valuation for the fiscal year ending 2004 was
$49,723,286, which provides a debt ceiling of $4,972,329.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s position for all those with an interest
in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department, P.O. Box 839966, San Antonio,
TX 78283-3966.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
(In Thousands)
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 110,424 1,059 111,483 74,287
Investments 422,178 16,481 438,659 262,991
Receivables (net) 121,452 6,102 127,554 235,559
Due from Fiduciary Funds 52 52
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 37.443 37,443 2,589
Internal Balances 7,146 (7,146)
Inventories of Materials and Supplies, at Cost 5,122 546 5,668 116,484
Prepaid Expenses 131 18 149 39,229
Deposits 418 418
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,548 10,548 58,157
Investments 170,403 170,403 1,251,100
Receivables - Accrued Interest 341 341 9,061
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable 1,904,883 132,608 2,037,491 855,860
Depreciable, net 1,142,746 163,786 1,306,532 5,966,407
Assets Held for Resale 8,147
Prepaid Rent Long Term - Leaseback 535,972
Unamortized Debt Expense 4,267 4,207 8,474 34,926
Total Assets 3,756,262 498,953 4,255,215 9,450,769
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 101,868 8,081 109,949 207,349
Deferred Revenues 17,998 868 18,866 2,492
Accrued Interest 8,067 3 8,070
Accrued Bond and Certificate Interest 2,948 2,948 6,311
Due to Other Governmental Agencies 7,754 7,754 1,107
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year 102,305 15,096 117,401 150,974
Due in more than one year 1,210,326 244,337 1,454,663 5,068,381
Total Liabilities 1,448,318 271,333 1,719,651 5,436,614
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,
net of related debt 2,118,418 197,929 2,316,347 2,790,336
Restricted for:
Debt Service 87,311 23,720 111,031 9,968
Equipment Renewal and Replacement 12 12 620,191
Improvement and Contingency
Conservation 158,683
Perpetual Care:
Expendable 943 943
Nonexpendable 1,601 1,601
Unrestricted 99,659 5,971 105,630 434,977
Total Net Assets 2,307,944 227,620 2,535,564 4,014,155

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
FUNCTION/PROGRAM ACTIVITIES EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 63,610 57,203 $ 1,480 $ 0
Public Safety 428,607 7,172 8,347 1,893
Public Works 116,629 28,271 3,545 7,610
Sanitation 2,787 25
Health Services 82,233 17,924 22915 290
Environmental Protection and Control 36
Culture and Recreation 80,051 9,411 2,976 6,140
Convention and Tourism 50,100 13,268
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 23,981 217 23,343 460
Welfare 116,701 95,471 221
Economic Development Opportunity 21,277 243 10,018
Interest on Long-term Debt 55,855
Total governmental activities 1,041,867 133,709 168,120 16,614
Business-type Activities
Airport System 49,427 43,701 27
Parking Facilities 6,264 9,647
Environmental Services 51,227 50,391
Total business-type activities 106,918 103,739 27
Total primary government $ 1,148,785 237.448 3 168,120 $ 16,641
Component units:
San Antonio Water System 256,440 241,085 0 66,291
City Public Service 1,542,449 1,503,814 47,191
Other Component Units 50,767 12,112 34,836
Total component units $ 1,849,656 1,757,011 $ 0 $ 148,318

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
Selective Sales and Use Taxes
Gross Receipts Business Taxes
Occupancy Taxes
Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes
Revenues from Utilities
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Capital Contributions
Transfers (net)
Total General Revenues, Special Items, and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
$ (5,368) 0o s (5,368)
(411,195) (411,195)
(77,203) (77,203)
(2,762) (2,762)
(41,104) (41,104)
(36) (36)
(61,083) (61,083)
(36,832) (36,832)
39 39
(21,009) (21,009)
(11,016) (11,016)
(55,855) (55,855)
(723,424) (723,424)
(5,699) (5,699)
3,383 3,383
(836) (836)
3.152) (3.152)
(723,424 (3,152) (726,576)
$ 50,936
8,556
(3,819
0 0 0 55,673
257,514 0 257,514 0
162,383 162,383
4,189 4,189
22,787 22,787
46,343 46,343
2,998 2,998
196,793 196,793
7,189 2,046 9,235 73,065
28,542 10,378 38,920 6,765
611 611 (6,056)
1,585 1,585
2,443 (2,443)
733,377 9,981 743,358 73,774
9,953 6,829 16,782 129,447
2,297,991 220,791 2,518,782 3,882,497
2211
$ 2,307,944 227,620 $ 2535564 § 4,014,155

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables

Allowance for Uncollectibles
Prepaid Expenditures
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governmental Agencies
Allowance for Uncollectibles
Inventories of Materials and Supplies, at Cost
Deposits
Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Vouchers Payable
Accounts Payable - Other
Accrued Payroll
Accrued Leave Payable
Deferred Revenues
Due To:

Other Funds

Other Governmental Agencies

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Inventories
Reserved for Prepaid Expenditures
Reserved for Debt Service

Unreserved:
Designated
Designated: Special Revenue Funds
Designated: Permanent Funds
Undesignated
Undesignated: Special Revenue Funds
Undesignated: Capital Projects Funds
Undesignated: Permanent Funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

MAJOR FUNDS
NONMAJOR TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS

$ 122§ 21,662 $ 81954 104,858
23,303 59,903 302,269 385,475

88,159 9,860 90,137 188,156
(17,636) (544) (50,582) (68,762)

50 78 128

39,888 1,054 3,991 44,933

336 36,926 37,262
(331) (331)

2,395 1,115 3,510

261 261

3 137,37 S 91,935 § 165318 S 695,490
$ 0 S 0 S 6 $ 66
5,355 32,403 37,758

7,196 2,444 9,640

4,607 1,166 5,773

18,482 8212 25,202 51,896

3,587 42,999 46,586

7,043 7,043

39,227 8,212 111,323 158,762

5,655 125,719 131,374

2,395 1,116 3,511

50 78 128

83,723 83,723

29,175 29,175

7,844 7,844

2,601 2,601

61,235 61,235

61,749 61,749

145,090 145,090

10,298 10,298

98,510 83,723 354,495 336,728

$ 137,737 $ 91,935 S 465818 $ 695,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
(In Thousands)

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Governmental capital assets
Land and Land Improvements
Construction In Progress
Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure Assets
Machinery and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets

Some of the City's revenues will be collected after year-end but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of
certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are reported with governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Governmental bonds payable
Premium on bonds

Deferred Amount on Refunding
Leases Payable

Unamortized Debt Expense
Accrued Interest

Arbitrage Rebate

Compensated Absences

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1,259,362
645,521
387,648

77,538

1,979,118

88,714

(1,430,525)

(1,158,521)
(40,343)
15,863
(6,545)
4,267
(8,067)
(968)

(114,575)
(1,308,889)

$

536,728

3,007,376

35,154

37,575

2,307,944
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Revenues
Taxes:
Property Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
Selective Sales and Use Taxes
Gross Receipts Business Taxes
Occupancy Taxes

Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes

Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental

Revenues from Utilities

Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeits

Miscellaneous

Interest

In-Kind Contributions
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health Services
Environmental Protection and Control
Sanitation
Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Convention and Tourism
Urban Redevelopment and Housing
Economic Development and Opportunity
Capital Projects
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest
Issuance Costs
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Long-Term Debt Issued
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent
Premium on Long-term Debt
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, October 1

Fund Balances, September 30

(In Thousands)

MAJOR FUNDS
NONMAJOR TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL ~ GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS

162,629  § 94,056  $ 1346 $ 258,031
148,492 13,891 162,383
4,189 4,189
26,550 26,550
46,343 46,343

1,848 1,080 70 2,998
17,026 17,026
2,696 179,021 181,717
196,405 196,405
30,029 63,780 93,809
11,713 11,713
9,644 24,682 34,326
1115 1,967 3,814 6,896
10,407 10,407

612,336 97.103 343354 1,052,793
53,456 6,145 59,601
375,316 16,634 391,950
10,657 54,548 65,205
13,384 66,459 79,843
30 30

2,380 2,380
15,921 99,693 115,614
57,073 17,270 74,343
48,188 48,188

23,904 23,904

7,688 12,546 20,234
130,981 130,981

72,410 72,410

52,558 52,558

2,061 2,061

535,875 127,029 776,398 1,139,302
76,461 (29,926) (133,044) (86,509)
97,770 88,821 186,591
(99,526) (99,526)

4,879 4,609 9,488

15,348 22,638 143,571 181,557
(74,941) (106,182) (181,123)
(39,593) 25,761 130,819 96,987
16,868 (4,165) (2,225) 10,478
81,642 87,888 356,720 526,250
98,510  § 83,722 S 354495 S 536,728

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
(In Thousands)

Net change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceed
depreciation in the current period.

Expenditures for capital assets 139,866
Less current year deletions (1,757)
Less current year depreciation (88,738)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded

repayments.
Bond and loan amounts (196,079)
Bond costs 2,055
Payments to Escrow Agent 99,526
Amortization of Bond Premiums and Deferred Charges (net) (1,167)
Principal payments 72,410

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the
cost of certain activities to individual funds.
The net (expense) of the internal service funds is

reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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10,478

49,371

(6,078)

(23,255)

(1,564)

(18,999)

9,953
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Other Accounts
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles
Accrued Interest
Accrued Revenue
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governmental Agencies
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:
Debt Service Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds
Construction Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds

Improvement and Contingency Accounts:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Other Restricted Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds
Total Restricted Assets

Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets
Unamortized Debt Expense
Total Assets

—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR
ENTERPRISE
FUND- INTERNAL
AIRPORT PARKING ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE
SYSTEM FACILITIES SERVICES TOTAL FUNDS
335§ 126§ 598 1059 5,566
10,554 2,919 3,008 16,481 36,703
1,642 59 2 1,703 2,388
(437) (57) (494) (1,566)
27 7 9 43 116
756 4,094 4,850 555
668 668 23,848
678
(166)
335 199 12 546 1,612
18 18 3
157
13,898 3,253 7.723 24,874 69,894
6,687 1,668 8,355
17,430 855 18,285
30 3 33
67 67
40 365 62 467
102,015 8,067 343 110,425
214 22 1 237
761 761
1,203 310 81 1,594
39211 1,413 406 41,030
65 3 1 69
132 132
663 663
2 2
2 2
168,522 12,706 894 182,122
2,970 8,125 893 11,988
115,656 18,985 46 134,687 178
156,110 1,283 3,025 160,418 194
10,299 571 3,743 14,613 109,387
107,750 12,434 436 120,620
392,785 471,398 3143 742,326 109,759
133,194 9,455 3283 145,932 69,506
259,501 31,943 7,860 296,394 70,253
3,342 365 7207
445353 $ 48767  $ 13,477 507,597 $ 110,147

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS ——

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

~19—

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
(In Thousands)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR
ENTERPRISE
FUND- INTERNAL
AIRPORT PARKING ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE
SYSTEM FACILITIES SERVICES TOTAL FUNDS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable $ $ $ $ - $
Accounts Payable-Other 4,213 75 2,749 7,037 53,581
Accrued Payroll 421 80 543 1,044 821
Accrued Leave Payable 174 18 137 329 649
Deferred Revenues 868 868 693
Accrued Interest 3 3
Due to Other Funds 73 2 75 22,335
Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Current Assets 5,749 175 3,432 9,356 78,079
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued Bond and Certificate Interest 2,939 7 2 2,948
Current Portion of Bonds and Certificates 8,390 1,580 9,970
Due to Other Funds 448 783 1,231
Lease Purchase 143 143 146
Other Payables 3,084 519 1,051 4,654
Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets 14,861 2,889 1,196 18,946 146
Total Current Liabilities 20,610 3,064 4,628 28,302 78,225
Noncurrent Liabilities
Revenue Bonds (Net of Current Portion) 210,020 23,995 234,015
General Obligation Bonds and Certificates (Net
of Current Portion) 12,115 12,115
Unamortized Premium/Discount on New Series 2,752 (768) 1,984
Less: Deferred Amount on Refunding (4,037) (1,648) (5,685)
Accrued Leave Payable 872 89 684 1,645 539
Lease Purchase 263 263 435
Due to Other Governmental Agencies 711
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 209,607 33,783 947 244,337 1,685
Total Liabilities 230,217 36,847 5,575 272,639 79,910
NET ASSETS
Invested In Capital Assets, net of related debt 145,574 4,754 4,858 155,186 40,057
Restricted:
Debt Service 21,268 2,452 23,720
Renewal and Replacement
Improvements and Contingency 41,017 1,726 42,743
Unrestricted 7,277 2,988 3,044 13,309 (9,820)
Total Net Assets $ 215,136 § 11,920 § 7,902 § 234,958 $ 30,237
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. (7,338)
Net assets of business-type activities. 3 227,620

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS/BALANCE SHEET
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
(In Thousands)

FIRE AND
POLICE PRIVATE
PENSION AND PURPOSE
HEALTH CARE TRUST AGENCY
ASSETS FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 141,645 $ 5 $ 9,016
Security Lending Collateral 159,835
Investments, at fair value:
US Government and Agency Issues 141,387 27
Corporate Bonds 187,849
Preferred Common Stock 52,773
Other 1,131,249
Total Investments, at fair value 1,513,258 27
Receivables:
Other Accounts 5,504 437
Accrued Interest 5,641 2
Accrued Revenue 1,186
Prepayments 15
Total Current Assets 1,827,084 32 9,455
Capital Assets
Computer Equipment 76
Buildings 556
Total Capital Assets 632
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (322)
Net Capital Assets 310
Total Assets 1,827,394 32 $ 9,455
LIABILITIES
Vouchers Payable 3,550
Accounts Payable- Other 43,055 9,399
Accrued Payroll 71 4
Due to Other Funds 52
Securities Lending 159,835
Total Liabilities 206,511 0 $ 9,455
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
and Other Purposes $ 1,620,883 $ 32

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer
Employee
Other Contributions
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings:
Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments

Real Estate Income, net
Interest and Dividends
Securities Lending
Other Income
Total Investment Earnings
Less Investment Expenses:
Investment Management Fees and Custodian Fees
Securities Lending Expenses:
Borrower Rebates
Lending Fees
Net Investment Income
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Benefits

Refunds of Contributions

Administrative Expense

Salaries, Wage and Employee Benefits
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Net Assets - End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

FIRE AND
POLICE
PENSION AND
HEALTH CARE
FUNDS

64,601
26,631

91,232

144,560
340
32,429
1,429
739

179,497

(6,615)

(1,037)
(137)

171,708

262,940

73,976
418
1,539
517

16

76,450

186,490

1,434,393

(10

42

1,620,883

32




ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables:

Notes

Other Accounts

Accrued Interest
Inventories of Materials and Supplies
Due from Other Governmental Agencies
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:
Debt Service Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Construction Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Repair and Replacement Account:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Conservation Accounts:
Investments

Improvement and Contingency Accounts:

Investments
Other Restricted Accounts:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables-Accrued Interest
Total Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets:
Land

Infrastructure
Buildings
Utility Plant in Service
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Utility Property Leased
Nuclear Fuel - Net
Non-utility Property - Land
Total
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets

Assets Held for Resale
Prepaid Rent Long Term-Leaseback
Unamortized Debt Expense

Total Assets

—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
(In Thousands)

SAN ANTONIO CITY NONMAJOR
WATER PUBLIC COMPONENT

SYSTEM SERVICE UNITS TOTAL

$ $ 51,532 22,755 74,287

24,136 238,813 42 262,991

12,177 12,177

28,116 187,995 3,421 219,532

1,911 1,864 75 3,850

4,858 111,579 47 116,484

2,589 2,589

3,292 35,652 285 39,229

62,313 627,435 41,391 731,139

13 13

11,467 11,467

38,397 38,397

235,119 18,253 253372

658 658

612,556 612,556

5433 5,433

5,823 5,823

12,007 12,007

16,931 2,816 19,747

355,875 355,875

2,970 2,970

302,813 1,012,689 2.816 1,318,318

86,758 55,196 8,494 150,448

33,680 33,680

95,327 95,327

2,145315 6,709,503 8,854,818

99,236 60,779 160,015

428226 248,585 16,002 692,813

18,785 18,785

302,379 302,379

12,599 12,599

2,759,535 7.347,047 214,282 10,320,864

743,692 2,725,483 29,422 3,498,597

2,015,843 7,621,564 184,860 6,822,267

8,147 8,147

535,972 535,972

9,350 25,576 34,926

$ 2,398,466  $ 6,823,236 229,067 9,450,769

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenues
Notes Payable
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Total Current Liabilities (Payable from
Current Assets)

Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets):
Accrued Bond and Certificate Interest
Current Portion of Bonds and Certificates
Other Payables
Total Current Liabilities (Payable from
Restricted Assets)
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue Bonds (Net of Current Portion)
Commercial Paper
Unamortized Premium on New Series Bonds
Plus: Unamortized Discount on New Series Bonds
Deferred Amount on Refunding
Long-Term Lease/Notes Payable
Other Payables
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for Renewal and Replacement
Restricted for Debt Service
Restricted for Conservation
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

SAN ANTONIO CITY NONMAJOR
WATER PUBLIC COMPONENT
SYSTEM SERVICE UNITS TOTAL

$ 25,503 166,724 15,122 207,349
2,492 2,492

647 715 1,362

1,107 1,107

26,150 166,724 19,436 212,310

6311 6,311

7,735 121,245 128,980

16,774 3,858 20,632

30,820 121,245 3,858 155,923

56,970 787,960 23.004 368,233

1,040,710 2,501,225 3,541,935
269,000 350,000 619,000

7,955 103,956 111,911
(13,753) (13,753)
(24,004) (158,721) (182,725)

2,012 611,015 77,606 690,633

1,390 298,416 1,574 301,380

1283310 3,705,891 79,180 5,068,381
1,340,280 3,993,860 102,474 5,436,614
972,501 1,722,770 95,065 2,790,336

617,989 2,202 620,191

5,156 13 4,799 9,968

5,823 152,765 95 158,683

74,706 335,839 24,432 434,977

$ 1,058,186 2,829,376 126,593 4,014,155

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of San Antonio (City) have been prepared in conformance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for local governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards.
The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the City.

A. Reporting Entity

In the evaluation of how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management considered all potential
component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying
the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," as amended by GASB Statement
No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units—an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 14”. The underlying concept of the financial reporting entity is that elected officials are "accountable" to their
constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of this concept is to provide users of governmental financial
statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of those elected officials, and accordingly, the definition of
the financial reporting entity is based on accountability.

The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government (in these financial statements the primary
government is the City), (b) component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the City is
financially accountable (blended), and (c¢) component units, which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the City is such that exclusion from the reporting entity’s financial statements would be misleading or
incomplete (discretely presented).

Using the criteria of GASB Statement No. 39 and Statement No. 14 outlined below, potential component units were
evaluated for inclusion in or exclusion from the reporting entity, whether the organizations were financially
accountable or not, and were further evaluated for financial statement presentation. Based on their individual
relationships with the City, some component unit financial statements were blended as though they are part of the
City and others only discretely presented.

The following criteria (as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14 and Statement No. 39) were used in the evaluation of
potential component units of the City:

1) Legally separate
2) Financial accountability
a) Appointment of a voting majority
b) Imposition of will
¢) Financial benefit to or burden on the City

d) Fiscal dependency

3) The relationship with the City is such that exclusion would cause these financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete.

4) Service rendered by the potential component unit is provided entirely or almost entirely to the City.

5) The City, or its component units, are entitled to, or have the ability to access, the majority of the resources
received or held by the separate organization.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)

(amounts are expressed in thousands)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

The criteria outlined above were excerpted from GASB Statement No. 14 and Statement No. 39. For a more
detailed explanation of the criteria established by the statements, we refer the reader to the Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, as of June 30, 2004, published by GASB, Section
2600. GASB Statement No. 39 further clarifies that a not-for-profit may not be financially accountable to the City,
but may be considered a component unit based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the City.
Based upon the application of the criteria outlined above, the following is a brief overview of component units
included in the reporting entity:

Blended with the Primary Government (the relationship among the following component units and the City meet
the criteria, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14 and Statement No. 39, for inclusion in the Reporting Entity and
is such that the financial statements are blended in with those of the City):

As set forth in GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments”, the City excludes fiduciary funds and component units that are
fiduciary in nature from the government-wide financial statements. The City’s component units that are fiduciary
in nature are the San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund and the San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health
Care Fund. These component units are presented in the Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets.

City of San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation

The City of San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation (HFDC) was established by Ordinance No.
55400, dated June 3, 1982, in accordance with state laws for the purposes of, and to act on behalf of, the City as a
health facilities development corporation under the Texas Health Facilities Development Act of 1981. The HFDC is
authorized to issue tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds, for which the City is not obligated in any manner to
finance health related projects in support of the promotion, expansion, and improvement of health facilities. The
HFDC is governed by a Board of Directors, which is comprised of the City Council of the City of San Antonio.

City of San Antonio Industrial Development Authority

The City of San Antonio Industrial Development Authority (IDA) was established by Resolution No. 79-48-100
dated October 11, 1979, in accordance with state laws for the purposes of benefiting and accomplishing public
purposes of, and to act on behalf of, the City as an industrial development corporation under the Development
Corporation Act of 1979. The IDA is authorized to issue tax-exempt industrial revenue bonds, for which the City is
not obligated in any manner, to finance qualified projects which may further the promotion and development of
commercial, industrial, and manufacturing enterprises to promote and encourage employment and the public
welfare. The IDA is governed by a Board of Directors, which is comprised of the City Council of the City of San
Antonio.

San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund

The San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund (Pension Fund) is a Single Employer Defined Benefit Plan
established in accordance with state law. The Pension Fund is administered by a nine member Board of Trustees,
including three City Council members. The City and Pension Fund participants are obligated to make all
contributions to the Pension Fund in accordance with rates established by state law. Benefit levels are also set by
state law. Services rendered by the Pension Fund are exclusively for the benefit of eligible firefighters and police
officers upon retirement.

(amounts are expressed in thousands)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund

The City of San Antonio Firefighters’ and Police Officers’ Retiree Prefunded Group Health Plan was created in
October 1989, in accordance with the provisions of the City’s contracts with the local fire and police unions,
respectively, to provide postemployment healthcare benefits to uniformed employees who retired on or after
October 1, 1989. Pursuant to the passage of Senate Bill 1568 in 1997, a separate and distinct statutory trust, the
Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund (Health Fund), was created to provide these postemployment healthcare
benefits for eligible uniformed employees of the City. The Health Fund is administered by a nine-member board
of trustees, including three City Council Members, and is funded primarily by contributions from the City and
contributions made by active and retirees on behalf of their dependents. The City and active and retiree
contribution rates are established pursuant to the Fire and Police collective bargaining agreements.

City of San Antonio Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation

The City of San Antonio Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation (TMFC) was established in fiscal year 2001 in
accordance with state law for the purposes of and to act on behalf of the City in acquisition, construction,
equipping, financing, operation and maintenance of land and other municipal facilities for the City. The TMFC
is governed by a Board of Directors, which is comprised of the City Council of the City of San Antonio.

City of San Antonio Texas Starbright Industrial Development Corporation

The City of San Antonio Texas Starbright Industrial Development Corporation (TSIDC) was established in fiscal
year 2003 in accordance with state law for the purposes of and to act on behalf of the City in the promotion and
development of commercial, industrial and manufacturing enterprises to promote and encourage employment and
the public welfare, including but not limited to the acquisition of land. The TSIDC is governed by a Board of
Directors, which is comprised of the City Council of the City of San Antonio.

Discretely Presented With the Primary Government (the relationship among the following component units and
the City is such that they meet the criteria, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14 and Statement No. 39, for
inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly are included, however are such that the financial statements are
discretely presented alongside, but not blended with those of the City):

San Antonio Water System

On February 13, 1992, the City Council determined it was in the best interest of the citizens of San Antonio and the
customers served by the water and wastewater utilities to consolidate all water utilities, agencies, and activities into
one institution. It was determined that the best mechanism for effecting the consolidation of all water systems,
agencies, and activities into a single institution was through a refunding of all the then outstanding water and sewer
bonds. The consolidation was consummated on May 19, 1992, with the creation of the San Antonio Water System
(SAWYS) that included the former City Water Board, Alamo Water Conservation and Re-use District, and the City's
Sewer and Stormwater system.

Additionally, it was further determined by the City Council that the interests of the citizens and customers could best
be served by placing authority for management and control of SAWS, as consolidated, in a Board of Trustees. This
Board of Trustees includes the City’s Mayor as an ex-officio member along with six members appointed by the City
Council for four year staggered terms. The rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by
the City Council.

(amounts are expressed in thousands)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
City Public Service

City Public Service (CPS), a municipally owned utility, provides electricity and natural gas to San Antonio and the
surrounding areas. CPS is governed by a Board of Trustees, which is comprised of four members appointed by City
Council and the Mayor of the City as an ex-officio member. The rates for user charges and bond issuance
authorizations are approved by the City Council.

San Antonio Development Agency

The San Antonio Development Agency (SADA) was created under the provisions of the Urban Renewal Law of the
State of Texas. SADA is responsible for implementing the City’s Urban Renewal Program and may designate, for
urban renewal, such areas, as it deems advisable, subject to approval by the City Council and the Federal Agency,
which administers the overall program. SADA receives a majority of its operating funds from the City as pass-
through grant funds and is governed by a seven member Board of Commissioners appointed by the City Council.

San Antonio Education Facilities Corporation

The City of San Antonio Higher Education Authority (SAHEA) was established in 1984, in accordance with state
laws for the purpose of aiding nonprofit institutions of higher education in providing educational, housing, and other
related facilities in accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 53.35 (b) Texas Education Code, all to
be done on behalf of the City and as its duly constituted authority and instrumentality. In 2001, the SAHEA
changed its name to the San Antonio Education Facilities Corporation (SAEFC). The Act authorizes the SAEFC to
issue revenue bonds for these purposes on behalf of the City but the bonds are not obligations of the City. SAEFC is
governed by an eleven member Board of Directors appointed by the City Council for two-year terms. Board
members are subject to removal by the City Council for cause or at will and the City reserves the right to terminate
and dissolve the SAEFC at any time.

Greater Kelly Development Authority

The Greater Kelly Development Corporation (GKDC) was established in 1996 as the local development authority
on an interim basis under the Development Corporation Act of 1979 for the development and redevelopment of
Kelly Air Force Base (Kelly). In November 1999, the City established the Greater Kelly Development Authority
(GKDA) as the successor-in-interest to the GKDC pursuant to the newly enacted Senate Bill 655. In accordance
with the Act, the GKDA will have the powers previously enjoyed by the GKDC while at the same time clarifying
such powers and preserving the property tax exempt status of prior commercial tenants at Kelly. The GKDA is a
special district and political subdivision of the State of Texas and was established for the purpose of monitoring the
proposed closing of Kelly; conducting comprehensive studies of all issues related to the closure, conversion,
redevelopment, and future use of Kelly; reviewing all options relative to the most appropriate uses of Kelly and the
surrounding area; formulating and adopting a comprehensive plan for the conversion and redevelopment of Kelly
and submitting such plan to the appropriate agency or agencies of the federal government; and implementing such
plan as it relates to Kelly and the surrounding area. The GKDA is governed by an eleven member Board of
Directors, appointed by the City Council. The City Council also has the ability to remove appointed members of the
organization’s governing board at will. The GKDA is authorized to issue bonds to finance any project as permitted
by Texas Law, but said bonds are not obligations of the City.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)

(amounts are expressed in thousands)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc.

The San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc. (SAHTF) is a non-profit corporation incorporated in 1990 under
the laws of the State of Texas. SAHTF was organized for the purposes of supporting charitable, educational, and
scientific undertakings, specifically for providing housing for low and middle income families and to provide
administrative and other support for the operations of the City of San Antonio Housing Trust Fund, a Permanent
Fund of the City. The Housing Trust Fund was established by the City for the purposes of providing additional and
continuing housing opportunities for low and moderate-income families; promoting public health, safety,
convenience, and welfare; and revitalizing neighborhoods and the downtown area through appropriate housing
activities. SAHTF is governed by an eleven member Board of Directors appointed by the City Council. SAHTF
administers The San Antonio Housing Trust Finance Corporation. The City has the ability to appoint, hire, reassign,
or dismiss those persons responsible for the day-to-day operations of the SAHTF as it authorizes a contract for the
administration and management of the operations on an annual basis.

San Antonio Local Development Company, Inc. dba South Texas Business Fund (STBF)

The San Antonio Local Development Company Inc. (SALDC) is a non-profit corporation organized in 1978 under
the laws of the State of Texas and the auspices of the City. In 2004, SALDC changed its name to the San Antonio
Local Development Company dba South Texas Business Fund (STBF). The STBF also expanded the area served
from twelve counties to all of the counties in the state of Texas. STBF was formed to participate in the
Neighborhood Business Revitalization Program (NBRP), which is co-sponsored by the Small Business
Administration (SBA), the Economic Development Administration, and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). STBF is governed by a thirty-three member Board of Trustees, appointed by the City
Council, and an eleven member Board of Directors appointed from the Board of Trustees. STBF, under agreement
with the City, administers and operates a revolving loan fund, NBRP, that provides qualifying local businesses with
loans under economic development programs administered by the SBA. STBF also administers, by agreement with
the City, a U.S. Department of Commerce Title IX Revolving Loan Fund, SBA MicroLoan Program, and a HUD
108 Fund. Currently, STBF has an outstanding note payable to HUD, which is guaranteed by the City.

Brooks Development Authority

The Brooks Development Authority (BDA) is a special district and political subdivision of the State of Texas. It
was established on September 27, 2001, as a defense base development authority in accordance with state law for
the purposes of and to act on behalf of the City in improving mission effectiveness, reduce the cost of providing
quality installation support through improved capital asset management and promote economic development on
Brooks Air Force Base and in the surrounding community. An eleven member Board of Directors appointed by the
City Council governs the BDA for two-year terms and will oversee the Brooks Technology and Business Park in
support of the Brooks City-Base Project. The City has the ability to impose its will on this organization as the City
Council has the power to remove board members by adopting a resolution.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
Essential disclosures related to the above mentioned discretely presented and blended component units are included
in the complete financial statements of each of the individual component units. These statements may be obtained at

the respective entity’s administrative office. The addresses are as follows:

Discretely Presented Component Units

San Antonio Water System City Public Service

P.O. Box 2449 P.O. Box 1771

San Antonio, Texas 78298 San Antonio, Texas 78296-1771

Contact Person: Stacey L. Isenberg Contact Person: Richard E. Williamson
Telephone No. (210) 704-7431 Telephone No. (210) 353-2397

San Antonio Development Agency San Antonio Education Facilities Corporation
P. O. Box 831386 P.O. Box 830504

San Antonio, Texas 78283-1386 San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504

Contact Person: Felix Lopez Contact Person: Ramiro Cavazos
Telephone No. (210) 207-5444 Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

Greater Kelly Development Authority San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation, Inc.
143 Billy Mitchell Blvd., Ste 6 2515 Blanco Rd.

San Antonio, Texas 78226 San Antonio, Texas 78212

Contact Person: Bruce Miller Contact Person: John Kenny

Telephone No. (210) 362-7800 Telephone No. (210) 735-2772

San Antonio Local Development Company Inc. Brooks Development Authority

dba South Texas Business Fund 8030 Challenger Drive

P.O. Box 830505 Brooks City-Base, Texas 78235

San Antonio, Texas 78283-0505 Contact Person: Virginia Cobarrubias
Contact Person: Ramiro Cavazos Telephone No. (210) 536-6710

Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

Blended Component Units

San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation San Antonio Industrial Development Authority
P.O. Box 830504 P.O. Box 830504

San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504 San Antonio, Texas 78283-0504

Contact Person: Ramiro Cavazos Contact Person: Ramiro Cavazos
Telephone No. (210) 207-8040 Telephone No. (210) 207-8040

San Antonio Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund San Antonio Fire and Police Pension Fund
300 Convent Street, Suite 2500 311 Roosevelt

San Antonio, Texas 78205 San Antonio, Texas 78210-2700

Contact Person: Paul Villarreal Contact Person: Warren Schott
Telephone No. (210) 220-1385 Telephone No. (210) 534-3262

San Antonio Texas Municipal San Antonio Texas Starbright Industrial
Facilities Corporation Development Corp.

P.O. Box 839966 P.O. Box 839966

San Antonio, Texas 78283 San Antonio, TX 78283

Contact Person: Milo Nitschke Contact Person: Milo Nitschke

Telephone No. (210) 207-8620 Telephone No. (210) 207-8620

(amounts are expressed in thousands)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

It is management’s belief that to exclude essential disclosures from the City’s financial statements as they pertain to
CPS and SAWS would be misleading. CPS and SAWS have been identified as major discretely presented
component units both as they relate to total component units and to the primary government. Therefore, relevant
disclosures have been included in the City’s financial statements. Discretely presented component units with
different fiscal year ends from the City are the San Antonio Water System with a fiscal year-end of December 31,
and City Public Service with a fiscal year-end of January 31.

Related Organizations

The City Council appoints the members to the Board of Directors for the San Antonio Housing Authority. However,
the City’s accountability for this entity does not extend beyond making appointments to the Board of Directors and
the coordination and approval of strategic plans.

B. Basic Financial Statements — GASB Statement No. 34

Effective October 1, 2001, the City implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial
Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments”. In fiscal year 2003,
the City implemented the portion of GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures”
relating to the disaggregation of receivable and payable balances. These statements comply with the
requirements of the new reporting model.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund
financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. The government-wide financial statements report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Management’s
discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical overview of the City’s
financial activities. As part of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the City has early implemented
requirements for infrastructure reporting. GASB Statement No. 34 requires the historical cost of infrastructure
assets, retroactive to 1980, to be included as part of the capital assets, as well as the related depreciation, to be
reported in the government-wide financial statements. In addition, for the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been removed from the statements.

The Statement of Net Assets reflects both short-term and long-term assets and liabilities. In the Government-
wide Statement of Net Assets governmental activities are reported separately from business-type activities.
Governmental activities are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues whereas business-type activities
are normally supported by fees and charges for services. Long-term assets, such as capital assets, infrastructure
assets, and long-term obligations are now reported with the assets of governmental activity. The components of
net assets, previously shown as fund balances, are presented in three separate components; 1) Invested in Capital
Assets, net of related debt, 2) Restricted, and 3) Unrestricted. Interfund receivables and payables between
governmental and business-type activities have been eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets,
which minimizes the duplicating of assets and liabilities within the governmental and business-type activities.
Component units are reported in the Statement of Net Assets as well.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Basic Financial Statements — GASB Statement No. 34 (Continued)
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net cost format. The net cost (by function or business-
type activity) is usually covered by general revenues (property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, etc.).
Direct (gross) expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues, and operating and capital
grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function of business-type activity. The
presentation allows users to determine which functions are self-supporting, and which rely on the tax base in
order to complete their mission. Internal service fund balances, whether positive or negative, have been
eliminated against the expenses and program revenues shown in the governmental and business-type activities of
the Statement of Activities.

A reconciliation detailing the change in net assets between the government-wide financial statements and the
fund financial statements is presented separately for governmental funds. In order to achieve a break-even result
in the internal service fund activity, differences in the basis of accounting and reclassifications are allocated back
to user departments. These allocations are reflected in the government-wide statements. Any residual amounts
of the internal service funds are reported in the governmental activity column.

The proprietary funds have a reconciliation presented in the proprietary funds’ Statement of Net Assets and
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets. The only reconciling item is the internal
service fund allocation.

C. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets and other debits, liabilities, fund equity and other credits, revenues and expenditures, or expenses, as
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the
purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The City has
three types of Funds: Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary Funds. The Fund Financial
Statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds, but not on the City as a
whole. Major individual governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported separately in the Fund
Financial Statements. Nonmajor funds are independently presented in the combining statements.

The criteria used to determine if a governmental or enterprise fund should be reported as a major fund is a follows:
The total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditure/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are
at least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type (that is, total governmental or total
enterprise funds), and total assets and liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental
or enterprise fund are at least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Fund Accounting (Continued)

The following is a brief description of the major governmental funds that are each presented in a separate column in
the fund financial statements:

The General Fund is always presented as a major fund.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of general long-term
debt principal, interest and related costs except that which is accounted for in proprietary type funds.

The following is a brief description of the major enterprise funds that are each presented in a separate column in
the fund financial statements:

The Airport System accounts for the operation of the San Antonio International Airport and Stinson Municipal
Airport. Financing for the Airport System operations is provided by user fees.

The Parking System accounts for the operations of the City’s parking facilities. Financing for the Parking Facilities
Operations is provided by user fees.

1. Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund of the City is the primary operating fund, which accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than private-purpose trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified

purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds and Trust
Funds).

Permanent Funds - Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs - that is, for
the benefit of the government or its citizenry.

2. Proprietary Funds
Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including

depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis should be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Fund Accounting (Continued)
2. Proprietary Funds (Continued)

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governmental units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. The City's self-insurance programs, data processing programs, and other internal service
programs are accounted for in this fund.

3. Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds - Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or other funds. These
include Pension Trust, Retiree Health Care Trust, Private Purpose Trust Funds, and Agency Funds. Pension Trust,
Retiree Health Care Trust, and Private Purpose Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as
proprietary funds since capital maintenance is critical. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities)
and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements present information about the City as a whole. Government-wide
financial statements exclude both fiduciary funds and fiduciary component units. The statement of net assets and
the statement of activities are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. The City recognizes revenue from property taxes when collected and those taxes
expected to be collected within 60 days after the period end, along with related interest and penalties. For additional
disclosure related to property taxes see Note 2. Other taxes and fees are recognized as revenue in the year they are
earned. Revenue from grants and similar items are recognized in the fiscal year the qualifying expenditures are
made and all other eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Program Revenues are presented in the Government-wide Statement of Activities. The City reports program
revenues into three categories: 1) Charges for services, 2) Operating grants and contributions and 3) Capital
grants and contributions. (Further descriptions of these three categories follow.) They are presented separately
as a reduction of the total expense to arrive at the net expense of each functional activity. Program revenues are
revenues generated by transactions with outside parties who purchase, use, or directly benefit from a program.
They also include amounts such as grants and contributions received from outside parties that restrict the use of
those funds to specific programs. Investment earnings that are legally restricted to specific programs are also
reported as program revenues.

1) Charges for services are revenues that are generated by those who purchase goods or services from the City.
Examples of charges for services include airport landing fees, solid waste collection and disposal fees, vacant lot
clean up, golf course fees, and food establishment licenses. Fines and forfeitures are also reported under charges for
services.

2) Operating grants and contributions are those revenues that are restricted in the way they may be spent - either
for operations of a particular program or to purchase a capital asset for a particular program.

3) Capital grants and contributions are also restricted revenues; the funds may only be spent to purchase capital
assets for specified programs.

(amounts are expressed in thousands)



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

37—

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

All governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on
their balance sheets. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become available and
measurable. For this purpose, the City considers revenues, other than grants, to be available if the revenues are
collected within sixty days after year-end. Grant revenues are recognized when reimbursable expenditures are made
and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. Grant funds received in advance and
delinquent property taxes are recorded as deferred revenue until earned and available. Gross receipts and sales taxes
are considered available when in the hands of intermediary collecting governments and are recognized at that time.
Anticipated refunds of such taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable and
their validity seems certain. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is
incurred. However, compensated absences, debt service expenditures, claims and judgments and arbitrage rebate are
recorded only when the liability is matured.

The reported fund balance (net current assets) for each fund is considered a measure of "current financial resources."
Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
(expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of
sources and uses of "current financial resources" during the period.

Special reporting treatments are applied to governmental fund inventories and prepaid expenditures to indicate that
they do not represent "current financial resources," since they do not represent net current assets. Such amounts are
generally offset by fund balance reserve accounts.

Proprietary, Pension Trust, Private Purpose Trust, and Retiree Health Care Funds are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses and related liabilities,
including claims, judgments, and compensated absences, are recognized when they are incurred. These funds are
accounted for on a cost of services or "economic resources" measurement focus. Consequently, all assets and all
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. The
reported Proprietary Fund net assets are segregated into three components: 1) invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, 2) restricted net assets and 3) unrestricted net assets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net assets.

Proprietary funds report both operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets. The City defines operating revenues as those receipts generated by a
specified program offering either a good or service. For example, parking garage and street lot fees are operating
revenues of the Parking Fund. This definition is consistent with GASB Statement No. 9, which defines operating
receipts as cash receipts from customers and other cash receipts that do not result from transactions defined as
capital and related financing, non-capital financing or investing activities. Operating expenses include personnel
services, contractual services, commodities, other expenses (such as insurance), and depreciation. Revenues and
expenses not fitting the above definitions are considered nonoperating.

The City’s enterprise funds, pension trust, private purpose trust and retiree health care funds and business-type
activities, as well as its discretely presented component units apply all applicable GASB Statements as well as
FASB Statements and Interpretations, APB Opinions, and ARBs issued on or before November 30, 1989, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting.” The City and its discretely presented major
proprietary component units, CPS and SAWS, have elected not to apply any FASB Statements and Interpretations
issued after November 30, 1989.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

CPS’ operating revenue includes receipts from energy sales and miscellaneous revenue related to the electric and
gas systems operations. Miscellaneous revenue includes late payment fees, rental income, jobbing and contract
work, ancillary services, and merchandise sales. Operating expenses include those expenses that result from the
ongoing operations of the electric and gas systems. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Nonoperating revenues consist primarily of investment income,
including the changes in fair value of investments. The amortization of net gains from the lease-leaseback and
the sale of water rights in prior years are also included. Some miscellaneous income from renting general
property and miscellaneous service is also recorded in nonoperating when it’s not directly identified with the
electric or gas systems.

SAWS’ principal operating revenues are charges to customers for water and wastewater services. Operating
expenses include the cost of service, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Nonoperating
revenues consist primarily of investment income, including the changes in fair value of investments. Some
miscellaneous income from renting general property and miscellaneous service is also recorded in nonoperating
when it’s not directly identified with the water or wastewater services.

E. Future GASB Implementations

GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, an amendment to GASB Statement No. 3”,
addresses deposit and investment risks related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk. The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2004.

GASB Statement No. 42, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for
Insurance Recoveries”, establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for the service utility of an asset
which has declined significantly and unexpectedly. The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2004.

GASB Statement No. 43, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans”,
establishes uniform financial reporting standards for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) plans and
supersedes the interim guidance included in Statement No. 26. GASB Statement No. 43 follows a similar
approach to GASB Statement No. 25 with modifications to reflect differences between pension plans and OPEB
plans. The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2005.

GASB Statement No. 44, “Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section”, an amendment of NCGA
Statement 1, addresses new standards to improve the understandability and usefulness of the information that
state and local governments present as supplementary information in the statistical section. The provisions of
this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005.

GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions”, establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB
expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary
information (RSI) in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2006.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. Future GASB Implementations (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 46, “Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation”, helps governments determine when net
assets have been restricted to a particular use by the passage of enabling legislation, and specifies how those net
assets should be reported in financial statements when there are changes in the circumstances surrounding such
legislation. The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005.

The City has not fully determined the effect that implementation of Statements No. 40 and 42-46 will have on the
City’s financial statements.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City's investment practices are governed by state statutes and by the City’s Investment Policy. City cash is
required to be deposited in FDIC-insured banks located within the State of Texas. A pooled cash and investment
strategy is utilized which enables the City to have one central depository. Investments are pooled into two primary
categories, operating funds and debt service funds. The balances in these funds are invested in an aggregate or
pooled amount with principal and interest income distributed to each respective fund on a pro rata basis. In addition,
the City may purchase certain investments with the available balance of a specific fund for the sole benefit of such
fund. As of September 30, 2004, the City’s investment portfolio did not contain any derivative products nor is it
leveraged in any way, except as noted in the Fire and Police Pension Fund. For a listing of authorized investments,
see Note 3.

The City, CPS, and SAWS account for and report investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.” The Fire and
Police Pension Plan and the Fire and Police Health Care Fund report investments at fair value in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 25 “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans.” The City’s policy with respect to money market investments, which had a remaining maturity
of one year or less at the time of purchase, is to report those investments at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. Amortization of premium or accretion of discount is recorded over the term of the investments.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City, SAWS, and CPS consider all highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of approximately ninety days or less to be cash equivalents.

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of materials and supplies consist principally of expendable items held for consumption and are stated at
cost, based on first-in, first-out and lower of average cost or market methods. For governmental and proprietary
fund types, the "consumption" method is used to account for inventories. Under the consumption method, inventory
acquisitions are recorded in inventory accounts and charged as expenditures (governmental fund types) or expenses
(proprietary fund types) when used.

Prepaid items are goods and services that are paid for in advance. These payments reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods, and are recorded in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Using the
consumption method, prepaid items are charged as expenditures for governmental funds and as expenses for
proprietary funds as the goods or services are used.

H. Capital Assets and Depreciation
1. Primary Government (City)

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. Capital assets recorded under
capital leases are recorded at the present value of future minimum lease payments. Depreciation on all exhaustible
capital assets of the City is charged as an expense with accumulated depreciation being reported on the Statement of
Net Assets. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method.
With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the City has established capitalization thresholds for
infrastructure and machinery and equipment that include computer equipment. All infrastructure assets are reported
in the financial statements and the estimated useful lives and capitalization thresholds applied are as follows:

Useful
Life Capitalization
Assets Years Threshold

Buildings 15-40 $100
Improvements (Other than buildings)  20-40 $100
Machinery and Equipment 2-20 $5
Furniture and Office Equipment 5-10 $5
Infrastructure 15-100 $250
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
H. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)
2. City Public Service (CPS)

The CPS utility plant is stated at the cost of construction, including costs of contracted services, direct
equipment, material and labor, indirect costs, including general engineering, labor, equipment, and material
overheads, and an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC). CPS computes AFUDC using rates
that approximate the cost of borrowed funds, or the short-term investment rate for other funds used for
construction. AFUDC is applied to projects estimated to require 30 days or more to complete.

CPS computes depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the depreciable
property using specifically identified service lives for each asset type. In 2003, a depreciation study was
conducted to determine if existing depreciation rates remained applicable to the depreciable property groups.
New rates were applied beginning in 2003. Total depreciation and depletion as a percentage of total depreciable
assets net of nuclear fuel was 3.40% in 2004.

CPS amortizes its share of nuclear fuel for the South Texas Project (STP) to fuel expense on a unit-of-production
method. Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the federal government assumed responsibility for the
permanent disposal of spent nuclear fuel. CPS is charged a fee for disposal of spent nuclear fuel, which is based
upon CPS’ share of the STP generation that is available for sale to CPS customers. The charge is included in fuel
expense monthly. For further discussion regarding the STP, see Note 10.

The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Buildings and structures 15-60 years
Systems and improvements:
Generation 8-45 years
Transmission and distribution 20-55 years
Gas 50-65 years
Machinery and equipment 4-30 years
Lignite mineral rights and other 20-40 years
Nuclear fuel 1-2 years

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)

(amounts are expressed in thousands)



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —42—

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
H. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)
3. San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

The SAWS’ capital assets in service are recorded on the unit cost equal to or greater than $1. Assets acquired
through capital leases are recorded on the cost basis and are included in utility plant in service. Assets acquired
through contributions, such as those from land developers, are capitalized and recorded in the plant accounts at
estimated fair value at date of donation. SAWS capitalizes certain interest costs on revenue bonds and
commercial paper associated with newly constructed utility plant additions. Maintenance, repairs, and minor
renewals are charged to operating expense, while major plant replacements are capitalized.

SAWS’ capital assets are depreciated and property under capital lease is amortized on the straight-line method. This
method is applied to all individual assets except distribution mains. Groups of mains are depreciated on the straight-
line method using rates estimated to fully depreciate the costs of the asset group over their estimated average useful
lives. The table below shows estimated average useful lives used in providing for depreciation of the SAWS’ capital
assets:

Structures and improvements 50 years
Pumping and purification equipment 10 - 50 years
Distribution and transmission system 25 - 50 years
Collection system 50 years
Treatment facilities 25 years
Equipment and machinery 5 -20 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Software 3 years

I. General Bonded Debt Service

The ad valorem tax rate is allocated each year between the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund. Amounts
estimated to be required for debt service on general bonded debt are provided by allocated property taxes, interest
earned within the Debt Service Fund, and transfers from other funds.

J. Compensated Absences

In the governmental fund financial statements, the City accrues annual leave and associated employee related costs
when matured (payable from available resources) for City non-uniformed employees and uniformed fire and police
employees. In addition, the City accrues the matured portion of the City’s uniformed fire and police employees
accrued sick leave pay, holiday pay, and bonus pay. Compensatory time is also accrued for the matured portion of
the City’s non-uniformed non-exempt employees as well as uniformed police officers.

For governmental fund types, the matured current portion of the liability resulting from the accrual of these
compensated absences is recorded in the respective governmental fund and reported in the fund financial statements,

while the entire vested liability is reported in the government-wide financials. The current and long-term portions of
the liability related to proprietary fund types are accounted for in the respective proprietary fund.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

K. Insurance

Activity for the City’s self-insurance programs is recorded in the Internal Service Funds. Assets and obligations
related to property and casualty liability, employee health benefits, workers’ compensation, unemployment
compensation, extended sick leave, and employee wellness are included.

The City is insured for property and casualty liability. As of the fiscal year end, Allianz Insurance Company and
RSUI Indemnity Company insured the City’s property, while the State National Insurance Company provided excess
liability coverage. Related liabilities are accrued based on the City’s estimates of the aggregate liability for claims
made, and claims incurred but not reported prior to the end of the fiscal year.

The City also provides employee health, workers’ compensation, and unemployment benefits under its self-
insured programs. The City is a member of the Texas Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Joint Insurance
Fund, and uses this fund as a mechanism for administering workers’ compensation claims for employees that
occurred prior to September 30, 1986. Workers’ compensation claims that occurred after October 1, 1986 are
administered by third party administrators. In addition, the City has excess workers’ compensation coverage
through the State National Insurance Company as of September 30, 2004. The City records all workers’
compensation loss contingencies, including claims incurred but not reported.

Employee health benefit liabilities are determined and accrued based upon the City’s estimates of aggregate
liabilities for unpaid benefits. Regarding unemployment compensation, the City is subject to the State of Texas
Employment Commission Act. Under this act, the City’s method for providing unemployment compensation is to
reimburse the State for claims paid by the State.

All insurance carriers providing coverage for the City are required to possess an A.M. Best Company rating of A- or
better; where A- denotes “Excellent”. A.M. Best is an industry recognized rating service for insurance companies.
For a more detailed explanation of the City’s self-insurance programs, see Note 12.

L. Fund Equity
Reservations of fund equity represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific
purpose. Designations of fund equity represent tentative plans identified by management and are subject to
change. Designations are utilized in the City’s governmental funds for amounts that have been designated for

subsequent year’s expenditures and amounts allocated to making future improvements and replacements. Such
designations will be reflected on the fund financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
M. Revenue Recognition

Governmental fund types record revenues on the modified accrual basis of accounting and are reported as such in
the fund financial statements. That is, revenues are recorded when they are both measurable and available to finance
current operations or when they are considered susceptible to accrual. Revenues from property taxes, sales taxes,
municipal court fines and fees, licenses, interest revenue and charges for services are recorded on the modified
accrual basis of accounting, and therefore, are considered susceptible to accrual. The City’s availability period is no
more than 60 days beyond the end of the fiscal year. When collections are delayed beyond the normal time of
receipt due to unusual circumstances, the amounts involved are still recognized as revenues of the current period.
“Available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. Grant revenues are recognized when reimbursable expenditures are made and all other eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Proprietary-type funds record revenues when earned. In the
government-wide financial statements, all revenues are recorded when earned.

CPS revenues are recorded when earned. Customers’ meters are read and bills are rendered monthly. Rate
schedules include fuel and gas cost adjustment clauses that permit recovery of fuel and gas costs in the month
incurred. CPS reports fuel and distribution gas costs on the same basis as it recognizes revenue. SAWS revenues
are recognized when earned under the accrual basis.

N. Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The City recovers indirect costs in the General Fund through the application of departmental indirect cost rates.
These rates are developed and documented in the City’s departmental indirect cost rate plan. In this plan, each
department is classified by function. Indirect costs are budgeted by department and are used as a basis for the City’s
actual indirect cost allocation. Base rates are then applied to actual indirect costs recovered and indirect costs are
reclassified to reduce general government expenditures. For fiscal year 2004, general government expenditures
were reduced by $7,062, resulting in increased expenditures in other governmental functions and in business-type
activities in the amounts of $4,115 and $2,947, respectively.

O. Nuclear Decommissioning

CPS, together with the other owners of the STP, filed with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) a certificate
of financial assurance for the decommissioning of the nuclear power plant. The certificate assures that CPS will
meet the minimum decommissioning funding requirements mandated by the NRC. The STP owners agreed in the
financial assurance plan that their estimate of decommissioning costs would be reviewed and updated periodically.
In 1995, the owners conducted a review of decommissioning costs. The results estimated CPS’ share of
decommissioning costs at approximately $270,000 in 1994 dollars. In 1999, the owners conducted an additional
review of decommissioning, and results showed that CPS’ share of decommissioning costs are now approximately
$311,000 in 1998 dollars.

In 1991, CPS started accumulating the decommissioning funds in an external trust, in accordance with the NRC
regulations. The Decommissioning Trust assets and related liabilities are included in CPS’ financial statements as a
component unit. At January 31, 2004, CPS had accumulated approximately $211,100 of decommissioning funds in
the external trust. Based on the annual calculation of financial assurance required by the NRC, CPS’ trust balance
exceeded the calculated financial assurance amount of $70,400 at December 31, 2003. Based upon the 1998 and
1994 decommissioning cost studies, the annual level funding into the trust of $15,900 for 2004 was expensed by
CPS.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
P. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities in the statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium
or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as well as bond
issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts and debt issuance costs
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as expenditures of the funds in which proceeds of debt issuances are recorded.

Q. Elimination of Internal Activity

Eliminations of internal activity, particularly those related to internal service fund transactions, are needed to make
the transition from governmental funds to government-wide activities. The overriding objective in “eliminating the
effects of internal service fund activity” is to adjust the internal charges to cause a break-even result. Eliminating
the “effect” of internal service fund activity requires the City to “look back” and adjust the internal service funds’
internal charges. Net income derived from internal service fund activity would cause a pro rata reduction in the
charges made to the participating funds/functions. Conversely, an internal service fund net loss would require a pro
rata increase in the amounts charged to the participating funds/functions. Therefore, eliminations made to the
statement of activities remove the “doubling up” effect of internal service fund activity. The residual internal
balances between the governmental and business—type activities are reported in the statement of net assets and the
internal balance amounts that exist within the governmental funds or within business-type funds are eliminated. The
City reports internal service fund balances in both governmental and business-type activities based on the pro rata
share of the amounts charged to the participating funds/functions.

The City has three internal service funds: Other Internal Services, Information Technology Services, and Self-
Insurance Funds. Other Internal Services and Information Technology Services charges users fees for requested
goods or services. Building maintenance charges, a component of the Other Internal Services Fund, are based on the
space occupied by departments. Through the tracking of these charges to the applicable departments, the net income
or loss will be allocated back to the user department based on actual charges incurred.

The Self-Insurance Funds generate their revenues through fixed assessments charged to the various funds each year.
The net income or loss generated by the Self-Insurance Funds is allocated back based on the same allocation by
which the revenues are received.

R. Application of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Assets
The City may receive funding from an organization whose expenditure is restricted to certain allowable costs. In
situations where both restricted and unrestricted net assets are expended to cover allowable expenses, the City will

first expend the restricted net assets and cover additional costs with unrestricted net assets. The City reserves the
right to selectively defer the use of restricted assets.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
S. Other Budget Disclosures

Excess of expenditures, transfers, and encumbrances over appropriations occurred as follows:

Excess of Expenditures, Transfers, and Encumbrances Over Appropriations

Excess of Expenditures,
Expenditures, Transfers,  Transfers, and Encumbrances

Fund/Expenditures Appropriations and Encumbrances over Appropriations
General Fund:
Public Works $ 10,638  § 10,657  § 19
Health Services 12,911 13,410 499
Transfers 76,111 76,441 330
Debt Service Fund: $ 127,012  $ 127,579 $ 567

Special Revenue Funds:

Hotel/Motel 2% $ 10,614  § 13,627 § 3,013
Project Management Office 4 263 259
Public Health Support 3,466 3,532 66
Brooks City Base 0 163 163

The excess expenditures over appropriations were fully offset by excess actual revenues or fund balances.
T. Prior Period Adjustments

SAWS’ prior year net assets have been restated due to a change in the estimate of future claims to be paid with
regards to the self-insured health plan in the amount of $3,236, change in the capitalization policy in the amount
of ($1,528), recalculation of bond issuance costs in the amount of ($273), and the reclassification of a liability in
the amount of ($14).

San Antonio Development Agency’s (SADA) prior year net assets have been restated by $790 due to two errors in
prior years. An increase of $685 was due to an error of property developed in fiscal year 1995 but accounted for as
agency expenditures at that time. The remaining $105 increase to governmental fund equity was for a parcel of land
acquired in fiscal 2002, where the offset was originally made to investment in general fixed assets rather than
governmental fund equity. The corrections had no effect on SADA fiscal year 2004 activity.
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2. PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied and due upon receipt on October 1, attached as an enforceable lien on property as of
January 1, and becomes delinquent the following February 1. In fiscal year 1999, the City executed an inter-local
agreement with the Bexar County Tax Assessor/Collector's Office to provide property tax billing and collection
services at the same level of service to its citizens as previously provided by the City.

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available which means when due, or past due and
receivable within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter (within 60 days) to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. Property tax receivables, including related interest and penalty receivable, net of
allowances for uncollectible amounts, represent amounts the City believes will ultimately be collected. Property tax
receivable, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts, are offset by deferred revenues. The City is permitted by
the Municipal Finance Law of the State of Texas to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of taxable valuation. The tax
rate approved by City ordinance for the year ended September 30, 2004, was $0.57854 per $100 taxable valuation,
which means that the City has a tax margin of $1.92146 per $100 taxable valuation and could raise an additional
$856,647 per year based on the net taxable valuation of $44,583,139 before the limit is reached.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

City monies are deposited in demand accounts at the City’s approved depository. The City utilizes a pooled cash
and investment strategy with each fund’s cash balance and pro rata share of highly liquid investments, including
U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. Government Agency securities, and repurchase agreements with original maturities of
ninety days or less, summarized by fund type and included in the combined statement of net assets as Cash and Cash
Equivalents. Overdrafts that result from a fund overdrawing its share of pooled cash are reported as interfund
payables by the overdrawn fund and as interfund receivables of the contributing funds.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit at 100% of all deposits not covered by federal
deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies
and obligations of the State and its municipalities, school districts, and district corporations. Collateral pledged for
demand deposits and certificates of deposit is required to be held in the City's name by the trust or safekeeping
department of a bank other than the pledging bank.

Written custodial agreements are required which provide, among other things, that the collateral securities are held
separate from the assets of the custodial banks. The City periodically determines that the collateral has a fair value
adequate to cover the deposits and that the collateral has been segregated either physically or by book entry. At
fiscal year-end, cash deposits for the City were entirely collateralized by the City’s depository or federal depository
insurance.

The City entered into repurchase agreements in connection with the investment of certain bond proceeds. Although
these repurchase agreements are considered securities for purposes of credit risk classification, due to their 100%
overnight liquidity, they are included with Cash and Cash Equivalents in the combined statement of net assets.

The investment policy of the City is governed by state statute and by its own written investment policy. Authorized
investments include: demand accounts, certificates of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government
Agencies, commercial paper, and repurchase agreements. The City maintains in its investment portfolio U.S.
Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency securities with original maturities of more than ninety days. Each
funds’ pro rata share of these longer-term investments are combined with similar non-pooled securities (i.e.,
securities purchased and held for specific funds), including U.S. Treasury securities, and U.S. Government Agency
securities, and are reported as investments in the combined statement of net assets, as of September 30, 2004.

The City accounts for and reports investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools”. The City’s policy with respect to
money market investments that have a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase is to report
these investments at amortized cost. Amortized cost approximates fair value for these investments. There was not a
decrease in fair value for investments of the City with a remaining maturity of greater than one year for the year
ended September 30, 2004. The City does not participate in external investment pools.

Investments of the Fire and Police Pension Fund (Pension Fund), a blended component unit, are administered by the
Fire and Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees. Investments of the Pension Fund are reported at fair value and
include: corporate bonds; common stock; preferred stock; U.S. Treasury securities; U.S. Government Agency
securities; notes, mortgages and contracts; and real estate. Equity and fixed income securities traded on national or
international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Notes, mortgages, and
contracts are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments discounted at prevailing interest rates.
The fair value of real estate investments are based on independent appraisals and on the equity position of real estate
partnerships in which the Pension Fund has invested. Gains and losses on sales and exchange of securities are
recognized on the trade date. Investments that do not have an established fair value are reported at estimated fair
value. No investments in any one organization (other than those issued by the U.S. Government) represent 5% or
more in plan net assets.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Pension Fund has entered into an agreement with its custodial bank to lend the Pension Fund’s securities to one
or more borrowers for a fee. It is the policy of the Pension Fund and the custodial bank to require that collateral
equal to 102% and 105% for domestic and international securities, respectively, of the loaned securities are
maintained by the custodial bank. Collateral may be in the form of cash, U.S. government securities and irrevocable
letters of credit. Until the loan is terminated, the borrower retains all incidents of ownership with respect to the
collateral. In the event that the borrower fails to repay the borrowed securities when due and the value of the
collateral is insufficient to replace the borrowed securities, the Pension Fund may suffer a loss. Management of the
Pension Fund considers the possibility of such a loss to be remote.

As of September 30, 2004, the Pension Fund had lending arrangements outstanding with a total fair value of
$135,425, which were fully collateralized with cash and securities. Related to these loaned securities, cash collateral
of $138,722 is recorded in the Pension Fund’s statements of plan net assets. Net income for the year ended
September 30, 2004, under the securities lending arrangement was $255.

The Pension Fund has only limited involvement with derivative and other structured financial instruments (as
defined in GASB Technical Bulletin No. 94-1) and does not use them for trading purposes. The Pension Fund’s
investment philosophy in bond portfolios has centered on using derivatives and other structured financial
instruments only when comparable cash alternatives are not available. Specifically, the Pension Fund has used the
following basic guidelines when entering into such transactions: (1) small allocations, (2) no use of leverage, (3)
price floors, (4) short maturities to mitigate potential problems with liquidity, and (5) attention to credit risk of the
issuer. The fair value of structured financial instruments held for the Pension Fund at September 30, 2004, was
approximately $35,846.

The Pension Fund periodically participates in options and futures to hedge the value of a portion of its investments.
Financial options and futures are agreements that give one party the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a
specific amount of an asset for a specified price on or before a specified expiration date. Total exposure on these
options and futures of approximately $5,460 is included in the fair value of investments at September 30, 2004.

The Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund Board of Trustees administers investments of the Fire and Police
Retiree Health Care Fund (Health Care Fund), a blended component unit. Investments are reported at fair value and
short-term investments are reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national
or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Investments that do
not have an established fair value are reported at estimated fair value. All investment income, including changes in
fair value of investments, is reported as additions in the statement of changes in postemployment healthcare plan net
assets. No investments in any one organization (other than those issued by the U.S. Government) represent 5% or
more in plan net assets.

The Health Care Fund entered into an agreement with its custodian bank in June 2003 to lend the Health Care
Fund’s securities to one or more borrowers for a fee. It is the policy of the Fund and the custodian bank to require
that collateral equal 100% of the loaned security’s market value plus accrued interest for domestic government or
agency securities loaned and 102% of the loaned security’s market value plus accrued interest for approved,
domestic non-government or agency securities loaned be maintained by the custodian bank. Collateral may be in the
form of cash, U.S. government securities, or irrevocable letters of credit. Until the loan is terminated, the borrower
retains all incidents of ownership with respect to the collateral. If the borrower fails to repay the borrowed securities
when due and the value of the collateral is insufficient to replace the borrowed securities, the Fund may suffer a loss.
Management of the Fund considers the possibility of such a loss to be remote. Cash collateral is invested in money
market funds at September 30, 2004.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Health Care Fund’s investment policy limits investment in derivative instruments to securities meeting the
standards dictated by the Federal Financial Institutions Examinations Council.

As of September 30, 2004, the Health Care Fund held a CMO position and mortgage-backed securities in the form
of GNMA, FNMA, FHLMC, and similar pass through obligations. The fair value of the CMO and mortgage-backed
securities held by the Fund was approximately $5,279, as of September 30, 2004. The overall return or yield on
CMO’s and asset-backed securities depends on the amount of interest collected over the life of the security and the
change in the market value. Although the Fund will receive the full amount of principal, if prepaid, the interest
income that would have been collected during the remaining period to maturity, net of any market adjustment, is
lost.

The Health Care Fund’s Hedge Funds are held through investments in unregulated limited partnerships that invest in
other hedge funds.

The investment policies of SAWS and CPS, the City’s major discretely presented component units, are governed by
state statute, local ordinance, and their own respective written investment policies. Authorized investments include:
demand accounts, certificates of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government Agencies,
commercial paper, and repurchase agreements.

SAWS is permitted by City Ordinance No. 75686 to invest in time deposits or certificates of deposit secured in the
manner required by law for public funds, or to invest in direct obligations of, including obligations for which the
principal and interest are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America, in obligations of any
agencies or instrumentalities of the United States of America or as otherwise permitted by SAWS’ investment
policy, which is governed by state statutes. SAWS’ general depository agreement does not require SAWS to
maintain an average monthly balance.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, SAWS reports money market investments with a remaining
maturity at time of purchase of one year or less at amortized cost, which approximates fair values. The net decrease
during fiscal year 2003 in the fair value of the money market investments with an original maturity of greater than
one year was $1,300. The unrealized gain on investments held at year-end was $598.

CPS cash deposits at January 31, 2004, were entirely insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized by
banks for the account of CPS. For deposits that were collateralized, the securities were U.S. Government or
Government Agency or U.S. Government guaranteed obligations held in book entry form by the Federal Reserve
Bank in CPS’ name.

CPS’ allowable investments as defined by CPS Board Resolution and Policy, Bond Ordinances, Tax-Exempt
Commercial Paper Ordinance, and State law include U.S. Government or Government Agency or U.S. Government
guaranteed obligations, collateralized mortgage obligations issued by the U.S., fully secured certificates of deposit
issued by a state, national bank, or savings bank domiciled in the State of Texas, direct repurchase agreements,
reverse repurchase agreements, defined bankers acceptances and commercial paper, no-load money market mutual
funds, and other types of specific secured or guaranteed investments.

CPS’ investments in the STP Decommissioning Master Trust are held by an independent trustee. Trust investments
are limited to U.S. Government or Government Agency or U.S. Government guaranteed obligations by CPS Board
Resolution and Policy, Trust Agreement, and State law. These investments are subject to market risk, and their fair
value will vary as interest rates fluctuate. This could affect the value at which these securities are recorded.

CPS’ investments with a maturity date within one year of the purchase date are reported at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Amortization of premium and accretion of discount are recorded over the terms of the
investments that mature within one year. CPS investments with a maturity date of one year or longer from the
purchase date are accounted for using fair value. Fair value is determined by using generally accepted financial
reporting services and publications and approved dealers and brokers as necessary. The specific identification
method is used to determine costs in computing gain or loss on sales of securities.

CPS reports all STP Decommissioning Master Trust investments and employee health and welfare investments at
fair value.

Investments in the employee health and welfare plans are held by an independent trustee. These investments are
limited to those authorized by the plans’ Administrative Committees, the Trust Agreements, and State law. These

investments are subject to market risk and their fair value will vary as interest rates fluctuate. This could affect the
value at which these securities are recorded. These investment policies follow the “prudent man” concept.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Combined cash and cash equivalents and investments are presented below as of year-end for the City, and its
significant discretely presented Component Units, SAWS and CPS. The information is provided to give an
indication of the proportionate amount of cash and investments held by each respective entity.

Combined Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

City ' SAWS * CPS’
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 272,697 % 38,397 § 68,476
Security Lending Collateral
Cash and Cash Equivalents 159,835

Investments 2,216,564 320,401 1,290,513
Less: Investments with original maturities

of less than ninety days included in

cash equivalents (94,217) (31,849) (65,016)
Total $ 2,554,879 § 326,949 § 1,293,973

! The following amounts were held by the City in a fiduciary capacity and are excluded from
the primary government statement of net assets: Cash and Cash Equivalents of $150,666;
Security Lending Collateral-Cash and Cash Equivalents of $159,835; Investments of
$1,513,285.

? For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003

? For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004

City ' SAWS? cps’

Totals from Statement of Net Assets and
Fiduciary Fund Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 262,149 § 0 3 51,532

Security Lending Collateral

Cash and Cash Equivalents 159,835

Investments 1,951,944 24,136 238,813

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,548 38,397 16,944

Restricted Investments 170,403 264,416 986,684

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and

Investments $ 2554879 § 326949 § 1,293973

! The following amounts were held by the City in a fiduciary capacity and are excluded from
the primary government statement of net assets: Cash and Cash Equivalents of $150,666;
Security Lending Collateral-Cash and Cash Equivalents of $159,835; Investments of
$1,513,285.

? For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003

* For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the financial statements for the City and its major
discretely presented Component Units as of the respective year-ends is presented below.

City SAWS' CPS?
Deposits with Financial Institutions $35,762 $10,939 $3,312
Less: Deposits with Original Maturities of
Greater than Ninety Days (4,500)
Investments with Original Maturities of Less
than Ninety Days 94,217 31,849 65,016
Cash with Pension/Retiree Healthcare
Fiscal Agents 142,492
Cash with Other Financial Agents 27 13
Petty Cash Funds 198 109 135
Cash Over and Short 1
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $272,697 $38,397 $68,476
' For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003
2 For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004

Cash with fiscal agents of the Fire and Police Pension Fund of the City of San Antonio have been approved by the
Funds’ Board of Directors and are invested as authorized by Texas State Statutes. Cash with fiscal agents of the Fire
and Police Retiree Healthcare Fund of San Antonio have been approved by the Funds’ Board of Directors and are
invested as authorized by the Investment Policy Statement and Guidelines of the San Antonio Fire and Police
Retiree Health Care Fund, San Antonio.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits with financial institutions are classified into three categories of custodial credit risk based upon the
following:

Category Description

1 Deposits insured by the FDIC or collateralized with securities held by the
City or the City’s agent in the City’s name.

2 Deposits collateralized by securities held by the pledging bank’s agent in
the City’s name.

3 Deposits uncollateralized which include deposits collateralized by securities
held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust department or agent

but not in the City’s name.

Accordingly, deposits of the City, SAWS, and CPS are categorized by custodial credit risk:

Carrying Bank Category
Units Amount  Balance 1 2 3

City Deposits:

With Financial Institutions $ 35762 $46395 $46395 $ 0 3 0

Deposits with Agents 142,519 142,519 142,519
SAWS Deposits:

Demand and Savings Accounts 6,439 11,285 11,285

Certificates of Deposits 4,500 4,500 4,500
CPS Deposits:

With Financial Institutions 3,312 11,720 11,720

Cash with fiscal agents of the Fire and Police Pension Fund and the Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund of the
City of San Antonio is classified as Category 1. The Fire and Police Pension Fund also had securities lending
collateral - cash and cash equivalents in the amount of $138,722, which is not categorized for credit risk as it had
been invested in a securities lending collateral investment pool. The Fire and Police Retiree Health Care Fund had
securities lending collateral cash and cash equivalents in the amount of $21,113, which is not categorized for credit
risk as it had not been invested in money market funds at September 30, 2004.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments are classified into three categories of custodial credit risk based upon the following:

Category Description

1 Includes investments that are insured or registered, or for which the securities are
held by the City or its agent in the City’s name.

2 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held
by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name.

3 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held
by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

Accordingly, the investments of the City, SAWS, and CPS are categorized below to give an indication of the level of
custodial credit risk assumed:

Total Investments By Category
Category Carrying Fair
1 2 3 Amount Value
City:
Corporate Bonds $ 187,848 § 0 8 0 8 187,848 § 33,374
Preferred Stock 1,659 1,659 1,659
Common Stock 845,234 845,234 845,234
U.S. Treasury & Government Agency Securities 750,475 750,475 751,984
Repurchase Agreements 8,500 8,500 8,500
Total Categorized Investments 1,785,216 8,500 0 1,793,716 1,640,751
Investments not Categorized:
Money Market Mutual Fund 116,594 116,594
Notes, Mortgages, Contracts 129,377 129,377
Real Estate Investments 55,200 55,200
Hedge Fund 11,700 11,700
Venture Capital Partnerships and Other Alternative Investments 109,977 109,977
Total City $ 1,785216 $ 8,500 § 0 $ 2216564 § 2,063,599
SAWS:
Wachovia Held in Escrow $ 0 3 5095 § 0 3 5095 $ 5,095
Bank One Held in Escrow 9,138 9,138 9,138
U.S. Treasury & Government Agency Securities 301,668 301,668 301,700
Total SAWS $ 301,668 $§ 14233 § 0 $§ 315901 § 315,933
CPS:
U.S. Treasury & Government Agency Securities $ 924,789 $ 0 $ 0 $ 924,789 § 925228
South Texas Nuclear Project Decommissioning Master Trust:
U.S. Treasury & Government Agency Securities $ 208,848 $ 208,848 § 208,848
Employee Health and Welfare:
Corporate bonds $ 19,817 $ 19817 $ 19,817
Common stock 88,841 88,841 88,841
U.S. Treasury & Government Agency Securities 22,729 22,729 22,729
Global Bonds 8,961 8,961 8,961
Foreign equities
Total Health and Welfare Investments Categorized 140,348 140,348 140,348
Investments not Categorized:
Money Market Mutual Fund 16,528 16,528
Total Employee Health and Welfare Funds $ 140,348 $ 156,876 $ 156,876
Total CPS $ 1,273985 § 0 $ 0 $ 1290513 § 1,290,952
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Capital asset activity for governmental activities, to include Internal Service Funds, for the year ended September

30, 2004, was as follows:

Capital Assets - Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities:
Non-Depreciable Assets
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Non-Depreciable Assets

Depreciable Assets
Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment
Total Depreciable Assets

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment

Total Depreciable Assets, net
Total Capital Assets, net

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance
$ 1,238,908 $ 20,454 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,259,362
585,958 99,901 (40,338) 645,521
1,824,866 120,355 0 (40,338) 1,904,883
385,133 2,693 387,826
69,914 7,818 77,732
1,949,975 29,143 1,979,118
176,961 33,916 (13,460) 684 198,101
2,581,983 33,916 (13,460) 40,338 2,642,777
(146,114) (21,062) (167,176)
(34,940) (2,413) (37,353)
(1,144,648) (45,576) (1,190,224)
(80,105) (34,178) 9,005 (105,278)
(1,405,807) (103,229) ® 9,005 O 0 (1,500,031)
1,176,176 (69,313) (4,455) 40,338 1,142,746
$ 3,001,042 $ 51,042 $ (4455 § 0 $ 3,047,629

' Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General Government $ 434
Public Safety 20,633
Public Works 57,788
Health Services 325
Welfare 451
Culture and Recreation 4,359
Convention and Tourism 4,704
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 44
Depreciation on capital assets held by the City's internal service
funds are charged to various functions based on asset usage 14,491
Total Depreciation Expense for Governmental Activities $ 103,229

! The capital assets of internal service funds are included in governmental activities. In fiscal year 2004, internal service funds
capital assets increased by $14,405, decreased by $11,496, resulting in an ending balance of $109,759. Depreciation expense of
$14,491 resulted in an ending accumulated depreciation balance of $69,506, to arrive at a net book value of $40,253.
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended September 30, 2004, was as follows:

Capital Assets - Business-type Activities

Non-Depreciable Assets
Land
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total
Construction in Progress
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total
Total Non-Depreciable Assets

Depreciable Assets
Buildings
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total
Improvements
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total
Machinery and Equipment
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total
Total Depreciable Assets

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total
Improvements
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total
Machinery and Equipment
Aviation Fund
Parking Fund
Non-Major Funds
Total

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Assets, net
Total Capital Assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 2,970 $ 0 $ 0 $ 2,970
8,125 8,125
893 893
11,988 11,988
97,477 10,273 107,750
11,591 843 12,434
500 (64) 436
109,568 11,116 (64) 120,620
121,556 11,116 (64) 132,608
115,657 &) 115,656
18,985 18,985
46 46
134,688 (1) 134,687
156,110 156,110
1,639 (356) 1,283
3,025 3,025
160,774 (356) 160,418
10,232 294 (227) 10,299
759 (188) 571
3,774 66 97) 3,743
14,765 360 (512) 14613
310,227 360 (869) 309,718
(51,147) (2,760) (53,907)
(7,933) (479) (8,412)
(228) (228)
(59,308) (3,239) (62,547)
(67,283) (4,286) (71,569)
(576) 59) 157 (478)
(233) (86) (B19)
(68,092) (4,431) 157 (72,366)
(6,908) (950) 140 (7,718)
(734) (18) 187 (565)
(2,433) (333) 30 (2,736)
(10,075) (1,301) 357 (11,019)
(137,475) (8,971) 514 (145,932)
172,752 (8,611) (355) 163,786
$ 294,308 $ 2,505 $ (419) $ 296,394
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

CPS and SAWS capitalize interest incurred on construction projects, in accordance with Statement of Accounting
Standard No. 62 issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. CPS and SAWS capitalized construction
period interest in the amount of $3,073 and $13,714, respectively. Capital asset activity for CPS and SAWS was as

follows:

Capital Assets - City Public Service'
Beginning Ending
City Public Service Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Non-Depreciable Assets
Land $ 54,928 $ 268 $ 0 $ 55,196
Land held for future use 12,599 (12,599)
Nonutility property - land 12,599 12,599
Construction in Progress 330,672 230,420 (312,507) 248,585
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 398,199 243,287 (325,106) 316,380
Depreciable Capital Assets
Utility Plant in Service 6,432,122 347,340 (69,959) 6,709,503
Utility Property Leased 18,785 18,785
Nuclear Fuel 291,439 10,940 302,379
Total Depreciable Assets 6,742,346 358,280 (69,959) 7,030,667
Accumulated Depreciation
Utility Plant in Service (2,302,023) (228,875) 72,644 (2,458,254)
Utility Property Leased (270) (66) (336)
Nuclear Fuel (252,943) (13,950) (266,893)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (2,555,236) (242,891) 72,644 (2,725,483)
Total Depreciable Assets, net 4,187,110 115,389 2,685 4,305,184
Total Capital Assets, net $ 4,585,309 $ 358,676 $ (322,421) $ 4,621,564
Capital Assets - San Antonio Water System >
(Restated)
Beginning Ending
San Antonio Water System Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Non-Depreciable Assets
Land § 73,623 $ 13,430 $ (295) § 86,758
Construction in Progress 305,235 299,341 (176,350) 428,226
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 378,858 312,771 (176,645) 514,984
Depreciable Assets
Utility Plant in Service 1,989,056 157,288 (1,029) 2,145,315
Machinery and Equipment 91,724 8,310 (798) 99,236
Total Depreciable Assets 2,080,780 165,598 (1,827) 2,244,551
Accumulated Depreciation
Utility Plant in Service (635,025) (49,528) 959 (683,594)
Machinery and Equipment (53,057) (7,477) 436 (60,098)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (688,082) (57,005) 1,395 (743,692)
Total Depreciable Assets, net 1,392,698 108,593 (432) 1,500,859
Total Capital Assets, net $ 1,771,556 $ 421,364 $ (177,077) $ 2,015,843
Beginning balances have been restated per SAWS December 31, 2003, CAFR

! For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004
2 For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Construction-in-progress relating to the Capital Assets is comprised of the following:

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

Construction-In-Progress: Assets-Governmental Activities

Expended Required
Project to Future

Authorization ~ Sept. 30,2004  Committed  Financing
Buildings $ 219,737 $ 172,070 $ 47,667 None
Streets and Bridges 339,646 145,500 194,146 None
Storm Drainage and Flood Prevention 235,960 118,552 117,408 None
Improvements Other Than Buildings 434,658 209,399 225,259 None

Total $ 1,230,001 $ 645,521 $ 584,480
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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

5. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
A. Disaggregation of Receivables and Payables

Receivables

Net receivables at September 30, 2004, were as follows:

Notes and Accrued Total Net

Accounts Taxes Loans Interest Other Receivables

Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 26,572 $55396 § 0 $ 557 $799 $ 83,324
Public Safety 7 6 13
Public Works 8,129 571 8,700
Health Services 16,561 2 16,563
Environmental Protection and Control 220 220
Culture and Recreation 874 42 916
Convention and Tourism 5,561 33 5,594
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 5 5,952 157 6,114
Economic Development Opportunity 8 8
Total - Governmental Activities $ 57929 $55396 $ 5952 $§ 1376 $799 $ 121,452

Business-type Activities:
Airport System $ 1961 § 0 3 0 9 27 $ 0 $ 1,988
Parking Facilities 2 7 9
Environmental Services 4,096 9 4,105
Total - Business-type Activities $ 6059 § 0 § 0 § 43 $§ 0 § 6,102

The receivable balances for General Government, Health Services, Environmental Protection and Control,
Convention and Tourism, and Public Works Accounts have been reduced by the estimated allowance for doubtful
accounts of $3,126, $50,456, $30, $76, and $20, respectively, and General Government Taxes of $15,054. The
receivable balance for Business-type Activities has been reduced by the estimated allowance for doubtful accounts
of $494.

The only receivables not expected to be collected within one year are $5,773 of notes and loans receivable in Urban
Redevelopment and Housing.
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5. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)
A. Disaggregation of Receivables and Payables (Continued)
Payables

Payables at September 30, 2004, were as follows:

Accrued Total
Accounts  Payroll Payables

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 69,563 $ 1,517 $ 71,080
Public Safety 6,548 5,670 12,218
Public Works 3,542 571 4,113
Health Services 321 879 1,200
Environmental Protection and Control 36 36
Culture and Recreation 1,355 723 2,078
Convention and Tourism 6,914 491 7,405
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 1,603 57 1,660
Welfare 1,218 354 1,572
Economic Development Opportunity 335 171 506
Total - Governmental Activities $ 91,399 $10,469 $101,868

Business-type Activities:

Airport System $ 4213 § 421 $ 4,634
Parking Facilities 75 80 155
Environmental Services 2,749 543 3,292
Total - Business-type Activities $ 7,037 $ 1,044 $ 8,081
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5. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)
B. Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances

The following is a summary of interfund receivables and payables for the City as of September 30, 2004:

Summary Table of Interfund Receivables and Payables
As of September 30, 2004
Due From Other Funds Due To Other Funds

General Fund:

Airport System Fund $ 192§ 26

Fiduciary Funds 52

Internal Service Funds 1,457 2,924

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 38,119 637

Parking Fund 68

Total General Fund 39,888 3,587
Debt Service Funds:

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 339

Parking Fund 715

Total Debt Service Funds 1,054
Airport System Fund:

General Fund 26

Airport Operating Fund from the Airport 1&C Fund 255

Airport Debt Service Fund from the Airport Operating Fund 66

Airport Debt Service Fund from the Airport I&C Fund 1

Airport Operating Fund to the Airport Debt Service Fund 66

Airport [&C Fund to the Airport Debt Service Fund 1

Airport Construction Fund to the General Fund 191

Airport [&C Fund to the Airport Operating Fund 255

Airport [&C Fund to the General Fund 1

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,150

Internal Service Funds 7

Total Airport System Fund 1,498 521
Parking Fund:

General Fund 68

Debt Service Fund 715

Internal Service Funds 2

Total Parking Fund 785
Fiduciary Agency Funds:

General Fund 52

Total Fiduciary Agency Funds 52
Internal Service Funds:

General Fund 2,924 1,457

Airport Fund 7

Internal Service Funds 20,878 20,878

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 37

Parking Fund 2

Total Internal Service Funds 23,848 22,335
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

General Fund 637 38,119

Airport Fund 1,150

Debt Service Fund 339

Internal Service Funds 37

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,354 3,354

Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,991 42,999
Total $ 70,279 $ 70,279

(amounts are expressed in thousands)
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5. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)
B. Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances (Continued)

As of September 30, 2004, the balances represent short-term loans resulting from (1) timing differences between
the dates that transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (2) short-term borrowings at year end. Of the
$39,888 due from other funds in the General Fund, $33,424 is a result of overdraws of pooled cash.

6. LONG-TERM DEBT
A. Primary Government (City)
1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt

The City’s on-going capital improvement financing for infrastructure and “quality of life” purposes resulted in the
issuance of additional indebtedness during fiscal year 2004. In April 2004, the City issued the following: $33,570
in General Improvement Bonds, Series 2004 and $29,525 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2004. The 2004 Obligations are payable from ad valorem taxes. The 2004 Certificates are additionally
secured by a lien on and pledge of certain Pledged Revenues (defined below) of the City’s municipal parks system,
not to exceed $1 during the entire period the 2004 Certificates or interest thereon remain outstanding.

In June 2004, the City issued $10,390 of Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2004A. Delivery of the bonds occurred on June 29, 2004, and, along with the 2004B Bonds, they are payable from
and are equally and ratably secured by a lien on the Pledged Revenues. ‘“Pledged Revenues” consist of (i) a
subordinate lien on the revenues from the 1.75% HOT (described below), plus, (ii) a subordinate lien on the
revenues from the 5.25% HOT (described below), plus (iii) a subordinate lien on the earnings of the investment of
the 1.75% HOT Fund and the 5.25% HOT Fund, and earnings on the Debt Service Fund, and the Debt Service
Reserve Fund. The above liens are subordinate and inferior to the liens in favor of the Prior Lien Bonds (described
below) and on a parity with the 2004B Bonds.

The net proceeds from the sale of the 2004A Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Revenue and Refunding
Bonds, less $346 of the original issue discount, were applied to fund an escrow fund for the redemption, discharge,
and defeasance of the refunded obligations. As a result of the 2004 refunding, the City will realize a total increase
of $6,865 in debt service payments. Through the transaction, the City obtained a total economic loss (difference
between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $280.

Concurrently, in June 2004, the City issued $111,425 of Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Revenue and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2004B. Delivery of the bonds occurred on June 29, 2004, and, together with the 2004A
Bonds, are payable from and are equally and ratably secured by a lien on the Pledged Revenues, as defined above.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The net proceeds from the sale of the 2004B Hotel Occupancy Tax Subordinate Lien Revenue and Refunding
Bonds, less $346 of the original issue discount, together with a cash contribution from the City, was applied to fund
an escrow fund for the redemption, discharge, and defeasance of the refunded obligations. As a result of the 2004B
refunding, the City will realize a total decrease of $2,627 in debt service payments. Through the transaction, the
City obtained a total economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old
and new debt) of $12,281.

The hotel occupancy tax permitted to be imposed by the City pursuant to the HOT Act and Ordinance Number
78834 adopted by the City Council on September 30, 1993, is currently levied at 9%, effective January 1, 1994 (the
“Hotel Occupancy Tax” or “HOT”). Of the Hotel Occupancy Tax, 2% is designated as the “Expansion Hotel
Occupancy Tax” and can only be used for expansion of existing Convention Center facilities or the payment of
obligations issued for such purpose pursuant to the Hotel Tax Act. The Expansion Hotel Occupancy Tax is
currently pledged to the Prior Lien Bonds and is not part of the Pledged Revenues for the bonds similarly secured;
however, the City may, in its discretion, and intends to, make certain debt service payments on the Bonds and the
2004B Bonds from the Expansion Hotel Occupancy Tax. The pledged 5.25% HOT is equal to three quarters of the
remaining 7% Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax which is 5.25%. The pledged 1.75% HOT is equal to the remaining
one quarter of the remaining 7% Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax which is 1.75%.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The following table is a summary of changes for the year ended September 30, 2004, for Governmental Activity
Debt:

Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Ad Valorem Tax Pledge)
Final Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Original Principal Interest Outstanding During During Outstanding
Issue Amount Payment' Rates (%)' October 1, 2003 Year Year September 30, 2004
General Obligation Bonds'
1988 Refunding $ 132978 2006 7.250-7.400 $ 4,008 $ $ 327§ 3,681
1994 30,450 2004 6.000 1,350 1,350
1996 35,330 2004 5.100 3,175 1,590 1,585
1996A Refunding 82,235 2016 4.650-6.000 51,155 1,405 49,750
1996B Refunding 6,030 2008 6.700 3,370 580 2,790
1998 Refunding 30,855 2018 4.500-5.000 27,785 1,070 26,715
1998 Forward Refunding 53,950 2008 5.500-6.000 29,130 8,375 20,755
1998A Refunding 47,955 2019 4.000-5.250 43,110 2,485 40,625
1999 12,000 2020 5.500-6.000 11,260 400 10,860
2000 27,565 2020 4.500-5.000 25,705 990 24,715
2000A 15,615 2021 5.250-5.375 15,160 430 14,680
2001 84,945 2022 3.000-5.250 84,030 660 83,370
2002 Forward Refunding 239,910 2013 4.500-5.250 215,880 15,355 200,525
2002 55,850 2023 3.000-5.500 55,250 3,685 51,565
2003 40,905 2014 2.750-5.000 40,905 6,615 34,290
2003A 55,710 2016 2.000-5.000 55,710 45 55,665
2004 33,570 2024 2.375-4.750 33,570 33,570
Subtotal $ 985853 $ 666,983 § 33570 $ 45412 § 655,141
Tax —Exempt Commercial Paper
Series 2001 $ 32,700 2004 0.750-3.500 $ 10,500  _$ $ 10,500 S
Subtotal $ 32,700 $ 10,500 $ $ 10500 $
Tax —Exempt Certificates of Obligation
Series 1994 $ 9,900 2004 6.000 $ 465 § $ 465 §
Series 1996 8,415 2005 5.100-5.200 775 335 440
Series 1996A 12,515 2006 4.600-4.750 1,665 540 1,125
Series 1998 4315 2018 4.700-5.000 3,085 370 2,715
Series 1998A 36,535 2019 4.000-5.250 30,405 1,850 28,555
Series 1999 4,230 2020 5.750-6.000 3,970 140 3,830
Series 2000 8,490 2020 4.500-5.000 7,915 305 7,610
Series 2000A 8,810 2021 5.250-5.375 8,555 270 8,285
Series 2000C 6,415 2020 5.000-5.500 6,415 105 6,310
Series 2001 65,195 2014 4.000-5.250 63,100 4,610 58,490
Series 2002 69,930 2023 3.000-5.500 69,930 2,345 67,585
Series 2004 29,525 2024 2.000-5.000 29,525 29,525
Subtotal $ 264275 $ 196280 $ 29525 § 11,335 § 214,470
Taxable Certificates of Obligation
Series 1996 3 6,160 2009 6.550-6.050 $ 1,825 % $ 250§ 1,575
Series 1996B 7,375 2008 6.550-6.800 1,630 285 1,345
Series 2000B 1,755 2021 7.450-7.550 1,710 50 1,660
Subtotal $ 15,290 $ 5165 § $ 585 $ 4,580
Revenue Bonds®
Series 1996 Occupancy Tax $ 182,012 2026 4.900-6.000 $ 177348  § $ 90451 § 86,897
2003 Drainage 44,150 2028 2.000-5.000 44,150 1,035 43,115
Series 2001 Municipal
Facility Corp. 14,465 2020 3.625-5.200 13,420 550 12,870
Series 2004A 10,390 2029 5.000 10,390 10,390
Series 2004B 111,425 2020 2.000-5.000 111,425 111,425
Subtotal $ 362442 $ 234918 _§ 121815 § 92,036 _$ 264,697
Total $ 1,660,560 3 1,113846 $ 184910 _§ 159,868 _$ 1,138,888
! Accretion of interest on 1988 General Improvement Refunding Bonds for Fiscal Year 2004 has resulted in an increase of $7,837 in General Obligation Bonds Payable. This increasd
is reflected on the Combined Statement of Net Assets but is not shown on above table.
2A portion of the Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 was sold as Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABS). Interest on the CABS will accrete from date of
delivery and will be payable only at maturity or redemption. Interest accreted through Fiscal Year 2004 has resulted in an increase of $11,796 in Revenue Bonds Payable.
This increase is reflected on the Combined Statement of Net Assets but is not shown on above table.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)

1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Annual Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all General Obligation Bonds, Tax Exempt Commercial Paper, Certificates of
Obligation, and Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2004, are as follows:

Principal and Interest Requirements

General Certificates of Revenue Bonds
Obligation Bonds Obligation Hotel Occupancy Tax
Year Ending Total Annual
September 30, Principal Interest Principal  Interest  Principal Interest ~ Requirements
2005 $ 44,051 $ 36,951 $ 11,665 $10457 § 2435 $ 12,446 $ 118,005
2006 44,850 34,692 11,900 9,942 3,075 12,371 116,830
2007 49,875 28,097 14,185 9,352 4,050 12,266 117,825
2008 53,370 25,584 16,370 8,645 4,725 12,123 120,817
2009 55,015 22,615 16,445 7,866 7,500 9,770 119,211
2010-2014 231,860 74,072 89,335 26,511 30,662 65,096 517,536
2015-2019 111,740 30,026 36,190 10,608 39,900 59,250 287,714
2020-2024 64,380 5,658 22,960 2,308 68,870 29,713 193,889
2025-2029 60,455 13,007 73,462
2030-2034 43,025 3,883 46,908
Total $655,141 $257,695 ! $219,050 $85,689 $264,697 2 $229,925 $§ 1,712,197
Total Principal & Interest Payable Within One Year
Principal $ 44,051 $ 11,665 $ 2,435 $ 58,151
Interest 36,951 10,457 12,446 59,854
Total $ 81,002 $ 22,122 $ 14,881 $ 118,005

I Accretion of interest on the 1998 General Improvement Bonds through the year ended
September 30, 2004, has resulted in an increase of $7,837 in General Obligation Bonds
Payable. Total interest to be accreted is reflected in the interest portion of the above table.

2 A portion of the Hotel Motel Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds (Series 1996) was sold as
Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABS). Interest on the CABS accretes from the date of delivery
and will be payable only at maturity or redemption. The interest accreted through September
30, 2004, has resulted in an increase of $11,796 in Revenue Bonds Payable. Total interest to
be accreted is reflected in the interest portion of the above table.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)

1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Authorized But Unissued General Obligation Debt
Authorization Amount Bonds Previously Bonds Authorized
Date Purpose Authorized Issued But Unissued

1-26-80 ! Drainage and Flood Control $ 21,637 $ 17,413 $ 4224
1-26-80 ! Fire Protection 4,257 2,125 2,132
1-26-80 ! Libraries 4,978 3,926 1,052
1-26-80 ! Street, Bridge, and Related Improvements 43,287 34,035 9,252
5-07-94 Street Improvements 25,600 25,600
5-07-94 Drainage Improvements 34,400 34,400
5-07-94 Parks and Recreation 41,600 41,600
5-01-99 Streets and Pedestrian Improvements 41,300 41,300
5-01-99 Drainage 19,000 19,000
5-01-99 Flood Control 12,200 12,200
5-01-99 Parks and Recreation 24,200 24,200
5-01-99 Library System 13,200 13,200
5-01-99 Public Safety 30,300 30,300
11-04-03 Street & Pedestrian 29,398 14,231 15,167
11-04-03 Drainage 18,913 6,728 12,185
11-04-03 Parks and Recreation 27,224 10,967 16,257
11-04-03 Library System 3,965 354 3,611
11-04-03 Public Health & Safety 35,500 2,405 33,095
Total $ 430,959 $ 333984 $ 96,975

!'In addition to the debt authorized on May 1, 1999, and November 2003, the City has authority pursuant to an election held on
January 26, 1980, to issue $16,660 in bonds. The City does not currently intend to issue the bonds authorized in 1980. An
additional $115,000 was authorized November 4, 2003, of which $80,315 remains to be issued.

Debt Limitation

The amount of debt that the City may incur is limited by City Charter and by the Constitution of the State of Texas.
The City Charter establishes a limitation on the general obligation debt supported by ad valorem taxes to an amount
not to exceed 10% of the total assessed valuation. The total assessed valuation for the fiscal year ending 2004 was
$49,723,286, which provides a debt ceiling of $4,972,328. The total outstanding debt that is secured by an ad
valorem tax pledge is $883,755.

The Constitution of the State of Texas provides that the ad valorem taxes levied by the City for debt service and
maintenance and operation purposes shall not exceed $2.50 for each one hundred dollars of assessed valuation of
taxable property. There is no limitation within the $2.50 rate for interest and sinking fund purposes; however, it is
the policy of the Attorney General of the State of Texas to prohibit the issuance of debt by a city if such issuance
produces debt service requirements that exceed the amount that can be paid from $1.50 tax rate calculated at 90%
collections.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Leases

The City leases property and equipment from others. Leased property having elements of ownership are recorded
in the government-wide financial statements. The related obligations, in amounts equal to the present value of
minimum lease payments payable during the remaining term of the leases, are also recorded in the government-
wide financial statements. Other leased property, not having elements of ownership, are classified as operating
leases. Both capital and operating lease payments are recorded as expenditures when matured in the
governmental fund financial statements. Total expenditures for operating leases for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004, were approximately $3,085.

The City has entered into various lease purchase agreements for the acquisition of computers, copiers, fire trucks,
golf equipment, public works equipment, a high capacity trailer, and a hazardous materials vehicle. These lease
agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of their
future minimum lease payments as of the date of inception. Payments on each of the lease purchases will be made
from budgeted annual appropriations to be approved by the City Council.

The assets acquired through capital leases for governmental activities are as follows:

Asset:
Machinery and Equipment $17,839
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (5,705)
Total $12,134

As of September 30, 2004, the City (excluding discretely presented component units) had future minimum lease
payments under capital and operating leases with a remaining term in excess of one year for governmental
activities as follows:

Leases - Governmental Activities
Capital Operating
Leases Leases Total
Governmental Activities:
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2005 $ 3,210 $ 2,483 $ 5,693
2006 1,864 2,271 4,135
2007 1,490 1,147 2,637
2008 869 652 1,521
2009 69 655 724
2010-2014 3,431 3,431
2015-2019 3,236 3,236
2020-2024 1,736 1,736
2025-2029 91 91
Future Minimum Lease Payments 7,502 $ 15,702 $ 23,204
Less: Interest (376)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments 7,126
Less: Current Portion (3,009)
Capital Leases, net of current portion $ 4117
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
2. Business-Type Long-Term Debt

Business-Type long-term debt applies to those City operations that relate to business and quasi-business activities
where net income and capital maintenance are measured (Enterprise and Internal Service Funds). Long-term debt,
which is to be repaid from proprietary funds resources, is reported in the respective proprietary fund. The long-term
indebtedness of the City’s Enterprise Funds is presented in the discussion that follows.

Airport System: The Airport System includes the City of San Antonio International Airport and Stinson Municipal
Airport and all land, buildings, structures, equipment, and facilities pertaining thereto. The Airport System’s long-
term debt is equally and ratably secured solely by a first lien on and pledge of the Gross Revenues of the Airport
System. Gross Revenues of the Airport System include all revenues of any nature derived from contracts or use
agreements with airlines and other users of the System and its facilities.

Parking System: The Parking System operation includes the ownership and operation of parking facilities, parking
lots, parking meters, and retail/office space. Long-term debt is allocated to the Parking System on a pro-rata
basis from proceeds received from the issuance of general obligation and certificate of obligation debt and is paid
from revenues derived from the operation of the Parking System. This allocated debt is additionally secured by
an ad valorem tax pledge. The bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien on and a pledge of the gross
revenues derived from the ownership and operation of the City's Parking system. The bonds are retired serially in
years 2004 to 2024 and bear interest rates from ranging from 5.000% to 5.750%.

In April 2004, the City issued $13,245 of General Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2004. Delivery of the
bonds occurred on April 13, 2004. The obligations bear interest ranging from 2.000% to 5.000% and will be retired
serially in the years 2006 through 2016. The bonds are secured by a pledge of ad valorem taxes and revenues from
certain revenue generating operations. These obligations were issued to refund $11,747 of outstanding long-term
debt, which was reported in proprietary funds.

The General Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 were utilized to finance or refinance certain parking
facilities owned and operated by the City. The Series 2004 Taxable General Improvement and Refunding Bonds are
retired serially in the years 2005 through 2016 and bear interest rates ranging from 1.400% to 4.650%.

The net proceeds from the sale of the 2004 Taxable General Improvement and Refunding Bonds, less $11 of the
original issue discount, was applied to fund an escrow fund for the redemption, discharge, and defeasance of the
refunded obligations. As a result of the 2004 refunding, the City will realize a total increase of $584 in debt service
payments. Through the transaction, the City obtained a total economic gain (difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $28.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
2. Business-Type Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The following table is a summary of changes in revenue bonds, general obligation bonds, and tax-exempt certificates
of obligation for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004.

Business-type Long-Term Debt
Balance Balance
Final Outstanding  Additions  Deletions Outstanding
Original Principal Interest October 1, During During September 30,
Issues Amount Payment  Rates (%) 2003 Year Year 2004
Airport System
Revenue Bonds:
Series 1996 $ 38,000 2014 5.700-5.750 $ 18,625 § 0 8 300 S 18,325
Series 2001 17,795 2016 5.375 17,795 17,795
Series 2002 92,470 2027 5.000-5.750 92,470 92,470
Series 2002 PFC 37,575 2027 4.000-5.750 36,800 805 35,995
Series 2003 Refunding 50,230 2013 5.500-6.000 50,230 3,870 46,360
Series 2003-A 8,175 2006 2.000-2.250 6,245 2,035 4,210
Series 2003-B 3,255 2009 2.300-3.000 3,255 3,255
Subtotal $ 247,500 $ 225420 § 0 $§ 7010 § 218,410
Parking System
Revenue Bonds:
Series 2000 $ 24,845 2024 5.000-5.750 § 24,845 § 0 3 400 38 24,445
General Obligation Bonds:
Series 1996A Refunding 495 2014 4.650-6.000 375 375
Series 1998A Refunding 1,155 2013 4.000-5.250 1,050 1,050
Series 2002 Refunding 11,370 2013 4.000-5.250 10,245 10,245
Series 2003A Refunding 805 2016 2.000-5.000 805 805
Series 2004A Refunding 13,245 2016 1.400-4.650 13,245 13,245
Tax Exempt Certificates ’
of Obligation

Series 1994 700 2004 6.000 35 35
Series 1996 1,105 2005 5.100-5.200 100 100
Subtotal $ 53,720 $§ 37455 $§ 13245 $§ 13,010 § 37,690
Total $ 301,220 $ 262,875 $ 13,245 § 20,020 $ 256,100
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
2. Business-Type Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt for the City’s Enterprise Funds related to revenue bonds,
general obligations, and certificates of obligation outstanding at September 30, 2004, are as follows:

Business-Type Long-Term Debt
Airport System Parking System
Year End
Sept. 30: Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2005 $ 839 § 11,754 § 20,144 § 1,580 § 1,790 § 3,370
2006 8,790 11,381 20,171 1,930 1,747 3,677
2007 8,750 10,987 19,737 1,720 1,692 3,412
2008 9,265 10,545 19,810 1,790 1,632 3,422
2009 10,670 10,069 20,739 1,950 1,565 3,515
2010-2014 62,290 40,458 102,748 9,890 6,724 16,614
2015-2019 43,865 23,645 67,510 9,275 4,099 13,374
2020-2024 38,170 13,631 51,801 9,555 1,710 11,265
2025-2029 28,220 3,016 31,236
Total $ 218,410  §$ 135486  $353,896 § 37,6900 § 20,959 § 58,649
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)

2. Business-Type Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Leases

The City has entered into various lease purchase agreements for the acquisition of computers, copiers, fire trucks,
golf equipment, public works equipment, a high capacity trailer, and a hazardous materials vehicle. These lease
agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of their
future minimum lease payments as of the date of inception. Payments on each of the lease purchases will be made
from budgeted annual appropriations to be approved by the City Council.

The assets acquired through capital leases for business-type activities are as follows:

Asset:
Machinery and Equipment $ 709
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (286)
Total $ 423

As of September 30, 2004, the City (excluding discretely presented component units) had future minimum
payments under capital leases with a remaining term in excess of one year for business-type activities as follows:

Leases - Business-type Activities: Nonmajor Enterprise Fund
Capital
Leases
Proprietary Activities
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2005 $ 156
2006 156
2007 117
Future Minimum Lease Payments 429
Less: Interest (23)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments 406
Less: Current Portion (143)
Capital Leases, net of current portion $ 263
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
3. Governmental and Business-Type Long-Term Debt

Long-Term Obligations and Amounts Due Within One Year

Beginning Ending Due Within
Governmental Activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds $ 666983 $§ 33570 $ 45412 $§ 655,141 $ 44,051
Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper 10,500 10,500
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 196,280 29,525 11,335 214,470 11,665
Taxable Certificates of Obligation 5,165 585 4,580
Revenue Bonds 234,918 121,815 92,036 264,697 2,435
1,113,846 184,910 159,868 1,138,888 58,151
Unamortized (Discount)/Premium 33,836 9,488 2,981 40,343 2,968
Deferred Amount on Refunding (7,913) (11,805) (3,855) (15,863) (6,714)
Total Bonds Payable 1,139,769 182,593 158,994 1,163,368 54,405
Other Liabilities:
Accrued Arbitrage Rebate Payable 1,344 151 527 968 344
Capital Leases 9,796 665 3,335 7,126 3,009
Compensated Absences 115,826 53,119 47,409 121,536 44,547
Total Other Liabilities 126,966 53,935 51,271 129,630 47,900
Total Governmental Activities
Long-term Liabilities $ 1,266,735 $ 236,528 $§ 210,265 $ 1,292998 $§ 102,305
Business-type Activities:
Bond Payable:
General Obligation Bonds $ 12,475 $ 13245 § 12475 § 13,245  $ 450
Revenue Bonds 250,265 7,410 242,855 9,520
Tax-Exempt Certificates of Obligation 135 135
262,875 13,245 20,020 256,100 9,970
Unamortized (Discount)/Premium 3,545 3 1,564 1,984
Deferred Amount on Refunding (5,151) (1,144) (610) (5,685)
Total Bonds Payable 261,269 12,104 20,974 252,399 9,970
Other Payables:
Aviation 1,595 2,783 1,294 3,084 3,084
Parking 357 286 124 519 519
Nonmajor Fund 1,061 10 1,051 1,051
Total Other Payables 3,013 3,069 1,428 4,654 4,654
Capital Leases-Nonmajor Fund 543 137 406 143
Compensated Absences 1,955 1,591 1,572 1,974 329
Total Other Liabilities 5,511 4,660 3,137 7,034 5,126
Total Business-type Activities
Long-term Liabilities $ 266780 $ 16764 § 24,111 $ 259433 § 15,096
The accreted interest through Fiscal Year 2004 has resulted in an increase of $11,796 in Hotel Tax Revenue Bonds
Payable in governmental activites and an increase of $7,837 in General Obligation Bonds Payable. The accreted interest
in the amount of $19,633 is reflected on the Statement of Net Assets but is not reflected in this table.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)

3. Governmental and Business-type Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Compensated Absences

The following is a summary of compensated absences for the year ended September 30, 2004:

Governmental Activities

Short-Term  Short-Term Total
Fund Type Available Remaining  Short-Term  Long-Term Total
Governmental Funds $ 5773 $ 38,576 $ 44349 § 75999 $ 120,348
Internal Service Funds 198 198 990 1,188

Total Governmental Activities $ 5773  $ 38774 $ 44,547 $ 76,989 $§ 121,536

Business-Type Activities

Fund Short-Term  Long-Term Total
Airport $ 174§ 872 % 1,046
Parking 18 89 107
Non-Major Fund 137 684 821

Total Business-Type Activities ~ $ 329§ 1,645 § 1,974
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
3. Governmental and Business-type Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Conduit Debt Obligations

The City facilitates the issuance of bonds to enable the San Antonio Industrial Development Authority, Health
Facilities Development Corporation and the Education Facilities Corporation (formerly known as Higher Education
Authority), component units of the City, to provide financial assistance to various entities for the acquisition,
construction, or renovation of facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the
bonds, ownership of the acquired property transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. As of September 30,
2004, there were thirty-five series of Industrial Revenue Bonds, fifteen series of Health Facilities Development
Bonds, and thirteen series of Education Facility Revenue Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the one series of Industrial Revenue Bonds, the one series of Health Facilities Development Bonds, and
the four series Education Facility Revenue Bonds issued after October 1, 1997 was $5,500, $9,200, and $65,057,
respectively.

The City also facilitates the issuance of tax-exempt revenue bonds to enable the San Antonio Housing Finance
Corporation to provide financing of residential developments for persons of low and moderate income. The bonds
are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from and secured by a pledge of rental receipts. As of
June 30, 2004, twenty-three (23) series of tax-exempt revenue bonds were outstanding, with an aggregate principal
amount payable of $131,255 and an aggregate principal amount issued of $164,320.

To provide for the acquisition and construction of certain airport facilities, the City has issued Special Facilities
Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 and Special Airport Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1999. The
bonds are payable pursuant to lease agreements, which stipulate that various commercial entities are obligated to pay
amounts to a third party trustee in-lieu of lease payments to the City. These payments are sufficient to pay when due
the principal, premium, interest on, and purchase price of the bonds. The aggregate principal amount payable for the
Special Facilities Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 and for the Special Airport Facilities Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1999 at September 30, 2004, was $0 and $4,200, respectively.

The Starbright Industrial Development Corporation was created to act on behalf of the City in the promotion and
development of commercial, industrial and manufacturing enterprises to promote and encourage employment and
the public welfare, including but not limited to the acquisition of land. The City of San Antonio, Starbright
Industrial Development Corporation Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 were issued to finance the acquisition
and conveyance of land to Toyota Motor Manufacturing North America, Inc. for the construction of a training
facility. The bonds are secured by pledged revenues and property and are payable solely from payments made by
the City sufficient to pay principal and interest on the bonds and are subject to annual budget appropriations. The
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of September 30, 2004, the
Starbright Industrial Development Corporation Contract Revenue Bonds outstanding totaled $24,685.

Neither the City, the State of Texas, nor any political subdivision is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
aforementioned bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
B. City Public Service (CPS)

As of January 31, 2004, the Bond Ordinances for New Series Bonds issued on and after August 6, 1992, contain,
among others, the following provisions:

Funds in CPS’s General Account shall be pledged and appropriated to be used in the following priority: (a) for
maintenance and operating expenses of the systems, (b) for payments of the New Series Bonds, (c) for the payment
of any obligations inferior in lien to the New Series Bonds which may be issued, (d) for an amount equal to 6% of
the gross revenues of the systems to be deposited in the Repair and Replacement Account, () for cash payments and
benefits to the City not to exceed 14% of the gross revenues of the systems, and (f) any remaining net revenues in
the General Account to the Repair and Replacement Account.

The maximum amount in cash to be transferred or credited to the General Fund of the City from the net revenues of
the systems during any fiscal year shall not exceed 14% of the gross revenues of the systems less the value of gas
and electric services of the systems used by the City for municipal purposes and the amounts expended during the
fiscal year for additions to the street lighting system. The percentage of gross revenues of the systems to be paid
over or credited to the General Fund of the City each fiscal year shall be determined (within the 14% limitation) by
the governing body of the City.

The net revenues of the systems are pledged to the payment of principal and interest on the New Series Bonds. All
New Series Bonds and the interest thereon shall have a first lien upon the net revenues of the systems.

The City agrees that it will at all times maintain rates and charges for the sales of electric energy, gas, or other
services furnished, provided, and supplied by the systems to the City and all other consumers which shall be
reasonable and nondiscriminatory and which will produce income and revenues sufficient to pay:

(a) all maintenance and operating expenses, depreciation, replacement and betterment expenses, and other costs
as may be required by Chapter 1502, as amended, Texas Government Code;

(b) the interest on and principal of all New Series Bonds, as and when the same shall become due, and for the
establishment and maintenance of the funds and accounts created for the payment and security of the New
Series Bonds;

(c) the interest on and principal of the Prior Lien Bonds, including the Junior Lien Obligations and any
Additional Junior Lien Obligations hereafter issued (all as defined in the New Series Bond Ordinances); as
and when the same shall become due, and for the establishment and maintenance of the funds and accounts
created for the payment and security of the Junior Lien Obligations and any Additional Junior Lien
Obligations;

(d) to the extent the same are reasonably anticipated to be paid with available revenues (as defined in the
ordinance authorizing the Commercial Paper), the interest on and principal of all Notes (as defined in said
ordinance), and the credit agreement (as defined in said ordinance); and

(e) alegal debt or obligation of the systems as and when the same shall become due.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
B. City Public Service (CPS) (Continued)
Revenue Bonds

A summary of revenue bonds is as follows:

City Public Service Revenue Bonds
Weighted-Average
Interest Rate on

Bond Series Outstanding Bonds 2004
Tax Exempt New Series Bonds, 1992-2003; 2005-2021 4.996% $ 2,234,160
Taxable New Series
Taxable New Series Bonds, 1998 & 2000; 2005-2021 6.696% 138,310
5.109% 2,372,470
Tax-exempt Variable Rate Series Bonds, 2003, 2029-2033 250,000
Total revenue bonds outstanding 2,622,470
Less: Current maturities of bonds 121,245
Total Revenue Bonds, net of current maturities $ 2,501,225

Principal and interest amounts due for the next five years and thereafter to maturity are:

City Public Service
Principal and Interest Requirements

Year Principal Interest Total

2005 $ 121,245  § 127,214  § 248,459

2006 127,255 121,264 248,519

2007 135,155 114,642 249,797

2008 142,155 107,662 249,817

2009 148,570 100,422 248,992
2010-2014 862,080 377,503 1,239,583
2015-2019 616,925 170,485 787,410
2020-2024 219,085 26,413 245,498
2025-2029 50,000 12,375 62,375
2030-2033 200,000 4,950 204,950

Totals $ 2,622,470 § 1,162,930 § 3,785,400
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
B. City Public Service (CPS) (Continued)

In May 2003, CPS issued $250,000 of variable rate Junior Lien Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued initially
in a weekly interest mode at par value. Of the proceeds, approximately $100,000 was issued to reimburse the
Repair and Replacement account for prior capital improvements. The mode for Junior Lien Revenue Bonds or
any portion thereof may be converted to a different mode, or to an auction rate with an interest rate period of
different duration, at the direction of the City. Following such a conversion, the Junior Lien Revenue Bonds or
portion thereof, will bear interest at the corresponding daily rate, weekly rate auction rate, commercial paper rate,
term rate, or fixed rate.

In June 2003, CPS entered into a Forward Delivery Bond Purchase Agreement to issue $350,500 of New Series
Refunding Bonds in November 2003. The bonds sold at a premium of $37,600 were issued to refund $375,500
of 1994-A New Series Bonds. The refunding transaction resulted in cash flow savings of $32,900, which equated
to a present value savings of $24,000, or 6.39% of the par amount of refunded bonds. This transaction resulted in
a loss for accounting purposes of $10,600, which has been deferred and will be amortized over the shorter of the
life of the refunded or refunding bonds.

In July 2003, CPS issued $93,900 of New Series 2003A Revenue Refunding Bonds. The bonds were sold at a
premium of $11,000 and were issued to advance refund $24,400 of 1994-A New Series Bonds, and $71,600 of
1995 New Series bonds. The refunding transaction resulted in a cash flow savings of $15,900, which equated to
a present value savings of $5,800, or 6.09% of the par amount of the refunded bonds. This transaction resulted in
a loss for accounting purposes of $7,900, which has been deferred and will be amortized over the shorter of the
life of the refunded or refunding bonds.

In August 2002, $144,200 par value of 1997 Revenue and Refunding Bonds were legally defeased with cash.
The net accounting loss of $7,100 reported included $149,700 paid for the actual defeasance, less the par value of
the debt, plus unamortized reacquisition and bond issue costs net of float forward agreement proceeds of $1,600.

In September 2002, CPS issued $576,700 of Revenue and Refunding Bonds to refund $445,100 in certain
outstanding New Series Bonds and to reimburse prior construction expenditures of $150,000. The bonds were
sold at a combined net premium of $56,800.

The refunding bonds were issued to current refund $48,700 of 1992 New Series Bonds and advance refund
$396,300 of other New Series Bonds. The refunding transaction resulted in cash flow savings of $24,100, which
equated to a present value savings of $18,100, or 4.06% of the par amount of refunded bonds. This transaction
resulted in a loss for accounting purposes of $34,400, which has been deferred and will be amortized over the
shorter of life of the refunded or refunding bonds.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

C. City Public Service (CPS) (Continued)

Long-Term Debt Activity
Balance Balance
Final Interest Outstanding ~ Additions Decreases Outstanding
Original Principal ~ Rates February 1, During During January 31,
Issue Amount Payment (%) 2003 Year Year 2004

Revenue and Refunding Bonds
1992 Tax-exempt $ 700,805 2017 6.048 8§ 68,860 S $ 3 68,860
1994-A Tax-exempt 684,700 2014 5.008 505,150 436,185 68,965
1994-C Tax-exempt 56,000 2006 5.008 42,710 42,710
1995 Tax-exempt 125,000 2018 5.500 90,200 75,400 14,800
1997 Tax-exempt 350,000 2020 5.738 169,715 169,715
1997 Tax-exempt 311,170 2014 5.509 115,090 12,035 103,055
1998A Tax-exempt 785,515 2021 4918 650,400 31,370 619,030
1998B Taxable 99,615 2020 6.343 93,650 1,835 91,815
2000A Tax-exempt 170,770 2017 5.374 23,875 4,410 19,465
2000B Taxable 50,425 2021 7.403 47,890 1,395 46,495
2001 Tax-exempt 115,280 2011 3.843 115,280 8,850 106,430
2002 Tax-exempt 436,090 2017 4.055 436,090 436,090
2002 Tax-exempt 140,615 2020 4.751 140,615 140,615
2003 Tax-exempt Junior Lien 250,000 2033 Variable 250,000 250,000
2003 A Tax-exempt 93,935 2014 3.675 93,935 93,935
2003 Tax-exempt 350,490 2013 3.081 350,490 350,490

2,499,525 694,425 571,480 2,622,470
Less Bond current maturities 100,015 21,230 121,245
Less Bond discount/(premium) (62,490) (48,645) (7,179) (103,956)
Less Bond acquisition costs 159,744 43,157 44180 158,721
Revenue Bonds, Net 2,302,256 678,683 534,479 2,446,460
Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper (TECP) 350,000 350,000
Long-term Debt, Net $ 2,652,256 $§ 678,683 § 534479 $ 2,796,460
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

On April 30, 1992, City Ordinance No. 75686 was adopted. This ordinance authorized the issuance of $635,925
Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992, dated April 15, 1992. These bonds were issued to refund in
advance of maturity $253,065 Water Revenue Bonds authorized and outstanding under terms of City Ordinance No.
52091, $330,125 of Sewer Revenue Bonds authorized and outstanding under terms of City Ordinance No. 51975,
$14,500 of other bonded debt of annexed water districts, and $49,200 of Sewer System Commercial Paper. The
purpose of this advance refunding was to release and discharge the covenants contained in City Ordinance No.
52091 and No. 51975 in order to permit the City to consolidate the operations of the water related utilities.

The System: City Ordinance No. 75686 defines SAWS as all properties, facilities, plants owned, operated and
maintained by the City and/or the Board of Trustees, for the supply, treatment, transmission, and distribution of
treated potable water, chilled water and steam, for the collection and treatment of wastewater and for water reuse,
together with all future extensions, improvements, purchases, repairs, replacements and additions thereto, and any
other projects and programs of SAWS; however, the City retains the right to incorporate a stormwater system as
provided by the Texas Local Government Code. See “Stormwater” below.

Funds Flow: City Ordinance No. 75686 requires that Gross Revenues of SAWS be applied in sequence to: (1)
current maintenance and operating expenses including a two-month reserve based upon the budgeted amount of
maintenance and operating expenses for the current fiscal year; (2) Debt Service Fund requirements of Senior Lien
Obligations; (3) Reserve Fund requirements of Senior Lien Obligations; (4) Interest and Sinking Fund and Reserve
Fund requirements of Junior Lien Obligations; (5) Interest and Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund requirements of
Subordinate Lien Obligations; (6) Payment of amounts required on Inferior Lien Obligations; and (7) Transfers to
the City’s General Fund and to the Renewal and Replacement Fund.

Reuse Contract: SAWS has a contract with City Public Service, the City owned electricity and gas utility, for the
provision of reuse water. The revenues derived from the contract have been restricted in use to only reuse activities,
and are excluded from the calculation of Gross Revenues, and are not included in any transfers to the City’s General
Fund. Revenues derived from this contract were $2,000 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2003.

SAWS is developing a recycled water system that will provide non-potable water to various customers now using
Edwards Aquifer water. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, SAWS generated an additional
$2,456 in revenue from sales of recycled water. Revenue from recycled water sales is recorded as revenue of SAWS
and has the same restrictions as the reuse contract.

Stormwater: In addition to the water related utilities which the Board has under its control, the City Council
approved Ordinance No. 77949 on May 13, 1993, which established initial responsibilities over the Stormwater
Program with the System and adopts a schedule of rates to be charged for stormwater services and programs. The
Stormwater Program is deemed to not be a part of SAWS as the term is defined in City Ordinance No. 75686.
Accordingly, operations of the Stormwater Program are not considered when determining compliance with debt
covenants contained in City Ordinance 75686 or in calculating payments to be made to the City. In fiscal year 1997,
the City Council placed the administrative responsibility with its own staff and entered into an interlocal agreement
with SAWS for the provision of services related to certain water quality monitoring functions.

No Free Service: City Ordinance No. 75686 also provides for no free services except for municipal fire-fighting
purposes.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)
Revenue Bonds

On March 27, 2003, SAWS issued $72,500 of City of San Antonio Water System Subordinate Lien Revenue and
Refunding Bonds Series 2003-A, and $50,000 City of San Antonio Water System Subordinate Lien Revenue and
Refunding Bonds Series 2003-B for a total principal amount of $122,500 in the variable rate bond market. The
proceeds of the bonds were used (i) to provide funds for the purposes of acquiring, purchasing, constructing,
improving, renovating, enlarging, and equipping the System, (ii) refund $76,000 in outstanding commercial paper
notes, and (iii) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. Since the proceeds were used to convert debt from short-term to
long-term, there is no economic gain or loss associated with the refunding.

The City of San Antonio Water System Subordinate Lien Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2003-A and Series
2003-B were issued in the variable rate bond market and SAWS entered into an interest rate hedge agreement, which
fixed the interest rate and realized a savings in comparison to a traditional fixed rate financing. This synthetic fixed
rate, as obtained with the interest rate hedge agreement, provides a more favorable cost of capital to SAWS.

On August 26, 2003, SAWS issued $34,000 City of San Antonio Water System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds Series
2003 with the Texas Water Development Board. The bonds were sold under the Federal Cross Cutter Program with
interest rates ranging from 0% - 3.10%. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds were used to (i) finance capital
improvement projects which qualify under the Texas Water Development Board Program and (ii) pay the cost of
issuance. The bonds are secured together with other currently outstanding Junior Lien Obligations solely by a lien
on a pledge of net revenues and are subordinate to outstanding Senior Lien Obligations.

Senior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, comprised of Series 1996, Series 1997, Series 1999, Series 2001, Series
2002, and Series 2002-A outstanding in the amounts of $739,115 are collateralized by a senior lien and pledge of
Gross Revenues of SAWS after deducting and paying the current expenses of operation and maintenance of SAWS
and maintaining an operating reserve for operating and maintenance expenses. At December 31, 2003, these bonds
are due in varying amounts, from a low of $955 in 2004 to a high of $58,405 in 2028.

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, comprised of Series 1999, Series 1999-A, Series 2001, and Series
2001-A, Series 2002, Series 2002-A and Series 2003 outstanding in the amount of $186,830 at December 31,
2003, and are collateralized by a junior lien and pledge of the gross revenues of SAWS after deducting and paying
the current expenses of operation and maintenance of SAWS, maintaining an operating reserve for operating and
maintenance expenses, and debt service on senior lien debt. At December 31, 2003, the Junior Lien bonds were due
in varying amounts, from a low of $2,720 in 2023 to a high of $15,295 in 2019.

Subordinate Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, comprised of Series 2003-A and 2003-B outstanding in the amount
of $122,500 at December 31, 2003, are collateralized by a subordinate lien and pledge of the Gross Revenues of
SAWS after deducting and paying the current expenses of operation and maintenance expenses, and debt service on
senior lien and junior lien debt. At December 31, 2003, the Subordinate Lien Bonds are due in varying amounts,
from a low of $1,985 in 2004 to a high of $7,240 in 2033.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Revenue bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

San Antonio Water System

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Build, improve, extend, enlarge, and repair the System  0.00-6.25% $ 1,048,445

The following summarizes transactions of the revenue bonds for the year ended December 31, 2003:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Due Within
Jan. 1, 2003 Additions Reductions Dec. 31, 2003 One Year
Bonds Payable $ 897,460 § 156,500 § (5,515) $ 1,048,445 §$ 7,735
Deferred Amounts
For issuance discounts/
premiums/losses (30,746) (270) 1,214  § (29,802)
Total Bonds Payable, Net $ 866,714 $§ 156,230 § (4,301) $ 1,018,643 $ 7,735
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements are shown as follows:

San Antonio Water System
Annual Debt Service Requirements
Revenue Bonds
Subordinate Lien Junior Lien Senior Lien
Year Ended Revenue and Revenue and Revenue and
December 31, Refunding Bonds Refunding Bonds Refunding Bonds
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2004 $ 1985 $§ 5,120 § 4,795 § 6318 § 955 § 38,773
2005 2,080 5,038 4,935 6,168 9,480 38,538
2006 2,170 4,951 5,090 6,008 15,145 37,908
2007 2,275 4,860 7,840 5,806 13,310 37,113
2008 2,375 4,764 8,075 5,558 17,210 36,274
2009-2013 13,615 22,240 54,855 23,058 93,670 167,236
2014-2018 17,005 19,123 65,210 12,729 118,310 139,379
2019-2023 21,250 15,231 36,030 2,174 178,825 101,060
2024-2028 26,560 10,365 259,285 42,680
2029-2033 33,185 4,285 32,925 3,395
Total $ 122,500 $95977 § 186,830 §$ 67,819 $ 739,115 § 642,356

Capitalized Interest Costs

Interest costs incurred on revenue bonds and short-term commercial paper debt totaled $50,688 during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2003, of which $13,714 was capitalized as part of the cost of SAWS’ utility plant
additions.

Leases

SAWS entered into various lease agreements for financing the acquisition of computer equipment and heavy
equipment. These lease agreements meet the requirements of capital leases for accounting purposes and therefore,
are recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. The terms of the
leases are from two to five years with payments of $29,097 monthly and $341,430 annually. The annual percentage
rate of the leases ranges from 5.5% to 7.5%. At the end of the respective lease terms, the ownership of the
equipment transfers to SAWS or SAWS has the option to purchase the equipment. SAWS recorded capital leases
related to computer equipment and heavy equipment in the amount of $401,654 and $570,487, respectively. Please
note the amounts in this paragraph are not stated in thousands.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations as of December 31, 2003, are as follows:

San Antonio Water System
Minimum Lease Obligation

Year Ending Total Annual

December 31,  Principal Interest Requirements
2004 $ 311 $ 30 $ 341
2005 262 12 274
2006 8 8
Total $ 581 $ 42 $ 623

Note Payable

During fiscal year 2000, a contract was entered into between SAWS and CPS whereby SAWS acquired water rights
from certain CPS properties. A note was signed for 116 payments of $40 at an interest rate of 7.5%. Total
payments on this note are $4,640 including interest. The liability as of December 31, 2003, is included in the
statement of net assets for both the current portion of $336 and long-term amount of $1,742. The annual principal
and interest requirements are as follows:

San Antonio Water System
Principal and Interest Requirements
Year Ending Total Annual
December 31, Principal Interest Requirements
2004 $ 336§ 144 480
2005 362 118 480
2006 390 90 480
2007 420 60 480
2008 452 28 480
2009 118 2 120
Total $ 2078 § 442§ 2,520
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7. COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
A. Primary Government (City)
Commercial Paper

On November 9, 2000, the City Council approved issuance of $35,000 Sales Tax Commercial Paper Notes, Series
A. The proceeds from the sale of the Notes are to provide for the planning, acquisition, establishment, development,
construction, and renovation of the “Parks Development and Expansion Venue Project” authorized at an election
held on May 6, 2000 which includes the acquisition of open space over the Edwards Aquifer Recharge Zone and
linear parks along Leon Creek and Salado Creek, and the construction of improvements or additions to such Open
Space Parks and Linear Parks. The Notes were supported by an irrevocable direct-pay Letter of Credit, dated as of
December 5, 2000, issued by Landesbank Hessen-Thuringen Girozentrale, acting through its New York Bank
(Helaba or the Bank). The Letter of Credit in an amount equal to $37,589 enabled the City to pay at maturity the
principal amount of the Notes plus up to 270 days interest.

The City sold $32,700 in Sales Tax Revenue Commercial Paper Notes in fiscal year 2001.

The City made the determination that it would not renew the existing Letter of Credit and Reimbursement
Agreement, which was due to, expire on November 30, 2003, pertaining to the City’s existing Sales Tax
Commercial Paper Program (the “Program”). The City made the determination that it would not take the actions at
that point in time to secure a substitute credit provider for the Program, it paid from lawfully available funds on hand
all outstanding notes at maturity (outstanding in the principal amount of $10,500 scheduled to mature on November
3, 2003, November 5, 2003, and November 7, 2003), and it will not issue any additional Commercial Paper Notes.

Revolving Line of Credit

The City uses a revolving line of credit for the Housing Asset Recovery Program. The line of credit is used to
preserve housing stock and to revitalize neighborhoods by renovating and rehabilitating property owned by the
City that is acquired through various programs (i.e. flood buyouts, facilities expansion, etc.). The City intends to
finance their repayment with the proceeds received from the sale of the renovated houses. The amount of the line
of credit is $1,250, of which $301 was outstanding as of September 30, 2004.

Revolving Line of Credit

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 331 $ 8 3 38§ 301

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally)

(amounts are expressed in thousands)



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —-86—

7. COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
B. City Public Service (CPS)
Commercial Paper

In 1988, the City Council adopted an ordinance authorizing the issuance of up to $300,000 in Tax-Exempt
Commercial Paper (TECP). This ordinance, as amended in June 1997, provides for funding to assist in the
financing of eligible projects, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $450,000. Eligible projects include fuel
acquisition, capital improvements to the utility systems (the Systems), and refinancing or refunding any
outstanding obligations that are secured by and payable from a lien on and/or a pledge of net revenues of the
Systems. The program’s scheduled maximum maturities will not extend beyond November 1, 2028.

The TECP has been classified as long-term in accordance with the refinancing terms under a revolving credit
agreement with a consortium of banks, which supports the commercial paper. Under the terms of the agreement,
CPS may borrow up to an aggregate amount not to exceed $350,000 for the purpose of paying principal due under
the TECP. The credit agreement has a term of two years, currently extended until November 1, 2005, and may be
renewed for additional periods.

To date, there have been no borrowings under the credit agreement. The TECP is secured by the net revenues of the
Systems. Such pledge of net revenues is subordinate and inferior to the pledge securing payment of existing New
Series Bonds and any to be issued in the future.

As of January 31, 2004, a summary of TECP is as follows:

TECP Outstanding $ 350,000
Weighted-average interest rate of outstanding TECP, approximate 1.01%
Average life of outstanding TECP (approximate number of days) 86
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7. COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

Commercial Paper

SAWS maintains a Commercial Paper Program that is used to provide funds for the interim financing of a portion of
capital improvements to the System.

On January 11, 2001, the City Council approved the expansion of the TECP Program (Tax Exempt Commercial
Paper) from $175,000 to $350,000. The increase in the program provides interim financing for the increased level
of future expenditures on water resource projects. Notes payable under the program cannot exceed maturities of 270
days and scheduled maturities of the short-term borrowing under the Commercial Paper Program may not extend
past May 14, 2032.

The City has covenanted in the ordinance authorizing the Commercial Paper Program (the “Note Ordinance”) to
maintain at all times credit facilities with banks or other financial institutions which would provide available
borrowing sufficient to pay the principal of the Commercial Paper Program. The credit facility is maintained under
the terms of a revolving credit agreement.

To further support the issuance of the Commercial Paper Program, on June 2, 2001, the City entered into the
agreements with the following:
e Dealer Agreements with Goldman, Sachs & Co., J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., and Ramirez & Co., Inc.
e Revolving Credit Agreement with Westdeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale and Landesbank Baden
Wurttemberg.
e Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement with Bank One, National Association Chicago, Illinois.

The borrowings under the Commercial Paper Program are equally and ratably secured by and are payable from (i)
the proceeds from the sale of bonds or additional borrowing under the Commercial Paper Program and (ii)
borrowing under and pursuant to the revolving credit agreement.

Commercial paper notes of $269,000 are outstanding as of December 31, 2003. The proceeds of the notes have been
used solely for financing of capital improvements of SAWS. The tax exempt commercial paper notes have been
classified as long-term in accordance with the refinancing terms of the Credit Agreement and since management
intends to continue the remarketing of the tax exempt commercial paper notes to maintain a portion of its debt in
variable rates. Interest rates on the notes outstanding at year-end range from .90% to 1.20% and from 10 to 132 days
in maturity. (The outstanding notes at December 31, 2003, had an average rate of 1.05% and averaged 55 days to
maturity.)

The following summarizes transactions of the commercial paper program for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Due Within
Jan. 1, 2003 Additions  Reductions Dec. 31,2003  One Year
Commercial Paper Notes $255,000 $90,000 $76,000 $269,000 $0
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS
A. General Plan Information

The City of San Antonio, SAWS, and CPS participate in several contributory retirement plans. These are funded
plans covering substantial full-time employees. Payroll and contribution information as of the year-end for each
entity is presented below:

Contributory Pension and Retirement Plans
Covered Employee Employer Total
Entity Title Type of Plan Payroll ~ Contribution Contribution Contributions
City Fire and Police Single Employer
Pension Fund Defined Benefit
Plan $ 194647 $ 24129 § 48038 § 72,167
Texas Non Traditional
Municipal Hybrid
Retirement Defined Benefit
System (TMRS)  Agent Plan $ 199,180 11,952 23,062 35,014
Component Units:
SAWS "Texas Non Traditional
Municipal Defined
Retirement Contribution Not
System (TMRS)  Agent Plan Available 1,736 1,905 3,641
2PMLIC Agent Multiple
Contract Employer
Defined Benefit
Plan $ 55304 3,324 3,324
CPS ’CPS All Single
Employees Plan ~ Employer
Defined Benefit
Plan $ 186,732 9,032 7,959 16,991
'Plan year ended December 31, 2003
? Plan year ended December 31, 2003
? Fiscal year ended January 31, 2004
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
B. Primary Government (City)
Fire and Police Pension Plan

The Pension Fund is a single-employer defined benefit retirement plan established in accordance with the laws of
the State of Texas. The City provides retirement benefits for all eligible full-time Fire and Police employees through
the Pension Fund. Employees who terminate, having five to twenty years of service, may apply to receive a refund
of their original contribution. Employees retiring who have served and contributed for twenty years or more shall,
upon application to the Board of Trustees of the Pension Fund, receive a retirement pension based on the average of
the employee's total salary, excluding overtime pay, for the highest three years of pay of the last five years of
service. The retirement annuity for employees retiring after September 30, 2001, is computed at the rate of 2.25% of
this average for each of the first twenty years of service, plus 4.5% of the member’s average total salary for each of
the next seven years, plus 3% of the member’s average total salary for each of the next three years of service, plus
0.5% of the member’s average total salary for each of the next four years of service, with fractional years of service
prorated based on full months served as a contributing member. In making the computation for a year, the year is
considered to begin on the first day a contribution is made. A retirement annuity under this subsection may not
exceed, as of the date of retirement, 87.5% of the member’s average total salary.

An employee with twenty years and one month of actual service credit may at the time of retirement elect a
Backward Deferred Retirement Option Plan (Back DROP). The Back DROP election results in a lump sum
payment equal to the number of full months of service elected by an employee that does not exceed the lesser of the
number of months of service credit the employee had in excess of twenty years or thirty-six months and a reduced

annuity payment.

There is also a provision for a 13" and a 14" pension check. The Board may authorize the disbursement of a 13®
monthly pension check if the yield on the Pension Fund’s investments exceeds the actuarial projections for the
preceding five year period by at least 100 basis points. The Board may authorize a 14" monthly pension check if the
yield on the Pension Fund’s investments exceeds the actuarial projections for the preceding five year period by at
least 300 basis points. The 13" and 14™ pension checks are paid to each retiree and beneficiary receiving a pension
at the time of the disbursement and are in an amount equal to the pension check paid in the last month of the
preceding fiscal year of the Pension Fund (retirees/beneficiaries with less than one year of benefits will receive a
prorated check, and no check will be paid to members who retired after the end of the fiscal year).

If service is terminated by reason of death or disability, the employee's beneficiary or the employee shall be entitled
to one-half of the average of the employee’s total salary, excluding overtime pay, based on the same number of years
of the member’s pay as used to compute normal retirement benefits. If a member is killed in the line of duty, the
member’s surviving spouse and dependent children are entitled to a pension based upon actual base salary at time of
death.

The Pension Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplemental information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Fire and Police Pension Fund of San
Antonio, 311 Roosevelt, San Antonio, Texas 78210-2700 or by calling (210) 534-3262.

Contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by State statute. In
the current year, the City contributed 24.64% of covered payroll and employees contributed 12.32% of covered
payroll. The employer's required contribution of $48,038 and the employee's required contribution of $24,129 were
made to the Pension Fund. (See summary of contribution information at Part A of this footnote).
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
B. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
Fire and Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Effective October 1, 2001, in addition to the changes for credited service and the 14™ check as mentioned
previously, other new provisions include allowing the surviving spouse of an active member to elect to receive
benefits in the form of a lump-sum payment and reduced annuity, similar to a Back DROP election made by a
retiring member, increasing the maximum benefit for surviving spouses and dependent children equal to a 27 year
pension, and increasing cost-of-living increases for all retirees who retired between August 30, 1971 and October 1,
1991.

For the year ended September 30, 2004, the City’s annual pension cost of $48,038 for the Pension Fund was equal to
the City’s required and actual contributions. The annual required contribution was determined as part of the October
2003 actuarial valuation using the entry-age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 8%
investment rate of return, and (b) projected salary increase of 5.5% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation
component of 4.5%. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-
term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The Pension Fund’s unfunded actuarial
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization
period at October 1, 2003, was 28.0 years.

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)

The City provides benefits for all eligible employees (excluding firefighters and police officers) through a
nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the TMRS. The TMRS is a statewide agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement system created by law in 1948 to provide retirement and disability
benefits to city employees. It is the opinion of the TMRS management that the plans in TMRS are substantially
defined benefit plans, but they have elected to provide additional voluntary disclosure to help foster a better
understanding of some of the nontraditional characteristics of the plan.

TMRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial information related to participating
municipalities. The report may be obtained by writing to the TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, Texas 78714-
9153 or calling (512) 476-7577.

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the City financed
monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, the City granted monetary credits for service rendered
before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been contributed by the
employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. Monetary credits for service since the plan began are a
percentage of the employee's accumulated contributions. In addition, the City may grant, as often as annually,
another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated service credit. This is a theoretical amount which, when
added to the employee's accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would
be the total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the current employee
contribution rate and City matching percent had always been in existence and if the employee's salary had always
been the average salary for the last three years. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the
employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the City-financed monetary credits with interest were used
to purchase an annuity.

Members are eligible to retire upon attaining the normal retirement age of 60 and above with 5 or more years of
service or with 20 years of service regardless of age. The plan also provides death and disability benefits. A
member is vested after 5 years, but must leave accumulated contributions in the plan. If a member withdraws the
contributions with interest, the member would not be entitled to the City-financed monetary credits, even if vested.
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
B. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) (Continued)

The plan provisions and contribution requirements are adopted by the governing body of the City within the options
available in the state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes.

Contribution requirements are actuarially determined by TMRS’s actuary (See summary of TMRS Actuarial
Assumptions and Methods in Part F of this footnote). The contribution rate for the City's employees is 6% and the
matching percent is currently 11.63%, both as adopted by the governing body of the City. (See summary of
contribution information in Part A of this footnote). Under the state law governing TMRS, the Employer's
Contribution rates are annually determined by the actuary. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate
and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year.
The normal cost contribution finances the currently accruing monetary credits due to the City matching percent,
which are the obligation of the City as of an employee’s retirement date, not at the time the employee’s contributions
are made. The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the
obligation of the City to each employee at the time the employee’s retirement becomes effective. The prior service
contribution rate amortizes the unfunded actuarial liability over the remainder of the plan’s twenty-five year
amortization period. When the City periodically adopts updated service credits and increases annuities in effect, the
increased unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized over a new twenty-five year period. Currently, the
unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized over a constant twenty-five year period as a level percent of payroll.
Contributions are made monthly by both the employees and the City. All current year required contributions of the
employees and the City were made to TMRS. Due to the fact that the City requires the contribution rates in advance
for budget purposes, there is a one-year lag between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the
calendar year when the rate goes into effect.

C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

SAWS’ retirement program includes benefits provided by the Texas Municipal Retirement System, a contract with
Principal Mutual Life Insurance Company, and Social Security.

Covered employees are eligible to retire upon attaining the normal retirement age of 65. An employee may elect
early retirement, with reduced benefits, upon attainment of:

1. 20 Years of credited service regardless of age, or
2. 25 Years of credited service and at least age 50, or
3. 10 Years of credited service and at least age 60.

The normal retirement benefit is based upon two factors, average compensation and years of credited service.
Average Compensation is defined as the monthly average of total compensation received for the three consecutive
years ending December 31, out of the latest ten compensation years prior to normal retirement date which gives the
highest average.

The normal retirement benefit under the Principal Mutual contract is equal to:
1. 1.2% of the Average Compensation, times years of credited service not in excess of 25 years, plus
2. 0.75% of the Average Compensation, times years of credited service in excess of 25 years but not in excess of

35 years, plus
3. 0.375% of the Average Compensation, times years of credited service in excess of 35 years.
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)

Upon retirement, an employee must select from one of seven alternative payment plans. Each payment plan
provides for monthly payments as long as the retired employee lives. The options available address how plan
benefits are to be distributed to the designated beneficiary of the retired employee. The program also provides death
and disability benefits. The following information related to the Texas Municipal Retirement System and Principal
Mutual Life Insurance has been prepared as of January 1, 2002.

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)

SAWS provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, joint contributory,
defined benefit plan in the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. The TMRS was established in 1948 as a retirement and disability pension system for
municipal employees in the State of Texas, and is administered in accordance with the Texas Municipal Retirement
System Act. It is the opinion of the TMRS management that the plans in the TMRS are substantially defined benefit
plans, but they have elected to provide additional voluntary disclosure to help foster a better understanding of some
of the nontraditional characteristics of the plan.

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the SAWS-financed
monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, SAWS granted monetary credits for service rendered
before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been contributed by the
employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. Monetary credits for service since the plan began are a
percent (100%, 150%, and 200%) of the employee's accumulated contributions. In addition, SAWS may grant, as
often as annually, another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated service credit which is a theoretical
amount which, when added to the employee's accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since
the plan began, would be the total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the
current employee contribution rate and SAWS matching percent had always been in existence and if the employee's
salary had always been the average salary for the last three years that are one year before the effective date. At
retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the
employer-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity.

Members can retire at age 60 and above with 5 or more years of service or with 20 years of service regardless of age.
A member is vested after 5 years. The plan provisions and contribution requirements are adopted by SAWS within
the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes.

Contribution requirements are actuarially determined by TMRS’s Actuary (See Summary of TMRS’s Actuarial
Assumptions and Methods in Part F of this footnote). The contribution rate for the employees is 3% of salary, and
SAWS matching rate approximates 100% of the employee rate, both as adopted by the SAWS. Under the state law
governing TMRS, SAWS’ contribution rate is annually determined by the actuary. This rate consists of the normal
cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate, both of which are calculated to be a level percent
of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing monetary credits due
to SAWS’ matching percent, which are the obligation of SAWS as of an employee’s retirement date not at the time
the employee’s contributions are made. The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of
payroll necessary to satisfy the obligation of SAWS to each employee at the time his/her retirement becomes
effective. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the
remainder of the plan’s 25-year amortization period.
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) (Continued)

When SAWS periodically adopts updated service credits and increases the annuities in effect, the increased
unfunded actuarial liability is to be amortized over a new twenty-five year period. Currently, the unfunded actuarial
liability is to be amortized over the twenty-five year period. The unit credit actuarial cost method is used for
determining SAWS contribution rate.

Contributions are made monthly by both the employees and SAWS. Since SAWS needs to know its contribution
rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for
the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. Significant assumptions used in the actuarial valuation
of annual required contributions include a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.0% per
year. Additionally, there is no need to project salary increases since the benefit credits earned for service to date are
not dependent on future salaries. Likewise, inflation and cost-of-living adjustments are not accounted for in the
actuarial study. Assets are valued at amortized cost.

Principal Mutual Life Insurance Company

The contract with Principal Mutual Life Insurance Company (PMLIC) serves as a supplement to the TMRS and
Social Security benefits. SAWS’ covered payroll at January 1, 2003, under this contract was $55,364.

SAWS provides supplemental pension benefits for all persons customarily employed at least 20 hours per week and
five months per year through this defined benefit plan. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan on January 1
of the calendar year following date of hire. An employee covered by the plan may vest a portion of the plan benefits
if termination occurs after sufficient years of service have been credited. The plan allows an employee to accrue
vesting benefits as follows:

Years of Service Vested Percentage
Less than 5 0%
5 50%
6 60%
7 70%
8 80%
9 90%
10 or more 100%

An employee is automatically 100% vested upon attainment of age 65 or upon becoming totally and permanently
disabled.

Benefits for retired employees are fully guaranteed at retirement. The pension plans unallocated insurance
contracts are valued at contract value. Contract value represents contributions made under the contract, plus
interest at the contract rate, less funds used to purchase annuities or pay administrative expenses charged by
Principal Life Insurance Co. The plan provisions and contribution requirements are governed by SAWS, which
may amend plan provisions and is responsible for the management of plan assets.

Significant assumptions used by PMLIC's actuary to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirements

include: (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.25% per year, and (b) salary scale
from Table S-5 of the Actuary’s Pension Handbook, plus 3.4%.
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C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS) (Continued)
Principal Mutual Life Insurance Company (Continued)

The PMLIC contract funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions so that sufficient
assets will be available to pay benefits when due. The actuarial cost method is known as the Entry Age Normal-
Frozen Initial Liability Method. This method spreads the total cost of the projected pension benefits for each
employee evenly from the date the employee is first eligible for the plan to the employee's assumed retirement date.
As plan benefits are related to compensation, the cost is spread as a level percentage of compensation. The total of
annual amounts for all employees combined is called the Normal Cost. The employee’s Entry Age is determined as
if the plan had always been in existence. Thus, as of the plan effective date, there are some accumulated Normal
Costs for past years that have not been paid. The value of these costs is called the Frozen Initial Liability.

In subsequent years the Frozen Initial Liability is reduced by employer deposits to the plan in excess of employer
Normal Cost and interest requirements. This reduced amount is known as the Unfunded Frozen Initial Liability.
Contribution requirements are established and may be amended by SAWS. Active members are not required to
contribute to the plan. Any obligation with respect to the pension plan shall be paid by SAWS. The actuarial
valuation, which was performed for the plan year, ended December 31, 2002 reflects an unfunded frozen initial
liability of $10,692.

The PMLIC issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplemental
information. That report may be obtained by writing to Principal Life Insurance Company, Pension Diversified
Retirement Services, Des Moines, Iowa 50392-0001 or by calling (515) 247-5111.

D. City Public Service (CPS)
All Employee Plan

The CPS Pension Plan is a self-administered, single-employer, defined-benefit contributory pension plan (Plan)
covering substantially all employees who have completed one year of service. Normal retirement is age 65;
however, early retirement is available with 25 years of benefit service and to those employees who are ages 55 or
older with at least 10 years of benefit service. Retirement benefits are based on length of service and
compensation, and benefits are reduced for retirement before age 55 with 25 years or more of benefit service, or
age 62 with less than 25 years of service.

The Plan and contribution requirements are sponsored by and may be amended by CPS, acting by and through the
General Manager and Chief Executive Officer of CPS. The Plan assets are held in a separate trust that is
annually audited and which financial statements include historical trend information. Additional information
may be obtained by writing the Employee Benefits Division of CPS, P.O. Box 1771, San Antonio, Texas 78296
or by calling (210) 978-2484.

Funding levels are established through annual actuarial evaluations and recommendations of an
Administrative/Investment Committee, using both employee and employer contributions. Participating employees
contribute 5% of their total compensation and are fully vested after completing 7 years of credited service or at age
40. The balance of contributions made amounted to 4.3% and is the responsibility of CPS, considering actuarial
information, budgetary compliance, and the need to amend the Plan with legal requirements. (See Summary of
Contribution Information at Part A of this footnote).
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
D. City Public Service (CPS) (Continued)
All Employee Plan (Continued)

As calculated under GASB Statement No. 27, CPS’ annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the fiscal
year ended January 31, 2004, was $7,651. The annual required contribution was determined as part of the
January 1, 2003, actuarial valuation using (a) the five-year smoothed market method for asset valuation, (b) the
projected unit credit for pension cost, and (c) the level dollar open for amortization. The remaining amortization
period is 10.16 years and is calculated using the level dollar open amortization method.

Significant actuarial assumptions used for the January 1, 2003, actuarial valuation include (a) a rate of return on
the investment of present and future assets of 8.5% per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases
averaging 5.0%, and (c) post-retirement cost-of-living increases of 2.0%. The projected salary increases include
an inflation rate of 4.0%.

E. Three Year Trend Information

Trend information compares the annual required contribution to annual pension cost and the resultant net pension
obligation as required by GASB Statement No. 27.

Three Year Trend Infor
Interest on Net Pension Net Pension
Annual Net Annual Obligation at Obligation Percentage
Required Pension Adjustment Pension Contributions Increase Beginning at End of
Fiscal Contribution Obligation To Cost In relation to (Decrease) of of APC
Pension Plan Year (ARC) (NPO) ARC (APC) ARC in NPO Year Year Contributed

Fire and Police 2002 43,615 43,615 (43,615) 100%
Pension-City of 2003 45,008 45,008 (45,008) 100%
San Antonio 2004 48,038 48,038 (48,038) 100%
TMRS- 2002 23,147 23,147 (23,147) 100%
City of 2003 22,684 22,684 (22,684) 100%
San Antonio 2004 23,062 23,062 (23,062) 100%
CPS All 2002 660 8 (14) 654 (753) (99) 9 115%
Enployee Plan ' 2003 4921 4,921 (4,921) 100%

2004 7,651 7,651 (7,651) 100%
TMRS- 2001 1,044 1,044 (1,044) 100%
SAWS * 2002 1,772 1,772 (1,772) 100%

2003 1,905 1,905 (1,905) 100%
PMLIC- 2001 2,969 2,969 (2,969) 100%
SAWS* 2002 2,857 2,857 (2,857) 100%

2003 3,324 3,324 (3,324) 100%
1 Fiscal year ended January 31, 2004
2 Plan year ended December 31, 2003
3 Plan year ended December 31, 2003
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8. PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
F. Significant TMRS Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Significant assumptions used in the actuarial valuation by the Texas Municipal Retirement System’s (TMRS)
actuary are provided in the table below for both the City and SAWS:

TMRS Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
Investment Return-City 7%
Investment Return-SAWS 8%
Inflation Rate None
Projected Salary Increases None
Post Retirement Benefit Increases None
Actuarial Cost Method Unit Credit
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Remaining Amortization Period 25 Years — Open Period
Asset Valuation Method Amortized Cost

Location of Schedules of Funding Progress

The Schedule of Funding Progress is located in the “Required Supplementary Information” section of this report.
The schedules are designed to provide information about each entity's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to
pay benefits due.

9. POSTEMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS
A. Primary Government (City)

In addition to the pension benefits discussed in Note 8, the City provides all their retired employees with certain
health benefits under two postemployment benefit programs. The first program is a health insurance plan, which
provides benefits for all non-uniformed City retirees and for all, pre-October 1, 1989, uniformed (fire and police)
retirees. Currently, there are 6,067 active civilian employees who may become eligible in the future. Employees
become eligible for the program when they reach eligibility for the TMRS Pension Plan, discussed in Note 8. At
September 30, 2004, there were 1,512 retirees participating in the program which covers eligible expenses at 80%
after a deductible of $250 (single)/$500 (family) for non-Medicare and $125/$250 for Medicare retirees. The cost of
the program is reviewed annually, and actuarially determined costs of medical claims are funded jointly by the City
and retirees on a pay-as-you-go basis shared on a targeted 67% City - 33% retiree cost allocation. Please note that
the number of employees, retirees, and deductible amounts in this paragraph are not expressed in thousands. For
retirees, total expenses for the year were $7,268. For the year ended September 30, 2004, total contributions were as
follows:

City $ 3,509
Employees 2,279
TOTAL $ 5,788
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9. POSTEMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)

The second postemployment benefit program of the City provides retirement health care benefits for eligible Fire
and Police retirees under the Fire and Police Retiree Healthcare Fund (“Fund”). The Fund was originally
established as a fund of the City pursuant to the respective Fire and Police collective bargaining agreements to
provide postemployment health benefits for San Antonio Fire Fighters and Police Officers who retired on or after
October 1, 1989. Effective October 1, 1997, the Fund was created as a separate and distinct statutory trust. The
Fund is governed by a nine member Board of Trustees comprised of the Mayor, two City Council members, two
active police officers, two active fire fighters, a retiree representative of the Fire Department, and a retiree
representative of the Police Department. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the investment of the assets of
the Fund. Contribution and benefit levels are determined by the respective collective bargaining agreements with
the Fire and Police Associations.

The benefits of this plan are financed on a prefunded basis. The City currently makes contributions on behalf of
3,417 active Fire Fighters and Police Officers who may be eligible for benefits under this plan in the future. The
benefits of the plan are not available until the employee has completed twenty years of service and the plan is
currently providing benefits to 1,086 eligible retirees. The Program reimburses 80% of the amount of eligible claims
for standard medical costs and 100% for hospitalization costs incurred by the retiree and their eligible dependents
for Prefund II retirees. Please note the number of firefighters, police officers, and retirees in this section are not
expressed in thousands. For the year ended September 30, 2004, total expenses for retired employees was $10,223.
Contribution levels from the current collective bargaining agreements between the City and the Fire and Police
Associations, respectively, and total contributions to the Fund are summarized in the following tables. Additionally,
for FY 2004, the City did not reduce its contribution to the Fund under the Fire Agreement to 8.51% of base pay
plus longevity but rather maintained its contribution at 8.71 % of base plus longevity.

Fire Agreement Police Agreement
Contribution Levels Contribution Levels
City % of City % of
Effective Base Pay Plus  Firefighter Effective Base Pay Plus Police Officer
Date Longevity Per Month Date Longevity Per Month

June 1, 2002 8.92% $40 November 1, 2003 9.4%+$20/member $40
monthly

October 1, 2002 8.71% $50 April 1, 2004 9.4%+%$20/member $50
monthly

October 1, 2003 8.51% $60 October 1, 2004 9.4%+$20/member $60
monthly

October 1, 2004 8.33% $70 April 1, 2005 9.4%+$20/member $70
monthly

Total Contributions to the Fund

City $ 16,563
Employees and Retiree Dependent Premiums 2,502
Total Contributions $ 19,065
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9. POSTEMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Historically, actuarial valuations have been performed periodically to determine the actuarial position of the Fund
and whether the existing financing of the Fund can be reasonably expected to be adequate over a long period of
time. Actuarial valuations over the past several years have indicated that contribution levels are not sufficient to
amortize the unfunded liability. At the request of the Board of Trustees, the Fund’s consulting actuaries performed
an actuarial valuation dated February 20, 2004, as of October 1, 2003. The results of the actuarial valuation were
that, in the opinion of the actuary, the Fund will have a long-term inadequate financing arrangement if present health
benefits are left unchanged and if the monthly contributions remain at the amounts of $20 per month per active
participant for police employees and $70 per month for active fire fighters after September 30, 2004. The actuary
has also recommended that the contribution be increased to 21.41% of covered payroll in addition to the
continuation of the specified monthly contributions. The City also had an actuarial valuation of the Fund conducted
with a valuation date of April 1, 2003. This valuation also indicated that current contribution rates were not
sufficient to the fund the benefits and retire the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

While the results of the studies reflect significant changes would be required in contribution levels if benefits remain
unchanged, the actuarial reports also state that the Fund does not have a short term financing problem. As of
September 30, 2004, net assets available for postemployment benefits were $127,603 while benefits payments for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, were $10,223. As noted above, contribution and benefit levels are
established pursuant to the collective bargaining agreements. The current agreement with the Fire Association will
expire September 30, 2005, and has an evergreen clause through September 30, 2015. This agreement was
negotiated prior to the issuance of the actuarial valuation indicating that contribution levels could not sufficiently
amortize the unfunded liability, however, the agreement does contain a limited re-opener related to contributions to
the Fund. The City is in discussions with the Fire Association regarding the limited re-opener under the current
agreement.

The City approved an agreement in November of 2003 with the Police Association that will expire on September 30,
2006, and has an evergreen clause through September 30, 2016. This agreement with the Police Association
increases both contributions by the City and active police officers over the term of the agreement. The agreement
makes certain changes in benefits such as expanding the list of preventive services and for in-network and out-of-
network pharmacy benefits with increased co-payments for drugs purchased at out-of-network pharmacies, which
also became effective simultaneously under the Fire Contract. To coincide with the expiration of the City’s current
agreement with the Fire Association in September of 2005, the agreement with the Police Association also includes
a re-opener on the benefits article in fiscal year 2005 which will allow the City to simultaneously work with both the
Police and Fire Associations to continue to develop a comprehensive long-term solution for the Fund. The plan is
based on a dual-track strategy of restructuring and redesigning the health benefits program and increasing City and
employee contributions. Negotiations with both the Fire and Police Associations regarding health benefits issues are
anticipated to begin in the summer of 2005.
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9. POSTEMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
B. City Public Service (CPS)

CPS provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. Most former CPS employees are
eligible for these benefits upon retirement from CPS. Plan assets are held as part of CPS’ Group Health and Life
Insurance Plans and funding is from both participant and employer contributions determined by annual actuarial and
in-house calculations. Retired employees contribute to the health plan in varying amounts depending upon an equity
formula that considers age and years of service. The Plans may be amended by CPS. The annual cost of retiree
health care and life insurance benefits funded by CPS is recognized as an expense of CPS as employer contributions
are made to the programs.

These costs approximated $4,400 for 2004. CPS reimbursed certain retirees and their spouses enrolled in Medicare
Part B a percentage of the monthly premium, which totaled $256 for fiscal year 2004.

Retired employees and covered dependents contributed $1,900 for their health care and life insurance benefits in
fiscal year 2004. There were approximately 2,261 retirees and covered dependents eligible for health care and life
insurance benefits. Please note the number of retirees is not stated in thousands.

In view of the potential economic significance of these benefits, CPS has reviewed the present value of the
postemployment benefit obligations for current retirees. The January 1, 2003, valuations are $74,400 for health and
$19,800 for life insurance benefits. The actuarial analysis of the present value of postemployment benefit
obligations for other participants fully eligible for benefits are estimated to be $45,900 for health, $5,600 for life
insurance, and $3,000 for disability benefits. CPS began partial accrual and funding of projected future benefits in
1992. Funding totaled $4,300 in 2004. For the health care plan, the actuarial cost method used is the Projected Unit
Credit Actuarial Cost Method. For the life insurance and disability plans, CPS uses a present value method to
determine the cost of benefits.

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the calculations for the January 1, 2003, actuarial valuations include (a) a
rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.5% per year for the health, life, and disability plans,
(b) projected salary increases for the plans ranging from 4.5% to 12.0% depending on age for base and other
salaries, and (¢) medical cost increases projected at 10.0% for 2003 decreasing to 6.0% in 2011 and thereafter.

C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

SAWS provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. Substantially all full-time
employees who retire from SAWS may become eligible for those benefits. On December 31, 2003, there were 442
retirees with life insurance and 283 retirees with medical coverage. Please note the numbers of retirees are not
stated in thousands.

SAWS provides medical and life insurance for retirees and recognizes the cost of providing these benefits on a pay-
as-you-go basis by expensing the annual insurance. Premiums for medical insurance and life insurance amounted to

$3,956 and $70, respectively for January 1, 2003, through December 31, 2003. Those and similar benefits for active
employees are provided through insurance companies.
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10. CPS SOUTH TEXAS PROJECT (STP)
Joint Operations

CPS is one of four participants in the STP, which consists of two 1,250-megawatt nuclear generating units in
Matagorda County, Texas. The other participants in the project are Texas Genco, L.P., formerly known as Houston
Lighting & Power and Reliant Energy, American Electric Power - Central Power and Light Company, and the City
of Austin. In-service dates for STP were August 1988 for Unit 1 and June 1989 for Unit 2. CPS’ 28% ownership in
the STP represents 700 megawatts of plant capacity. At January 31, 2004, CPS’ investment in the STP utility plant
was approximately $1,700,000, net of accumulated depreciation. Effective November 17, 1997, the Participation
Agreement among the owners of STP was amended and restated and the STP Nuclear Operating Company (STP
OPCO), a Texas non-profit non-member corporation created by the participants, assumed responsibility as the
licensed operator of STP. The participants share costs in proportion to ownership interests, including all liabilities
and expenses of STP OPCO.

Nuclear Insurance

The Price-Anderson Act is a comprehensive statutory arrangement for providing limitations on liability and
governmental indemnities with respect to nuclear accidents or events. The maximum amount that each licensee may
be assessed following a nuclear incident at any insured facility is $100,600, subject to adjustment for inflation, for
the number of operating nuclear units and for each licensed reactor, payable at $10,000 per year per reactor for each
nuclear incident. CPS and each of the other participants of STP are subject to such assessments, which will be borne
on the basis of their respective ownership interests in STP. For purposes of these assessments, STP has two licensed
reactors. The participants have purchased the maximum limits of nuclear liability insurance, as required by law, and
have executed indemnification agreements with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC), in accordance with the
financial protection requirements of the Price-Anderson Act.

A Master Worker Nuclear Liability policy, with a maximum limit of $600,000 for the nuclear industry as a whole,
provides protection from nuclear-related claims.

NRC regulations require licensees of nuclear power plants to obtain on-site property damage insurance in a
minimum amount of $1,060,000. NRC regulations also require that the proceeds from this insurance be used first to
ensure that the licensed reactor is in a safe and stable condition so as to prevent any significant risk to the public
health or safety, and then to complete any decontamination operations that may be ordered by the NRC. Any funds
remaining would then be available for covering direct losses to property.

The owners of STP currently maintain $2,750,000 of nuclear property insurance, which is above the legally
required amount of $1,060,000, but is less than the total amount available for such losses. The $2,750,000 of
nuclear property insurance consists of $500,000 in primary property damage insurance and $2,025,000 of excess
property damage insurance, both subject to a retrospective assessment being paid by all members of Nuclear
Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL). In the event that property losses as a result of an accident at the nuclear plant
of any utility insured by NEIL exceed the accumulated funds available to NEIL, a retrospective assessment could
occur. The maximum aggregate assessment under current policies for both primary and excess property damage
insurance is $25,500 during any one-policy year.
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10. CPS SOUTH TEXAS PROJECT (STP) (Continued)
Nuclear Decommissioning

CPS, together with the other owners of the STP, files with the NRC a certificate of financial assurance for the
decommissioning of the nuclear power plant. The certificate assures that CPS will meet the minimum
decommissioning funding requirements mandated by the NRC. The STP owners agreed in the financial assurance
plan that their estimate of decommissioning costs would be reviewed and updated periodically. In 1995, the owners
conducted a review of decommissioning costs. The results showed that CPS’ share of decommissioning costs at
approximately $270,000 in 1994 dollars. In 1999, the owners conducted an additional review of decommissioning,
and results estimated CPS’ share of decommissioning costs are now approximately $311,000 in 1998 dollars.

In 1991, CPS started accumulating the decommissioning funds in an external trust, in accordance with the NRC’s
regulations. The Decommissioning Trust assets and related liabilities are included in CPS’ financial statements as a
component unit. At January 31, 2004, CPS has accumulated approximately $211,100 of funds in the external trust.
Based on the annual calculation of financial assurance required by the NRC, CPS’ trust balance exceeded the
calculated financial assurance amounts of $70,400 at December 31, 2003.

Based upon the 1998 and 1994 decommissioning cost studies, the annual level funding into the trust of $15,900 for
2004 was expensed by CPS.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Primary Government (City)
Grants

The City has received significant financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the grant agreements, and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting
from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, liabilities resulting from disallowed claims, if any, will not have a materially adverse effect on the
City's financial position at September 30, 2004. Grants awarded by federal, state, and other governmental agencies
but not yet earned nor received in cash as of September 30, 2004, were $118,544.

Capital Improvement Program

The City will be undertaking various capital improvements to its airport system during fiscal year 2005. The
estimated cost of these improvements is $163,015. Approximately $25,583 of the total will be funded by federal
grants.

Litigation

The City is involved in various lawsuits related to alleged personal and property damages, wrongful death, breach of
contract, various claims from contractors for additional amounts under construction contracts, property tax
assessments, environmental matters, class action and promotional practices, and discrimination cases. The Office of
the City Attorney estimates the probable liability for these suits, including those mentioned below, will approximate
$8,995, which is included as a component of the reserve for claims liability in the amount of $17,271. The estimated
liability, including an estimate of incurred but not reported claims, is recorded in the Insurance Reserve Fund. The
City makes significant estimates in determining the amounts of unsettled claims under its self-insurance program
and believes that the self-insurance reserves recorded in the Self-Insurance Funds are adequate to cover losses for
which the City may be liable. It is not determinable whether additional claims or revisions to estimates required for
settlement on existing claims could have a material effect on the government-wide financial statements.

Charles and Tracy Pollock, Individually and as next friend of Sarah Jane Pollock, a minor child v. City of San
Antonio. This is a nuisance case alleging that benzene gas emitted from the West Avenue Landfill caused
chromosomal damage to a fetus during the period of gestation, resulting in Plaintiff’s contracting acute
lymphoblastic leukemia. Although the jury at trial entered against a judgment of more than $23,000 against the
City, the trial court immediately reduced this by $6,000. On appeal, the Fourth Court subsequently sided with the
City and reduced the judgment further by eliminating $10,000 in exemplary damages. The remaining issue is
whether personal injuries are recoverable under the Plaintiff’s theory of nuisance. The City believes they are not
and that even if they are recoverable, damages are capped at $250 under the Texas Tort Claims Act. The City is
appealing to the Texas Supreme Court.

Matthew Jackson et. al. v. City of San Antonio. This is a Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) lawsuit with 175
named plaintiffs who claim that they were required to report for duty 15 minutes prior to their shift and that they
were not compensated for the time in violation of the FLSA. There are several other allegations based on the
FLSA, as well. The lawsuit has been filed on behalf of all of the police officers similarly situated to the 175
plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs have a motion pending for class certification that could increase the size of the Plaintiff
class to include all officers of the San Antonio Police Department, of which there are more than 2,000. Thus, the
potential exists for more officers to join the lawsuit. The City expects to win the lawsuit, but the potential
liability, if the case were lost, could be an amount well over $1,000.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)

Arbitrage

The City has issued certain tax-exempt obligations that are subject to Internal Revenue Service (IRS) arbitrage
regulations. Non-compliance with these regulations, which pertain to the utilization and investment of proceeds, can
result in penalties including the loss of the tax-exempt status of the applicable obligations retroactive to the date of
original issuance. In addition, the IRS requires that interest income earned on proceeds in excess of the arbitrage
rate on applicable obligations be rebated to the federal government. The City monitors its bond proceeds in relation
to arbitrage regulations, and “arbitrage rebate” is estimated and recorded in the government-wide and proprietary
financial statements when susceptible to accrual and in the governmental fund type when matured.

Leases

The City leases City-owned property to others consisting of buildings, real property, and parking spaces. Costs
of specific leased components are not readily determinable. Total rental revenue on operating leases for fiscal
year ended September 30, 2004, was $21,564. As of September 30, 2004, the leases provide for the following
future minimum rentals:

Leases Receivable

Governmental
Activities  Aviation Parking Total

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2005 $ 1,854 § 14479 § 102§ 16,435

2006 1,641 13,755 60 15,456

2007 1,009 2,360 3,369

2008 844 2,052 2,896

2009 608 1,481 2,089
2010-2014 2,530 5,286 7,816
2015-2019 2,673 3,095 5,768
2020-2024 975 425 1,400
2025-2029 750 222 972
2030-2034 675 675
2035-2039 500 500
2040-2042 267 267
Future Minimum Lease Rentals $ 14326 § 43,155 $ 162 § 57,643
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
Landfill Postclosure Care Costs

In October 1993, the City Council approved closure of the Nelson Gardens Landfill, which immediately stopped
accepting solid waste. Subsequent to landfill closure, Federal and State laws required the City to incur certain
postclosure care costs over a period of thirty years. As of September 30, 1994, the City estimated these costs for
postclosure of the Nelson Gardens Landfill at $3,800. The estimate was based on estimated costs for installation of
a leachate and groundwater collection system, installation of a methane recovery system, geotechnical and
environmental engineering services, and monitoring and maintaining the facility for a thirty-year period. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 18, “Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure
Care Costs”, the estimated postclosure cost of $3,800 for the Nelson Gardens Landfill was recorded as a liability and
expensed in the Environmental Services Fund in fiscal year 1994. This cost is an estimate and is subject to changes
resulting from inflation/deflation, advances in technology, or changes in applicable laws or regulations.

Each fiscal year, the City performs an annual re-evaluation of the postclosure care costs associated with the Nelson
Gardens Landfill. The annual re-evaluation conducted for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, resulted in an
estimated postclosure care liability for the Nelson Gardens Landfill of $1,051. This represents a decrease of $10
from the prior fiscal year for expenditures incurred for geotechnical and environmental engineering services.

TCEQ Financial Assurance

The City is required under the provision of the Texas Administrative Code to provide financial assurance to the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), formerly known as the Texas Natural Resource
Conservation Commission (TNRCC), related to the closure of municipal solid waste operations including, but not
limited to, storage, collection, handling, transportation, processing, and disposal of municipal solid waste. As such,
financial assurance is required to ensure that funds are available, when needed, to meet costs associated with the
closure of the City’s North East Transfer Station. Additionally, financial assurance is required to demonstrate
financial responsibility for underground storage petroleum facilities. As of September 30, 2001, the permit for the
North East Transfer Station has been transferred from the City and the new permitee has provided adequate financial
assurance for this facility. Based on the number of underground petroleum storage tanks, the City is required to
provide $1,000 of financial assurance related to the underground storage facilities.

Brooks City-Base — Electric and Gas Utilities

The Brooks City-Base Project is a collaborative effort between the U.S. Air Force (the “Air Force”) and the City
designed to retain the Air Force missions and jobs at Brooks Air Force Base, improve mission effectiveness,
assist in reducing operating costs, and promote and enhance economic development at Brooks. On July 22, 2002,
the land and improvements were transferred to the Brooks Development Authority (BDA) for the purpose of
creating the Brooks Technology & Business Park, a facility that will foster the development of key targeted
industries. The Air Force is currently the Park’s anchor tenant and is leasing back facilities to perform its
missions.

As part of the conveyance, the electric and gas utilities were transferred to City Public Service (CPS), the City’s
utility. The electric and gas utility systems’ infrastructure at Brooks are deficient and require extensive upgrades
and improvements. Pursuant to the transfer, the Air Force, BDA, and CPS have committed to make certain
improvements and upgrades to the electric and gas utility over a 20-year period. Funding for these improvements
include $3,400 from the City and $6,300 from BDA and CPS each, respectively for a total of $16,000.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
Brooks City-Base — Electric and Gas Utilities (Continued)

With respect to BDA’s obligation of $6,300, the City has agreed, under certain circumstances and if necessary, to
assist BDA in funding its obligation. The City has agreed to contribute to BDA on an annual basis an amount
equivalent to the incremental increase in the City’s payment from CPS derived from Brooks. The City, as the
owner of CPS, receives 14% of CPS’ gross revenues and this amount represents additional resources available to
the City as a result of its increased payment from CPS derived at Brooks. Over the 20-year period, the City’s
annual payments will not exceed $3,400. In the event BDA has exhausted all of its available resources and has
been unable to fulfill its obligation of $6,300 by the end of the 20-year term, the City has agreed in good faith to
utilize all of its funding options to enable BDA to satisfy its obligation.

Alamodome Soil Remediation

The City took an aggressive approach to dealing with environmental issues resulting from the construction of the
Alamodome, a multi-purpose domed facility. It worked in conjunction with the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (TCEQ) on the development and implementation of a remediation plan that addressed both
on and off-site locations that may have contained contaminated soil. As of September 30, 2004, the City had
expended approximately $13,460 related to Alamodome soil remediation efforts, inclusive of the supplemental
environmental projects. In January 1996, TCEQ issued its Executive Director’s Preliminary Report assessing a
penalty against the City and VIA Metropolitan Transit (VIA) along with certain technical recommendations for
alleged violations in the handling of contaminated soils at the Alamodome site. On February 12, 1997, the City and
TCEQ entered into an Agreed Order relating to enforcement actions taken by the Commission against the City and
VIA which provided for a reduced penalty amount because of positive actions taken by the City to initiate corrective
actions in advance of the Agreed Order.

Under the Agreed Order, the Commission would also defer the remaining portion of the reduced fine upon
successful completion, by the City, of certain supplemental environmental projects in the total amount of $628. The
City, under separate agreement with VIA, would assume responsibility for the remediation of the remaining sites,
with VIA contributing $350 towards these efforts.

The City completed the Supplemental Environmental Projects as identified in the Agreed Order and has received
concurrence from the TCEQ that these projects were successfully completed. Additionally, the ten sites that

required remedial activity under the Agreed Order were completed. The TCEQ has provided closure letters for all
of these sites. Remediation was completed in fiscal year 2004 for the final site.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
B. City Public Service (CPS)
Other

Purchase and construction commitments amounted to approximately $1,500,000 at January 31, 2004. This amount
includes approximately $40,300 that is expected to be paid for natural gas purchases to be made under various
contracts currently in effect through June 2007; the actual amount to be paid will depend upon CPS’ actual
requirements during the contract period and the price of gas. Also included is $79,500 for coal purchases through
December 2006, $246,200 for coal transportation through December 2014, and $3,000 for treated cooling water
through December 2005, based upon the minimum firm commitment under these contracts.

CPS has also committed to purchase $199,500 in wind power; $22,500 for generation plant maintenance services,
and $50,000 for distribution system construction and maintenance.

Additional purchase commitments at January 31, 2004, which are related to STP, include approximately $673,300
for raw uranium, associated fabrication, and conversion services. This amount represents services that will be
needed for refueling through the year 2028.

The PUC promulgated new rules in 1996 designed to comply with legislative changes affecting the utility industry.
The Transmission Pricing and Access Rule (Rule) mandates that electric utilities charge customers for wholesale
open transmission access according to a formula based on the amount of load served by each utility. CPS’ cost for
calendar year 2003 was approximately $16,100. The estimated cost for calendar year 2004 is approximately
$13,000.

Joint Operations Agreement

A 1997 Joint Operations Agreement (JOA) resulted from the litigation settlement with Texas Genco, L.P., formerly
known as Reliant Energy, Inc., and Houston Lighting & Power, over its management of STP during the construction
and early operating periods. The JOA is an arrangement to jointly dispatch CPS’ and Texas Genco, L.P.’s
generating plants to take advantage of the most efficient plants and favorable fuel prices of each utility. Until
June 2002, CPS received, in monthly cash payments, 90% of the savings realized from the jointly operated
systems. As of June 2002, when Texas Genco, L.P. met the JOA $200,000 cumulative savings obligation,
monthly cash payments were reduced to 50% of the savings realized from the jointly operated systems. As of
January 31, 2004, CPS’ total cumulative payments from savings realized was $235,800.

Litigation

Additionally, in the normal course of business, CPS is involved in other legal proceedings related to alleged personal
and property damages, breach of contract, condemnation appeals, and discrimination cases. Also, CPS power
generation activities and other utility operations are subject to extensive state and federal environmental regulation.

In the opinion of management of CPS, the outcome of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on
the financial position or results of operations of CPS.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS)

Other

SAWS is committed under various contracts for completion of construction or acquisition of utility plants totaling
approximately $146,100 as of December 31, 2003. Funding of this amount will come from available revenues of
SAWS, contributions from developers, and restricted assets.

Litigation

SAWS is the subject of various claims and litigation that have risen in the ordinary course of its operations.
Management, in consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that SAWS’ liabilities in these cases, if decided
adversely to SAWS, will not be material.

12. RISK FINANCING
A. Primary Government (City)
Property and Casualty Liability

At September 30, 2004, the City has excess insurance coverage through State National Insurance Company for
liability. The blanket policy provides general and auto liability along with police professional errors and omissions
and EMS Medical Malpractice, and Civil Rights and Employee Benefits Liability Coverage. Allianz Insurance
Company provides property coverage on the City’s building and contents inventory. The City utilizes a third party
administrator for the handling of administration, investigation, and adjustment of liability claims.

Obligations for claims under these programs are accrued in the City's Self-Insurance Reserve Internal Service Fund
based on the City's estimates of the aggregate liability for claims made and claims incurred but not reported, and
Departments are assessed premiums to cover expenditures. There were no significant reductions in insurance
coverage. Claims settlements did not exceed insurance coverage for each of the past three years.

Employee Health Benefits

The City provides its current employees with a comprehensive employee benefit program including coverage for
medical, dental and life insurance, vision, dependent care reimbursement accounts and additional life insurance for
its employees and their dependents. The City’s self-insured medical programs are provided to all City employees.
Obligations for benefits are accrued in the City's Self-Insurance Employee Benefits Insurance Internal Service Fund
based upon the City's estimates of the aggregate liability for unpaid benefits.
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12. RISK FINANCING (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
Workers’ Compensation

The City self-insures for Workers’ Compensation. The City is a member of the Texas Municipal League (TML)
Workers’ Compensation Joint Insurance Fund, an unincorporated association of political subdivisions of the State of
Texas. The TML Workers’ Compensation Joint Insurance Fund is not intended to operate as an insurance company,
but rather is intended to be a contracting mechanism, which the City as a member utilizes to administer self-
insurance workers’ compensation benefits to its employees for claims that occurred prior to September 30, 1986.
The City also utilizes third party administrators for the handling of administration, investigation, and adjustment of
workers’ compensation claims that occurred after October 1, 1986. All loss contingencies, including claims incurred
but not reported, if any, are recorded in the City's Self-Insurance Workers’ Compensation Internal Service Fund and
City departments are assessed premiums to cover expenditures. As of September 30, 2004, the City has excess
workers’ compensation coverage through the State National Insurance Company. Claims settlements did not exceed
insurance coverage for each of the past three years.

Unemployment Compensation Program

The Unemployment Compensation Program of the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund provides a central account
for payment of unemployment compensation claims. As of the fiscal year end, claims were being administered
internally by the City and are paid to the Texas Workforce Commission on a reimbursement basis. All costs
incurred are recorded on a claim paid basis.

Extended Sick Leave Program

The Extended Sick Leave Program of the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund is used to pay benefits associated
with the City's employee long-term disability plan. Benefits are administered by the City. Actual costs are incurred
when extended leave is taken.

Employee Wellness Program

The Self-Insurance Employee Wellness Program Internal Service Fund is used to account for revenues and operating
expenses of the City Occupational Health Clinic operated by the San Antonio Metropolitan Health District. The
clinic's operation is supported by transfers from the Workers' Compensation Fund and the Employee Health Benefits
Fund as expenses are incurred. In fiscal year 1999, the Employee Assistance Program was established to offer City
employees short-term mental health, marital, and financial counseling, as well as substance abuse intake and
assessment. The Program was funded by a transfer from the Workers’ Compensation Fund.
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12. RISK FINANCING (Continued)
A. Primary Government (City) (Continued)
Claims Liability

The liability for the Employees Benefits Program is based on the estimated aggregate amount outstanding at the
statement of net assets date for unpaid benefits. Liabilities for the Insurance Reserve and Workers’ Compensation
Programs are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred as of the statement of net assets date and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These liabilities include allocable loss adjustment expenses,
specific incremental claim adjustment expenses such as the cost of outside legal counsel, and a provision for claims
that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). Unallocated claim adjustment expenses have not been included in
the calculation of the outstanding claims liability as management of the City feel it would not be practical or cost
beneficial. In addition, based on the difficulty in determining a basis for estimating potential recoveries and the
immateriality of prior amounts, no provision for subrogation or salvage has been included in the calculation of the
claims liability. The claims liability reported in the accompanying financial statements for the Insurance Reserve
Program is based on a 3% discounted rate.

The following is a summary of changes in claims liability for the City’s Insurance Reserve, Employee Benefits, and
Workers’ Compensation Programs for the year ended September 30, 2004.

Schedule of Changes In Claims Liability

Liability Change Claims Liability

Balance in & Claims Balance

Fund October 1,  Estimates  Adjustments Payments September 30, '

Insurance Reserve
Fiscal Year 2003 $ 16,179 § $ 4836 $ (4,836) $ 16,179
Fiscal Year 2004 16,179 1,092 3,370 (3,370) 17,271
Employee Benefits
Fiscal Year 2003 $§ 5366 $ 3,182 $ 36,997 $ (36,997) $ 8,548
Fiscal Year 2004 8,548 48,266 (48,266) 8,548
Workers” Compensation'
Fiscal Year 2003 $ 23205 S $§ 10,035 $ (10,035) $ 23,205
Fiscal Year 2004 23,205 9,635 (9,635) 23,205
'"The Workers' Compensation Liability Balance of $23,205 is comprised of $20,879
recorded in the Workers' Compensation Fund and the remaining liability of $2,326
is recorded in Proprietary Funds.
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12. RISK FINANCING (Continued)
B. City Public Service (CPS)

CPS is exposed to various risks of loss including those related to torts, theft or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, and natural disasters. CPS purchases commercial liability and property insurance coverages to provide
protection in event of large/catastrophic claims. CPS performs actuarial studies periodically to determine its
insurance retentions. An actuarial study was last performed in 2004.

In addition, CPS is exposed to risks of loss due to death of, and injuries to, or illness of, its employees. CPS makes
payments to external trusts to cover the claims under the related plans. At January 31, 2004, CPS accumulated
approximately $152,800 in these external trusts. The trust accounts and related claims liabilities are included in
CPS’ financial statements. CPS has recorded $27,700 of expense related to these plans for the year ended January
31, 2004.

Based upon the guidance of GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Issues, the following information is provided regarding the changes in the insurance reserves for
property, and employee and public liability claims for the years ended January 31:

City Public Service
Schedule of Changes In Claims Liability
Liability Claims Liability
Balance & Claims Balance
Fund February 1, Adjustments Payments January 31,

Property Insurance
Fiscal Year 2003 $ 8,624 § (3,019) $ 52) $ 5,553
Fiscal Year 2004 5,553 377 (95) 5,835
Employee & Public Liability Claims
Fiscal Year 2003 $ 5008 $ 1,968 $§ (110) $ 6,866
Fiscal Year 2004 6,866 1,371 (1,000) 7,237
Employee Health & Welfare Claims
Fiscal Year 2003 $ 3,641 $ 29,425 $(28,894) $ 4,172
Fiscal Year 2004 4,172 35,939 (35,415) 4,696

The employee health and welfare plan assets are segregated from CPS’s assets. They are separately managed by
a committee whose members are appointed by the CPS General Manager and CEO. These plans have separate
financial statements for calendar year 2003. These separately audited financial statements are available upon
request from CPS.
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12. RISK FINANCING (Continued)
C. San Antonio Water System (SAWS)
Risk Management

SAWS is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

SAWS is self administered and self-insured for the first $500 of each worker’s compensation and $250 for general
liability, automobile liability, public official’s liability and $100 for pollution legal liability claim whereby any claim
exceeding the self-insured retention limit would be covered through SAWS’ comprehensive commercial insurance
program. For the year ended December 31, 2003, there were no reductions in insurance coverage from the previous
year and there were no claims that exceeded the self-insured retention limit. Settled claims have not exceeded the
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

SAWS had recorded a liability in the amount of $2,317 as of December 31, 2003, which is reported as a current
liability. The claims liability, including incurred but not reported claims, is based on the estimated ultimate cost of
settling the claims. The claims liability includes medical and rehabilitation costs, which are considered incremental
claim adjustment expenses. Changes in the liability amount for the last two fiscal years were:

San Antonio Water System
Schedule of Changes In Claims Liability

Balance at Beginning Balance at End of
Year Ended  of Fiscal Year Liability Claims & Adustments  Claims Payments  Fiscal Year Liability

Dec. 31,2002 § 1,729  § 1,058 $ (1,603) § 1,184

Dec. 31,2003 $ 1,184 § 3,029 § (1,896) § 2,317
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13. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The following is a summary of interfund transfers for the City for the year ended September 30, 2004:

Summary Table of Interfund Transfers
for the Year Ended September 30,2004
Transfers From  Transfers To
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund:
Airport System Fund $ 153§ 0
Parking System 717 411
Internal Service Funds 2,701 3,633
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 10,374 70,897
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 1,403
Total General Fund 15,348 74,941
Debt Service Funds:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 22,638
Total Debt Service Funds 22,638 0
Airport System Fund:
General Fund 153
Internal Service Funds 206
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 761 118
Total Airport System Fund 761 477
Parking Facilities Fund:
General Fund 411 717
Internal Service Funds 10 701
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 105
Total Parking Facilities Fund 421 1,523
Intemal Service Funds:
General Fund 3,633 2,701
Airport System 206
Parking System 701 10
Internal Service Funds 1,443 1,443
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 272 314
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 257 35
Total Interal Service Funds 6,512 4,503
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
General Fund 70,897 10,374
Debt Service 22,638
Airport System 118 761
Parking System 105
Internal Service Funds 314 272
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 72,137 72,137
Total Nonmajor Govemnmental Funds 143,571 106,182
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:
General Fund 1,403
Internal Service Funds 35 257
Total Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 35 1,660
Total $ 189,286 § 189,286
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13. INTERFUND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Transfers are made to use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds. These transfers are in the form of operating subsidies, grant matches, and funding
for capital projects. In addition, transfers are routinely made from other funds to fund debt service payments and
for other restricted purposes. All transfers are in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Other significant transfers by the General Fund include $615 set aside for the purchase of additional ladder trucks
from fiscal year 2006 through fiscal year 2009. This is the third year that funds have been set aside for that
purpose as the Master Plan recommended in fiscal year 2001 that $615 in funds be set aside each year through
fiscal year 2005.

The Enterprise Resource Management Fund was established in fiscal year 2001 to record all operating revenues
and expenditures associated with the development and implementation of the new enterprise system. Funding is
provided by transfers from the Improvement Projects Fund. This year’s support totaled $1,132.
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14. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental funds and
net assets-governmental activities as reported in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

One element of this reconciliation states, “Some of the City’s revenues will be collected after year-end but are
not available soon enough to pay for the current period’s expenditures and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds”. The detail of the $35,154 is as follows:

Revenues previously reported as deferred in the fund financial
statements $ 45,111

Receivable applicable to governmental activities, which are not
available in the current period 565

Deferred revenues previously reported as income in the fund
financial statements (10,522)

Revenues collected after year end but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore
are not recognized in governmental funds $ 35,154

Another element of this reconciliation states, “Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds”. The detail for the decrease
related to capital leases is as follows

Total capital leases reported on the Government-wide Statement of

Net Assets $ 7,126
Less: Short-term available portion reported in fund financial
statements (581)

Net adjustment to decrease fund balance-total governmental funds
to arrive at new assets-governmental activities for capital leases $ 6,545
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14. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net assets of

governmental activities as reported in the Government-wide Statement of Activities.

The details of the increase of bond costs are as follows:

Issuance costs expended per fund financial statements $ 2,061
Less: amounts expended attributable to current period (6)
Total bonds costs $ 2,055

The details of the increase of bond premiums and deferred charges are as follows:

Amortization of bond premiums on long-term debt-Debt Service
Fund, previously expensed in the fund financial statements $ 2,093

Amortization of bond premiums on long-term debt-General
Obligation Bonds previously expensed in the fund financial
statements 835

Less: premiums on bonds and certificates not previously recorded
in the fund financial statements (4,095)

Total amortization of bond premiums and deferred charges (net) $  (1,167)

Another element of this reconciliation states, “Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of the ($1,564) are as follows:

Compensated Absences $  (6,243)
Interest Expense (760)
Principal Paid on Leases 5,590

Arbitrage Rebate Expense (151)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of
governmental activities. $  (1,564)
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15. DEFICITS IN FUND BALANCES / NET ASSETS

Special Revenue Funds

As of September 30, 2004, deficit fund balance at year-end is reported in the Categorical Grant In-Aid, and
Community Development Program in the amounts of $853 and $251, respectively. The deficit is attributable to
projects for which the Community Development Program Fund Budget needs to be adjusted. Upon reprogramming
of funds, the deficit fund balances will be fully funded. The deficit for Categorical Grant-In Aid is attributable to
projects that were overspent and for which local funding will be required to clear this deficit.

The Golf Course Fund had a deficit fund balance of $624 as of September 30, 2004. The deficit is attributable to a
decline in revenues in recent years due to increased competition by the private sector and extreme weather patterns.
In addition, increased labor, fuel, and equipment maintenance costs have contributed to the deficit.

The Alamodome Fund had a deficit fund balance of $879 as of September 30, 2004. This deficit is attributed to
events programmed but not realized, due in part to the downturn of certain entertainment industries and local venue
competition. Additionally, individual spending per event was expected to increase due to an anticipated economic
upswing.

Internal Service Funds

As of September 30, 2004, a deficit of $31,752 in net assets is reported in the Employee Benefits Program. To
address specific issues related to the increasing costs of health benefits, the City will seek the services of an
outside consultant in 2005 to perform a comprehensive review of the Employee Benefits Programs. Establishing
health care medical management programs focused on providing managed care for employees having chronic,
high risk ailments involving high costs such as back pain, high risk maternity, heart disease, and depression are
some of the areas on which the consultant will be focusing. Programs such as these will be carefully studied as
means of providing long term solutions to address rising health care costs and increasing fund balance deficits.
In March of 2004, a combined Health and Benefits Request for Proposal (RFP) was released. The purpose of the
combined plan was to maximize efficiency, ensure competitive medical pricing, to consolidate plan
administration, and to improve provider discounts.

Within the Internal Service Funds, the Workers Compensation Program also reported deficit net assets of $6,590,
at September 30, 2004. The City will fund the deficit through assessments charged to various City funds in
future years.
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16. OTHER DISCLOSURES
A. Donor Restricted Endowment

The City of San Antonio has four permanent funds: the San Jose Burial Park Permanent Fund, the Carver
Cultural Center Endowment Fund, the San Antonio Housing Trust Fund, and the William C. Morris Endowment
Fund. The City is only allowed to spend interest proceeds generated from the principal amount for each of these
funds. The net assets from these endowment funds are classified as restricted net assets and are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. The principal is required to be retained in perpetuity while the interest is
available to cover specific expenditures.

The San Jose Burial Park Permanent Fund generated $26 in interest to be expended for specified purposes.
Chapter 713 of the Texas Health and Safety Code governs what expenditures the City may incur when spending
the interest income. Per Chapter 713, the revenue can be spent for the maintenance and care of the graves, lots,
and burial places, and to beautify the entire cemetery. The principal amount of this fund is increased each year
by sales of lots from the San Jose Cemetery.

The Carver’s Endowment Fund generated $3 in interest. These earnings can be used for the Carver Community
Cultural Center’s operating program, or reinvestment expenses (as detailed in the grant agreement). This fund is
managed in accordance with the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act, which is codified as Section
163.001 in the Texas Property Code. The principal portion of the fund came from a one-time grant from the
National Endowment for the Arts.

The San Antonio Housing Trust Fund generated $275 in interest. These earnings may be disbursed to projects
with particular emphasis on housing programs as grants or secured loans. All distributions or disbursements of
this trust shall be made for the primary purpose of providing additional and continuing housing opportunities for
low and moderate income families. This trust shall at all times be governed, construed, regulated, and
administered in all respects under the laws of the State of Texas.

The William C. Morris Endowment Fund generated $1 in interest. These earnings are used on an annual basis to
enhance the City’s Library’s Educational Programming and Services for Children. Any net income or net
appreciation of the funds not used shall be accumulated and added to the principal of the funds. The earnings of
the funds will be expended in accordance with the spending policy of the Library’s Board of Directors or
Trustees.
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17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
A. Primary Government (City)

On December 2, 2004, the City issued $33,090,000 “City of San Antonio, Texas General Improvement Forward
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006,” (the “2006 Bonds”). The 2006 Bonds are anticipated to be delivered on or about
May 9, 2006. The 2006 Bonds have maturities from 2009 to 2016, with interest rates ranging from 5.250% to
5.500%.

On March 24, 2005, the City issued $61,060,000 “City of San Antonio, Texas, Municipal Drainage Utility System
Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (the “Stormwater Bonds”). The Stormwater Bonds were sold to finance the costs of
making drainage improvements, including acquisition, construction, and repair of structures, equipment, and
facilities for the City’s Municipal Drainage Utility System and are anticipated to be delivered on or about April 20,
2005. The Stormwater Bonds have maturities from 2006 to 2030, with interest rates ranging from 3.500% to
5.250%.

On March 31, 2005, the City issued $116,170,000 “City of San Antonio, Texas General Improvement and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2005,” (the “2005 Bonds”) and $10,535,000 “City of San Antonio, Texas Combination
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2005,” (the “2005 Certificates”). The 2005 Bonds and the 2005
Certificates are anticipated to be delivered on or about April 27, 2005. The 2005 Bonds have maturities from 2010
to 2025, with interest rates ranging from 3.500% to 5.250%. The 2005 Certificates have maturities from 2012 to
2025, with interest rates ranging from 4.000% to 5.250%.

The 2005 Bonds were issued to provide funds (1) to finance the construction of general improvements to the City,
including (a) streets and pedestrian improvements; (b) drainage improvements; (c) parks and recreation
improvements; (d) library improvements; and (e) public health and safety improvements; (2) to refund certain
outstanding tax-exempt obligations and to effectuate a present value savings; and (3) to pay the costs of issuance.

The 2005 Certificates will be used for the purpose of providing funds for the payment of contractual obligations
to be incurred for making permanent public improvements and for other public purposes, to-wit: (1) constructing
public safety improvements, including renovating and improving existing fire stations, (2) constructing drainage
improvements, sidewalk improvements, bridge improvements, street improvements and drainage incidental
thereto, (3) constructing improvements and renovations to existing municipal facilities, including the Levi
Strauss Building and the Witte Museum, (4) acquiring, constructing and renovating park facilities, (5) purchasing
materials, supplies, machinery, land, and rights-of-way for authorized needs and purposes relating to public
safety, drainage, street and public works purposes, and (6) the payment of professional services related to the
construction and financing of the aforementioned projects.
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——— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Resources (inflows):
Taxes $ 332,745,965 332,744,105 343,707,952 $ 10,963,847
Licenses and Permits 17,010,019 17,008,539 17,026,379 17,840
Intergovernmental 2,892,200 2,892,200 2,695,842 (196,358)
Revenues from Utilities 184,239,975 184,239,975 196,405,099 12,165,124
Charges for Services 26,794,096 26,795,577 30,029,118 3,233,541
Fines and Forfeits 12,171,665 12,171,664 11,713,073 (458,591)
Miscellaneous 10,244,462 10,195,381 10,758,387 563,006
Transfers from other funds 5,212,686 14,174,639 15,348,182 1,173,543
Amounts Available for Appropriation 591,311,068 600,222,080 627,684,032 27,461,952
Charges to Appropriations (outflows):
General Government 57,503,972 77,710,026 54,214,920 23,495,106
Public Safety 365,593,474 378,061,807 376,925,001 1,136,806
Public Works 14,041,263 10,637,869 10,656,685 (18,816)
Health Services 15,811,378 12,911,242 13,409,924 (498,682)
Sanitation 2,536,970 2,535,618 2,380,287 155,331
Welfare 17,366,033 16,988,837 16,480,979 507,858
Culture and Recreation 62,675,537 62,463,275 57,918,951 4,544,324
Economic Development and Opportunity 19,126,474 22,863,663 8,043,283 14,820,380
Transfers to other funds 72,785,414 76,111,164 76,440,760 (329,596)
Total Charges to Appropriations 627,440,515 660,283,501 616,470,790 43,812,711
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over (Under)
Charges to Appropriations (36,129,447) (60,061,421) 11,213,242 71,274,663

Fund Balance Allocation 36,129,447 60,061,421 (11,213,242) (71,274,663)
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over (Under)
Charges to Appropriations $ 0 0 0 $ 0
Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures
Sources/inflows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from the budgetary
627,684,032

comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues
for financial reporting purposes.
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" from the budgetary
comparison schedule.

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received is reported in the
year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are
received for financial reporting purposes.

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not expenditures
for financial reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds.

General Fund Budgetary Information

(15,348,182)

612,335,850

616,470,790

(4,155,441)

(76,440,760)

535,874,589

The City Charter establishes requirements for the adoption of budgets and budgetary control. Under provisions of the Charter, expenditures of each City function and
activity within individual funds cannot legally exceed the final budget approved by the City Council. Amendments to line items within a departmental budget may be

initiated by Department Directors.

The City prepares an annual budget for the General Fund on a modified accrual basis which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The annual
budgetary data reported for the General Fund represents the original appropriation ordinance and amendments thereto as adopted by the City Council, adjusted for
encumbrances outstanding at the beginning of the fiscal year. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

(unaudited - see accompanying accountants' report)
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City of San Antonio
Texas

Combining Financial Statements & Schedules

(Unaudited)



City of San Antonio
Texas

Non-Major Governmental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

HOTEL MOTEL TAX FUND - to account for the operations of the City of San Antonio's
Conventions and Tourism trade. Financing is provided by the Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax.

HOTEL MOTEL TAX CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND - to account for funds derived
and activity relating to the additional 2% Municipal Hotel Motel Occupancy Tax.

ALAMODOME FUND - to account for the operations of the Alamodome System. Financing
is provided by user fees, concessions, facility rental, and Hotel Motel Occupancy Tax (for
Convention and Tourism only).

STREET MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT FUND - to account for funds used in
the maintenance and improvement of street infrastructure. Financing is provided through
transfer of funds from General Fund, and street resurfacing charges.

PARKS DEVELOPMENT AND EXPANSION FUND - to account for the additional one-
eighth sales tax that funds the purchase and maintenance of new parkland in the Edwards
Aquifer zones as well as linear parks along Leon Creek and Salado Creek.

STORMWATER OPERATING FUND - to account for the administrative and operational
activities of the Stormwater Program. Financing is provided by a stormwater fee.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT OFFICE FUND - to account for funds used in administration
related to the construction, expansion, and renovation of municipal facilities including the
expansion of the Convention Center. Financing is provided from bonds proceeds and
collections from the Municipal Hotel Motel Occupancy Tax.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND - to account for revenues received and
expenditures made in conjunction with the City's Emergency Medical Service. Financing is
provided by service fees and additional funds transferred from the General Fund.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS RESERVE FUND - to account for the financing of special
capital improvements designated by the City Council. Financing is derived from the sale of
excess City land and from City Public Service Board non-budgeted sales to other utilities.
Amounts are transferred to the Capital Project Improvement Projects Fund for construction
purposes.

NELSON WOLFF STADIUM - to account for the operations of Nelson W. Wolff Stadium.
Financing is provided by user fees, concessions, facility rental and event parking.

CONFISCATED PROPERTY FUND - to account for receipts and disbursement of funds
confiscated by law enforcement officers within the City of San Antonio, Texas.

PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT REVENUE FUND - to account for funds provided for the
City's Health Support Facilities. Financing is derived through reimbursements for local
health care services provided to eligible legalized aliens.



Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (continued)

JOB TRAINING, NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION, AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT FUND - to account for the proceeds realized from the lease-lease back
of City Public Service, the City’s Electric Utility. The proceeds will be used to fund better
jobs, neighborhood revitalization, technology accelerator initiative, and capital
improvement programs.

HOME PROGRAM FUND - to accept, receipt and disburse federal funds designated for
HOME I[nvestment Partnership Programs.

CATEGORICAL GRANT-IN AID FUNDS - to account for receipt and disbursement of all
federal and state grants except for Community Development Block Grants and Home
Investment Partnership Grants.

HUD 108 LOAN PROGRAM - to accept, receipt and disburse federal funds designed for
the financing of facility improvements at Kelly USA. The City, as the loan originator, has
made a third party loan to the Greater Kelly Development Authority (GKDA) to make
certain building improvements needed to accommodate the Boeing Corporation’s Aerospace
Support Center at KellyUSA.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND - to accept, receipt and disburse
federal funds designated for Community Development Block Grants' programs.

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND - to account for funds that provide various services to
the community such as health, housing, education, safety, employment and economic
development. Included in this fund are two blended component units, the San Antonio
Industrial Development Authority which was established in accordance with state laws for
the purpose of furthering the promotion and development of commercial, industrial and
manufacturing enterprises to promote and encourage employment and the public welfare.
The San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation established in accordance with
state laws for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, providing financing,
refinancing for any real, personal, or mixed property for health care, research, and
education and to assist in the maintenance of the public health.

GOLF COURSE SYSTEM - to account for the operation of the City's Golf Course
Facilities. Financing for Golf Course Operations is provided by user fees.

BROOKS CITY-BASE OFFICE - to account for the operation of the Brooks City-Base
Office for efficient internal control and monitoring.

INTERNATIONAL CENTER FUND - to account for revenues and the general
maintenance of the International Center. Financing is provided by charges for rent,
common area maintenance of the facility and a contribution from the General Fund.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS - to account for financial resources to be used for
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities such as Drainage, Library
Improvements, excluding those financed by proprietary-type funds and trust funds.
Financing is derived by the sale of General Obligation Bonds.

IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - to account for special capital improvements designated by
City Council. Financing is derived from contributions from other funds.

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION - to account for permanent public improvements
and/or construction of municipal facilities, Streets, Drainage, and Emergency Fire
Protection projects. Financing is derived from the sale of Certificates of Obligation.

CONVENTION CENTER EXPANSION - to account for financial resources to be used in
the Convention Center Expansion Project. Financing was derived from a 2% Hotel/Motel
tax, and proceeds from the subsequent sale of debt.



City of San Antonio
Texas

Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (continued)

PARKS DEVELOPMENT & EXPANSION - to account for the acquisition and development
of new parkland in the Edwards Aquifer zones as well as linear parks along Leon Creek and
Salado Creek.

MUNICIPAL FACILITIES - to account for the financing for the acquisition and
construction of a One Stop Development Services Center for the City of San Antonio, Texas.
Financing was derived from the sale of “City of San Anotonio, Texas Municipal Facilities
Corporation Lease Revenue Bonds .

MUNICIPAL DRAINAGE UTILITY SYSTEM — to account for financial resources to be
used to finance the costs of drainage improvements, including the acquisition, construction
and repair of structures, equipment and facilities for the City’s Municipal Drainage Utility
System. Financing is derived from the sale of “City of San Antonio, Texas Municipal
Drainange Utility System Revenue Bonds .

STARBRIGHT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND - to account for
the purchase of the project site for the Toyota plant and finance other costs of the project site
including site preparation and a training facility as provided in the Project Starbright
Agreement. Financing is derived from the sale of “City of San Anotnio, Texas Starbright
Industrial Development Corporation Contract Revenue Bonds”.

PERMANENT FUNDS

SAN JOSE BURIAL PARK PERMANENT FUND - to account for operation of City's
burial park. Financing is provided by user fees.

CARVER CULTURAL CENTER ENDOWMENT FUND - to account for matching funds
held by the City of San Antonio and grant funds awarded by the National Endowment for the
Arts.

SAN ANTONIO HOUSING TRUST FUND - to account for funds utilized in programs
administered by the San Antonio Housing Trust Foundation. Financing is provided from
interest earned from investments that were designated from the sale of the Roger's Cable
System.

WILLIAM C. MORRIS ENDOWMENT FUND - to account for funds donated to the City of
San Antonio by the estate of William E. Morris for the purpose of developing and sustaining
the San Antonio Public Library’s programs for children.
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—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

Special Revenue Funds

Street Parks
Hotel Hotel Motel Maintenance Development Project Emergency Capital Nelson
Motel Tax Capital And And Stormwater Management Medical Improvements Wolff
Tax Improvement Alamodome Improvements Expansion Operations Office Services Reserve Stadium
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents § 3,588,844 § 68,667 § 636,858 $ 1,378,987 § 925,924 § 1,095,078 § 7,697 $ 290,135 § 458,995 § 53,703
Investments 5,468,939 344,899 4,625,801 23,321,173 17,769,475 1,727,303 3,209,504
Receivables 310,714 13,768 1,400 886 66,952,048
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles (76,473) (50,456,150)
Accrued Interest 20,104 6,740 4,759 9,869 42,313 33,378 6,482 41
Accrued Revenue 3,741,236 1,068,925 503,039 426,466 1,608,685 368,678
Prepaid Expenditures 8,581 4,297
Due from Other Funds 332,369 477,782 2,629,732 192,437 10,011 87,522
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 127,764 75,000
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles
Inventories of Materials and Supplies, at Cost 153,705 204,774 231,278 147,006 367,160 11,924
Deposits
Total Assets 13,548,019 1,489,231 1,363,198 7,279,347 26,994,142 20,846,945 7,697 18,894,804 3,674,981 521,868
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable 65,400
Accounts Payable - Other 3,229,855 560,610 877,856 150,718 1,055 257,322 1,884
Accrued Payroll 406,796 75,956 312,766 249,274 169 350,181 5,643
Accrued Leave Payable 118,473 20,386 102,866 46,003 785,572 1,480
Deferred Revenues 17,258 16,495,898
Due To:
Other Funds 1,585,662 220,267 3,138,862 21,650 413,951
Other Governmental Agencies
Total Liabilities 3,772,382 2,242,614 1,513,755 3,138,862 445,995 1,224 17,910,623 488,358
Fund Balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for Encumbrances 1,787,227 191,128 2,349,707 1,519,302 1,904,830 108 2,417,723 22,747
Reserved for Inventories 153,705 204,774 231,278 147,006 367,160 11,924
Reserved for Prepaid Expenditures 8,581 4,297
Unreserved:
Designated: Special Revenue Funds 4,010,488 3,017,501 49,164
Designated: Permanent Funds
Undesignated: Special Revenue Funds 3,815,636 1,489,231 (1,275,318) 167,106 22,335,978 18,299,950 6,473 612,616 1,257,258 (1,161)
Undesignated: Capital Projects Funds
Undesignated: Permanent Funds
Total Fund Balances 9,775,637 1,489,231 (879,416) 5,765,592 23,855,280 20,400,950 6,473 984,181 3,674,981 33,510

w

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances § 13,548,019 § 1489231 § 1,363,198 § 7,279,347 § 26,994,142 § 20,846,945 § 7,697 § 18,894,804 3,674,981 § 521,868




~——— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FU

Special Revenue Funds

Job Training Total
Public Neighborhood Nonmajor
Health Revitalization Categorical HUD 108 Community Special
Confiscated Support And Economic HOME Grant-In Loan Development Community Golf Revenue
Property Revenue Development Program Aid Program Program Services Course Funds

588,156 95,880 673,907 0 188,367 § 532,850 5,840,431 6,984,284 7,130 23,515,065
2,954,155 396,202 3,384,859 297,269 1,965,291 9,612,660 75,775,644
7,500 64,855 2,189,140 1,261 3,931 3,762,619 1,370,634 25,774 74,704,527
(30,000) (50,562,623)

6,241 1,505 7,589 22,587 163,057
765,431 8,482,460

4,100 60,950 77,928

159,000 22,446 61,781 17,837 3,990,917

1,125,053 31,399,780 147,267 127,265 33,002,129

1,115,847

3,556,052 762,942 3,314,193 31,909,123 2,502,072 9,603,050 18,995,591 178,006 170,264,951
219 66,154
3,867 380 139,237 2,660,945 1,036,282 1,602,509 187,817 10,718,765

1 47,879 6,438 685,043 94,337 121,074 80,710 2,436,267

11,961 45,557 21,068 1,155,602

2,189,140 3,741,606 200,000 127,265 22,771,167

65,493 979,378 29,391,026 15,986 6,355,478 385,472 42,573,225

25,234 2,051,680 4,965,875 7,042,789

4,087 125,713 3,314,193 32,762,248 2,051,680 9,854,086 8,324,618 802,332 86,763,969
75,564 265,075 269,000 1,855,530 56,155 12,714,096
1,115,847

4,100 60,950 77,928

707,975 1,124 5,600 7,844,027
2,768,426 366,930 3,956,355 (853,125) 450,392 (251,036) 8,748,893 (680,481) 61,749,084
3,551,965 637,229 4,225,355 (853,125) 450,392 (251,036) 10,670,973 (624,326) 83,500,982
3,556,052 762,942 4,225,355 3,314,193 § 31,909,123 § 2,502,072 9,603,050 18,995,591 178,006 170,264,951




— CITY OF SAN ANTONIQ, TEXAS —

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Capital Projects Funds

TIENTAL FUNDS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

Total
Parks Municipal Starbright Nonmajor Total Total
General Certificates Convention Development Drainage Industrial Capital Nonmajor Nonmajor
Obligation fmprovement of Center and Municipal Utility Development Projects Penmanent Govermmental
Bonds Projects Obligation Expansion Expansion Facilities System Corporation Funds Funds Funds
§ 23,179,698 & 4,193,082 § 13,496,484 & 4443836 § 114,560 % 623,176 & 5,659,782 § 6,137,764 § 57,848,382 § 590,208 § 81,953,655
89,883,700 6,100,613 62,275,049 22,320,237 575,407 32,592,887 213,747,893 12,745,106 302,268,643
1,016,616 19,683 1,036,299 65,818 75,806,644
(19,683) (19,683) (50,582,306)
215,27t 24,147 166,684 42,457 1,370 555 72,410 5,013 527,907 157,197 848,161
5,000,000 5,000,000 13,482,460
77,928
3,990,917
1,448,163 2,143,880 3,592,043 331,344 36,925,516
(331,344) (331,344)
1,115,847
261,359 261,359 261,359
115,743,448 17,461,722 75,938,217 27,067,889 691,337 623,731 38,325,079 6,142,777 281,994,200 13,558,329 465,817,480
66,154
5,979,093 10,647,986 1,514,162 3,109,866 364,241 50,403 21,665,751 17,623 32,402,139
7,539 2,443,806
10,598 1,166,200
2,295,694 69,495 2,365,189 65,818 25,202,174
203,459 4,848 142,800 4,276 70,916 426,339 42,999,564
7,042,789
8,478,286 10,722,329 1,656,962 3,114,142 435,157 50,403 24,457,279 101,578 111,322,826
43,055,394 37,163,906 11,614,039 8,214,141 994,572 11,404,769 112,446,821 557,892 125,718,809
1,115,847
77,928
7,844,027
2,600,676 2,600,676
61,749,084
64,209,768 (30,424,513) 62,667,216 13,739,606 (303,235) 623,731 26,485,153 6,092,374 145,090,100 145,090,100
10,298,183 10,258,183
107,265,162 6,739,393 74,281,255 23,953,747 691,337 623,731 37,889,922 6,092,374 257,536,921 13,456,751 354,494,654
§ 115,743,448 § 17,461,722 § 75938217 § 27,067,889 § 691,337  § 623,731 § 38325079 § 6,142,777 § 281,994,200 § 13,558,329 § 465,817,480
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Revenues
Taxes:
Property Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
Selective Sales and Use Taxes
Gross Receipis Business Taxes
Occupancy Taxes
Penatlties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovemmental
Revenues from Utilities
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneous
Interest
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments
In-Kind Contributions

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health Services
Environmental Protection and Control
Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Convention and Tourism
Urban Redevelopment and Housing
Economic Development and Opportunity
Capital Projects

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses}
Long-Term Debt Issued
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent
Amounts from Notes and Loans
Redemption of General Commercial Paper
Premium on Long-term Debt
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Tota} Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, October 1

Fund Balances. September 30

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENU

—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO. TEXAS —nr

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

nue Funds
Street Parks
Hotet Hotel Motel Mainterance Development Project Emergency Capital Nelson
Motel Tax Capital and and Stormwater Management ‘Medical Improvements Wolff
Tax Improvement Alamodome Lmprovements Expansion  __ Operations ___ Office Services Reserve Stadium
§ o 3 o 3 o 8 o 3 ¢ 3 0 3 0 3 o s o 3 0
13,891.025
36,043,702 10.299,017
54,042 15.650
187,608 1,202,045
7.082,448 5.088,595 1.185,390 26,788,359 11,230,479 594,195
578,521 257,412 146,592 925,041 31156 599,169 48,248
100.546 38,640 31.144 47.470 181,439 169,652 55 2 32,913 211
43,859.259 10,353,307 5,377.151 1,571.060 14,072,464 27,883,052 55 11.261,637 1,834.127 642,654
2,000
27,022,536 506.015 18,555,972
39,939,303
644,384
38,799,265 93,066 8,485,628 19.480
38,799.265 93.066 8.485.628 27.022.536 506.015 18,555.972 19,480 39,935,303 2,000 644,384
5,059,994 (3.108,477) (25.451,476) 13,566,449 9.327.080 (19.425) (28,677.666) 1,832,127 (1.730)
357,607 524,750 34,659,198 47,419 265,745 30,086,388 675,000
(7,593.076) (13.533.848) (25.982) (8.819.279) (12,369.356) (6,695.390) (244,435) (1.407,597) 2,030)
{7.235.469) (13.533.848) 498.808 25,839.919 {12.365.356) (6,647.971) 21,310 30,086,388 (732,597) (2,030)
{2,175.475) (3,273.607) (2.609,669) 388,443 1.197.093 2,679,109 1,885 1,408,722 1,099,530 (3,760)
11,951,112 4,762.838 1,730,253 5,377,149 22,658,187 17,721.841 4,588 {424,541) 2575451 37,270
3 9.775.637  § 1489231 % (879.416) & 5765592 § 23855280 § 20400950 § 6473 § 984,181 § 3674981 § 33,510




~—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIQ, TEXAS ——

COMBINING STAT:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 31

Special Revenue Funds

NT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL F

Job Training Totat
Public Neighborhood Nonuajor
Health Categorical HUD 108 Community Special
Confiscated Support And Economic HOME Grant-In Loan Development Community Golf International Revenue

Property Revenue Development Program [ Aid Program Program Services Course, Center Funds
k3 0 0 [ o 0 [ 4] 1.346,132 & 0 0 1,346,132
13,891,025
46,342,719
69,692
1,184,711 7,915,901 131,842,183 22,137.998 2.212.363 166,686,809
1,176.222 3,394.064 6,089.200 1,051,145 63,684,097
2,041.380 13,136 810,625 3,497.222 2,097,892 869,195 4,910,991 11.255 16,837,835
28,913 12,233 41,035 4,833 24,034 149,188 73 5,040 867,421
10.407,692 10,407,692
2,076,293 2,386,302 41,035 8,730.526 145.751,930 2,121,926 23,007,193 12,012,738 6,100,528 1,056,185 320.133.422
70 6,143,438 6,145,508
1,018,105 14,227,245 205,482 1,183.163 16.633,995
6,718,462 1,566,353 178,402 54,547,740
3,102,974 22,819,526 362,123 235223 66,459,149
30,179 30.17%
97,456,365 2,023,948 212,600 99,692,913
3,175,802 2,494,229 2,669,608 5.844,480 16,828,503
790,587 48,188,026
8,697,642 6,723,934 8.283, 23,704.80%
418,000 5,583,305 2,103.081 2,182,651 2,259.387 12,546,424
1,018,105 3,102,974 418.000 8,697.642 158,734,888 2,103,081 17,118,019 12,881,821 5,844,480 790,587 344.777.246
1,052,188 (716,672 (376,965) 32,884 (12.982.958) 18.845 5.88%.174 (869,083} 256.048 265,598 (24,643,824)
1,681,018 1,681.018
14,496,746 2,170,410 229,959 83,513,262
(80384 (164,500) {54.395) (1,853,975) (5,889,174) (3.657,668) (18,903) (3.654) (62,576.146)
(80,381) (164.500; (54.395) 12,642,771 (5,889,174) 193,760 211,056 (3,654) 22,618.134
971,807 (881.172) (431.360) 32,884 (340,187) 18,845 (675,323) 467,104 261,944 (2,025,690)
2,580,158 1,518,401 4,656.715 {32.884) (512,938) 431,547 (251,036) 11,346,296 (1.091,430) 325,192 85,526.672
3,551.965 637.229 4,225355 ¢ - 8 (853,125) 450,392 § (251,036) § 10,670,973 (624,326) § 587,136 83.500.982




- CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS ——

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2004
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Caupital Projects Funds
Totatl
Parks Municipal Starbright Nounmajor Total Total
General Certificates Convention Development Drainage Industrial Capital Nonmajor Nonmajor
Obligation Imprevement of Center and Utility Development Projects Permanent Governmental
Bonds Projects Obligation Expansion Expansion  __ Fac Corporation Funds Funds Funds
0 3§ [N 0 8 0 g [ 0 0 8 [ 03§ [N 1,346,132
13.891,025
46,342,719
69,692
4,827,298 7,162,652 344,569 12,334,519 179,021,328
96,590 63,780,687
236,332 5.483,587 6,823 1.916,091 7,642,833 201,819 24,682,487
1,084,979 175.801 845,052 92,020 12,582 4.567 388,833 37.709 2,641,543 305,254 3,814,218
495 495
10,407,692
6.148,609 12.822.040 1,196.444 92.020 12.582 4.567 388,833 1,953.800 22,618,895 604.158 343,356,475
6,145,508
16,633,995
54,547.740
66,459,149
30,179
99,692,913
440,688 17,269,191
48,188,026
199.491 23,904,300
12,546,424
32,009,254 §2.390.088 17,657.425 6,247,483 8,238,155 10,141 12,190,323 2.237.689 130,980,558 130,980,558
32.009,254 52,390.088 17.657.425 6,247,483 8,238.155 10.141 12,190,323 2.237.689 130,580,558 640,179 476,397,983
(25,860.645) {39,568,048) (16.460,981) (6.155,463) (8.225,573) (5,574 (11.801,490) (283.889) (108.361,663) (36.021) (133.041,508)
33.570,000 29,525.000 24,045.000 87,140.000 88,821,018
1,557,476 1,553,611 1,497.523 4,608.610 4,608,610
6,011,038 39,019,209 2,893,757 3,381,082 3,283,775 5.468,638 60,057,499 143,570,761
(10.139,735) (1.696,802) (31.104,943) (344.468) (278.291) (43,564.239) (42.303) (106,182.688)
30,998,779 37.322,407 2,867.425 28,579.137 3,283.775 5,190,347 108,241,870 (42.303) 130,817,701
5,138,134 (2.245.641) (13,593.556) 22,423,674 (4,941,798) (5.574) (6,611,143) (283.889) {119,793) (78.324) (2,223,807)
102.127,028 8.985,034 87,874.811 1,530,073 5,633.135 629,305 44,501,065 6,376,263 257,656,714 13,535,075 356,718,461
107265162 § 6.739.393  §  74.281.255 § 23953.747 § 691.337 % 623731 $ 37889922 § 6,092374 § 257536921 § § 13456751 § 354,494,654
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FUNDS

Public Library-Other Memorials and Gifts Pund
Brown Bag Days Fund
Carver Commaunity Contributio
Sau Antonio Branch Libraries G
San Antonio Library Found:
0 Frieuds of the Library Gift Fund

xar County Rabies Controt

The City’ it Yard Program Fund

Mearket Square Sun Antonio Cultural Program

San Antonio Downtown Citizens' Beantification Program
Child Abuse Prevention Prograny/Kidcare

Martin Luther King Celebration

Spesial Art Acquisition and Maintenance Pund

Martin Luther King Scholarships Memorial Fund

La Villita Memorials and Gifts

Alamo Foundation Inc. Gift

Elizabeth Evelyn Beike Gift to Oakwell Library

City of San Antonic Historic Preservation Fund

Dies Y Seis Celebration

Cellular on Patrol Trust Funds

Woodlawn Lake July 4 Celebration

Miscellancous Memorials and Gifts Fund

Merket Square Improvement Trust Fund

Mayor's Conference on Status of Women

San Antonio Literacy Trust Fund

Economic Initiative Fund

Sun Antonio Public Library-Hertzberg Ciscus Fund
Antonio Public Library-Alice Meore Fund
Knights of Pythias Cemetery Pund

Fire Prevention Week Trust Fund

Fire Ladder Truck Buy-In Project

Victim's Advocacy Trust Fund

Duyer Center Rental Incosme Trust

School Zone Flashing Beacons

State Paid Traffic Sij S
San Antenio Police Training Classes Fund
HIDTA Group Lessing Program

Comsmunity Action Program Projects Fund
Tree Preservation Mitigation Fund

Police Academy Memorial Plaza Construction

uipment Project
Alffordable Housing Trust Fund
City Holiday Giil Program
City Volunteer Corp Trust Fund
Sun Antonio Flood Relief Fund
TIF 3 City Commercial T Fund
Americans w/Disability Act Access Enhancement
Better Jobs Expendable Trust Fund
Zoo Conc n Arca Capital Repair Trust
ACED Settiement Education for City Employees Pund
ACCD Settlement Advanced Technology Center Fund
Prop 3 Habitat Mitigation Fund
Special Public Improvement Distriet Fund
Seminar Operatis d
Park's Recreation Athletic Fund
911 District Fund
Tax Clearance Accouut
San Antonio Health Facilitics Development Corporation
San Antonio Industrial Development Authority
Otto Kochler Park
Child Safety
Soil Remediation
Ofiicial City Store
Housing Asset Recovery Program
rement Financing
terprise Resource Managewment Project
on and Development Fund
FEquipment Acquisition Pund
TIF Unit Fund
Palice Training Academy - Firing Range

TOTAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMMUNITY SER® UND

CITY OF SAN ANTONIQ, TEXAS ——me

COMBINING SCHEDULE/BALANCE SHEET
4

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,

AS! S
RECETV ABLES
TESS:
CASH AND ALLOWANCE TOTAL
CASH FOR ACCRUED ACCRUED DUE FROM PREPAID ASSETS
EQUIVAL UNCOLLECTIBLES INTEREST REVENUE  OTHER FUNDS EXPENSES DEPOSITS 2004

H 2167 § 61,111 0 3 0 s 140§ 6 s 0 3 0 s 0 8 0 s 0 73,418
243 243
6,115 30,717 83 36,918
45,147 226,764 535 272,446
205,735 1,053,445 3,673 1,266,853
7438 37357 86 44,881
83,651 83,651

45,724 229,659 519 275,902
1,927 9,680 20 11,627

76 380 1 457
(1.979) (1,979)
(35,801) (35,801)
386 1939 4 2,329
(5.335) 2 (5,533)
4,387 4,387
(19,547) 20,000 453
9,637 48,405 109 58,151
482 2422 6 2,910
5,464 5,464
3,890 19,540 45 23,475
8,140 40,884 112 49,136
636 636
(322) (322)
2253 11,319 26 13,598
26,377 132,486 297 159,160
3,389 3,389
2,775 13,938 32 16,745
121,806 3,1 124,917
(15,933} (15.933)
73 368 i 442

505 2,535 5 3,045
2,982 14,576 33 17,991
215,548 1,082,639 2,451 1,300,638
1,151 5,783 i3 6,947
50,493 253,612 568 204,673
83,503 83,503
349,877 349,877

104,698 232,249 582 337,520
61,781 60,950 122,731

4,173 4,173
57279 287,695 387 345,361
196 986 3 1,185

148 2 2 892

931 931
14,761 74,140 168 89,069
(124

27

11,045 25 13,269

34,954 79 41,993

550 8 4,265

2,812,639 6,368 2,878,988

13.074

086,108 986,108

36,949 36,949

666 3,345 & 4,019
90,248 453,291 75,000 1,419 619,958
183 183
71,082 523379 1,244 595,705
138,019 138,019

1,152,821 1,152,821
18,465 225 18,690
8,594 623 9,217

50 130,447

255 1,324,959

149,680 (30,000) 339 363,133

161,331
(13,799)

723,446 1417 60,505 929,402

1,813,076 261 1,813,337
(180,274) 1,021,560 1472 155,729 998,487
1,329,787 1,329,787
4,784 4,784

S 6,984,284 § 9,612,660 1,370,631 § (30,000) & 22,587 8§ 765431 § 61,781 § 147267 & 60,950 § [ 0 18,955,591
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Public Library-Other Memorials and Gifts Fund
Brown Bag Days I

Carver Community Contribution Fund

San Antonio Branch Libraries Gift Fund

San Antonio Library Foundation Gift Fund

San Antonio Friends of the Library Gift Fund
Bexar County Rabies Control

The City's Front Yard Program Fund

Market Square San Antonio Cultural Program Fund
San Antonio Downtown Citizens' Beautification Program
Child Abuse Prevention Progran/Kidcare

Martin Luther King Celebration

Special Art Acquisition & Maintenance Fund
Martin Luther King Scholarship Memorial Fund
La Villita Memorials and Gifts

Alamo Foundation Inc. Gift

lizabeth Evelyn Beike Gift to Oakwell Library
ion for Children and Families

San Antonio Petroleum Bulk Terminal Operators
City of San Antonio Historic Preservation Fund
Dies Y Seis Celebration

Cellular on Patrol Trust Funds

Woodlawn Lake July 4 Celebration

Miscellaneous Memorials and Gifts Fund

Market Square Improvement Trust Fund

Mavyor's Conference on Status of Women

San Antonio Literacy Trust Fund

Work/Family Commission Contribution Fund
Economic Initiative Fund

San Antonio Public Library-Hertzberg Circus Fund
San Antonio Public Library-Alice Moore Fund
Knights of Pythias Cemetery Fund

Fire Prevention Week Trust Fund

Fire Ladder Truck Buy-In Project

Victim's Advocacy Trust Fund

Dwyer Center Rental Income Trust

HIDTA Group Lea
Community Action Program Projects Fund
Tree Preservation Mitigation Fund

Police Academy Memorial Plaza Construction
Forensic Mapping System

"C" Fire Technical Rescue Equipment Project
Aflordable Housing Trust Fund

City Holiday Gift Program

City Volunteer Corp Trust Fy
Antonio Flood Relief

xpendable
sion Area Capital Repair Trust
ACCD Settlement Education for City )
ACCD Settlement Advanced Technology Center Fund
Prop 3 Habitat Mitigation Fund

Special Public Improvement District Fund

Seminar Operating Fund

Park's Recreation Athletic Fund

911 District Fund

Tax Clearance Account

San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation
San Antonio Industrial Development Authority

Otto Kochler Park
Child Safety

Soil Remediation
Official City Store
Housing Asset Recovet
Tax Increment i
Enterpri X gement Project
Park Acquisition and Development Fund
Equipment Acquisition Fund

TIF Unit Fund

Police Training Academy - Firing Range

/ Program

TOTAL

——— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS ———

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE/BALANCE SHEET
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

TOTAL
LIABILITIES LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS ACCRUED AND FUND
VOUCHERS PAYABLE ACCRUED LEAVE TO TOTAL
PAYABLE OTHER PAYROLL PAYABLE OTHER FUNDS __ LIABILITIES
s s N s $ 0 s H 73418
0 243 243
196 196 36,719 36,915
0 272,446 272,446
542 4264 3,309 8,115 1258,738 1,266,853
0 44,881 44,881
4235 8412 78,983 91,630 (7,979) 83,651
0 275,902 275,902
2,738 2,738 8,889 11,627
0 457 457
0 (1,979) (1,979)
0 (35.801)
0 2,329
0 (5,533)
0 4,387
0 453
0 58,151
0 2,910
0 5,464
0 23475
0 49,136
0 636
0 (322)
0 13,598
40 10 159,120
0 3389
0 16,743
445 445 (445)
2211 12,943 16,903 134,051 166,108 (41,191)
0 (15,933)
0 442
0 3,045
788 788 17,203
0 1,300,638
0 6,947
274 5871 4,608 10,753 293,920
0 83,503
349,877 349,877
0 337,529
122,731 122,731
0 4173
0 345,361
0 1,185
0 892
0 931
0 89,069
0 (124)
0 27
0 13269
0 41.993
0
0 4,265
0 2,878,988
13,073 13,073 )
986,108
0 36,949
0 4019
98,480 98,480 521478
0 183
5 6,940 2412 9,357 586,348
3,850 885 138,019 142,754 (4,735)
814,187 338,634 1,152,821
0 18,690
0 9217
130,447 130,447
1,324,959 1324,959
200,000 200,000 163,133
13,113 5,706 1,040 73,642 93,501 67,830
301,107 54,931 356,038 (369,837)
0 929,402 929,402
4,790 67,669 9,226 3,383,679 3,465,364 (1,652,027) 1,813,337
0 998,487 998,487
350,894 350,894 978,893 1,329,787
264 9.403 1,174 222,668 233,509 09) 0
4,784 4,784
s 0 s 1,602,506 § 121,077 § 45,557 200,000 § 6355478 8,324,618 S 10,670,973 S 18,995,591
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——— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS ———

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

REVENUES EXPENDITURES
CHARGES
FOR CURRENT TOTAL GENERAL PUBLIC
SERVICES TAXES INTERGOV'TL MISCELLANEQUS INTEREST REVENUES GOVERNMENT SAFETY

Public Library-Other Memorials & Gifts Fund s 0 s 0 8 0 s 45252 § 813§ 46,065 $ (U 0
Brown Bag Days Fund 1 1

Carver Community Contribution Fund 140,577 690 141,267

San Antonio Branch Libraries Gift Fund 146,921 2,199 149,120

San Antonio Library Foundation Gift Fund 1,305,424 16,084 1,321,508

San Antonio Friends of the Library Gift Fund 32,556 396 32,952

Bexar County Rabies Control 224,991 224,991

The City's Front Yard Program Fund 88,684 2,510 91,194

Market Square San Antonio Cultural Program 8,013 108 8,121

San Antonio Downtown Citizens' Beautification Program 5 5

Child Abuse Prevention Program 127 15 142

Martin Luther King Celebration 5,000 5,000

Special Art Acquisition & Maintenance Fund 23 23

Martin Luther King Scholarships Memorial Fund 12,335 9 12,344

La Villita Memorials and Gifts 11 11

Alamo Foundation Inc. Gift 0

Elizabeth Evelyn Beike Testamentary Gift to Oakwell Library 567 567

Commission for Children and Families 617 47 664

San Antonio Petroleum Bulk Terminal Operators 14 14

City of San Antonio Historic Preservation Fund 242 242

Dies Y Seis Celebration 552 552

Cellular on Patrol Trust Fund 6 6

Woodlawn Lake July 4 Celebration 0

Miscellancous Memorials and Gifts Fund 131 131

Market Square Improvement Trust Fund 50,000 1,605 51,605

Mayor's Conference on Status of Women 0

San Antonio Literacy Trust Fund 163 163

‘Work/Family Commission Contribution Fund 5 5

Economic Initiative Fund 494,308 494,308

San Antonio Public Library-Hertzberg Circus Fund 0

San Antonio Public Library-Alice Moore Fund 5 5

Knights of Pythias Cemetery Fund 30 30

Fire Prevention Week Trust Fund 16,390 140 16,530 6,737
Fire Ladder Truck Buy-In Project 12,696 12,696

Victim's Advocacy Trust Fund 2,435 56 2,491

Dwyer Center Rental Income Trust 264,231 2,701 266,932

School Zone Flashing Beacons 0

State Paid Traffic Signals 183,302 183,302

San Antonio Police Training Program 56,444 162,870 2,845 222,159 154,871
HIDTA Group Leasing Office 823,312 823,312 823,384
Community Action Program Projects Fund 2,375 2,375

Tree Preservation Mitigation Fund 312,382 1,092 313,474

Police Academy Memorial Plaza Construction 12 12

Forensic Mapping System 10 10

"C" Fire Technical Rescue Equipment Project 0

Affordable Housing Trust Fund 870 870

City Holiday Gift Program 0

City Volunteer Corp Trust Fund 481 481

San Antonio Flood Relief Fund 130 130

TIF 3 City Commercial TIF Fund 414 414

San Antonio Symphony/Zoo Obligation Project 0

Americans w/Disability Act Access Enhancement 41 41

Better Jobs Expendable Trust Fund 32,981 32,981

Zoo Concession Area Capital Repair Trust 13,074 13,074

ACCD Settl, ducation for City Employees Fund 489,832 14,374 504,206 455,288

ACCD Settlement Advanced Technology Center Fund 0 62,043

Prop 3 Habitat Mitigation Fund 39 39

Special Public Improvement District Fund 1,348,925 43,692 7,534 1,400,151

Seminar Operating Fund 0

Park's Recreation Athletic Fund 437,271 7,001 444,272

911 District Fund 191,145 191,145 195,880
Tax Clearance Account 0

San Antonio Health Facilities Development Corporation 2,500 17 2,517

San Antonio Industrial Development Authority 57 57

Otto Kochler Park 163,103 181 163,284

Child Safety 1,370,532 363,351 1,266 1,735,149 106,459

Soil Remediation 35,000 1,708 36,708

Official City Store 242,831 155 242,986

Housing Asset Recovery Program 170 17 187

Tax Increment Financing 1,302,440 433,538 6,627 1,742,605 845,800

Enterprise Resource Management Project 21 21 2,627,260

Park Acquisition and Development Fund 823,017 5,473 828,490

Equipment Acquisition Fund 24,520 24,520 1,681,018

TIF Unit Fund 217,006 217,006 365,570

Police Training Academy - Firing Range 7,075 7,075 2,291

TOTAL $ 3,394,064 S 1,346,132 § 2,212,363 8 4,910,991  § 149,188 S 12,012,738  § 6,143,438  § 1,183,163
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——— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS ———

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

EXPENDITURES EXCESS
ECONOMIC (DEFICIENCY) OTHER
CULTURE DEVELOPMENT OF REVENUES FINANCING
PUBLIC HEALTH AND AND TOTAL OVER (UNDER) SOURCES FUND BALANCES
WORKS SERVICES WELFARE RECREATION OPPORTUNITY EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES (USES) 10-01-03 09-30-04
0 s [ 0 s 55082 $ 0 s 55082 S (9,017) ' § 0 82435 S 73,418
1 242 243
67,904 67,904 73.363 (45,672) 9,028 36,719
25,255 25,255 123,865 148,581 272,446
995,564 995,564 325,944 (603,506) 1,536,300 1,258,738
6,268 6,268 26,684 18,197 44,881
232,970 232,970 (7,979) (7,979)
29,723 29,723 61,471 214,431 275,902
15,436 15,436 (7,315) 16,204 8,889
5 452 457
2,176 2,176 (2,034) 55 (1,979)
33,062 33,062 (28,062) 15,000 (22,739) (35.801)
23 2,306 2,329
10,051 10,051 2,293 (7,826) (5.533)
11 4376 4,387
453 453
567 57,584 58,151
3,349 3,349 (2,685) 5,595 2,910
14 5,450 5,464
242 (1,800) 25,033 23475
16,123 16,123 (15,571) 15,000 49,707 49,136
1414 1414 (1,408) 2,044 636
(322) (322)
131 500 12,967 13,598
182,539 182,539 (130,934) 174,144 115,910 159,120
3,389 3,389
163 16,582 16,745
1,393 1,393 (1,388) 943 (445)
507,402 507,402 (13,094) (28,097) (41,191
(15,933) (15,933)
85 85 (80) 522 442
30 3,015 3,045
6,737 9,793 7.410 17,203
12,696 1,287,942 1,300,638
152 152 2,339 4,608 6,947
191,632 191,632 75,300 218,620 293,920
83,503 83,503
178,402 178,402 4,900 (4,900)
154,871 67,288 (9,560) 279,801 337,529
823,384 (72) 7
2,433 2,433 (58) 4,231 4173
10,267 10,267 303,207 42,154 345,361
12 1,173 1,185
10 882 892
931 931
870 88,199 89,069
(124) (124)
481 (454) 27
130 13,139 13,269
414 41,579 41,993
631,265 631,265 (631,265) 631,265
41 4,224 4,265
32,981 (500,000) 3,346,007 2,878,988
13,074 13,074 1 1
455,288 48,918 937,190 986,108
62,043 (62,043) 98,992 36,949
39 3,980 4,019
1,297,469 1,297,469 102,682 418,796 521,478
183 183
587,961 587,961 (143,689) (53,298) 783,335 586,348
195,880 (4,735) (4,735)
2,253 2253 264 18,426 18,690
1,037 1,037 (980) 10,197 9217
163,284 (163,284)
106,459 1,628,690 (1,628,690)
36,708 (12,710 139,135 163,133
413,814 413,814 (170,828) 158,860 79,798 67,830
39,665 39,665 (39,478) (330,359) (369,837)
845,800 896,805 (433,537) 466,134 929,402
2,627,260 (2,627.239) 970,030 5,182 (1,652,027)
828,490 169,997 998,487
1,681,018 (1,656,498) 1,681,018 954,373 978,893
365,570 (148,564) (84,945) (233,509)
2,291 4,784 4,784
178,402 S 235223 S 212,600 S 2,669,608 S 2,259,387 S 12,881,821 § (869.083) S 193,760 11,346,296  § 10,670,973
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—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
Carver Total
San Jose Cultural San Antonio William C. Nonmajor
Burial Center Housing Morris Permanent
Park Endowment Trust Endowment Funds
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 414360 $ 55,860 $ 86,329 §$ 33,659 $ 590,208
Investments 2,081,098 280,569 10,214,378 169,061 12,745,106
Receivables 65,818 65,818
Accrued Interest 4,814 635 151,416 332 157,197
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 331,344 331,344
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles (331,344) (331,344)
Total Assets 2,566,090 337,064 10,452,123 203,052 13,558,329
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Other 2,296 15,327 17,623
Accrued Payroll 7,539 7,539
Accrued Leave Payable 10,598 10,598
Deferred Revenues 65,818 65,818
Total Liabilities 86,251 15,327 101,578
Fund Balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for Encumbrances 1,699 556,193 557,892
Unreserved:
Designated 1,600,676 1,000,000 2,600,676
Undesignated 877,464 337,064 8,880,603 203,052 10,298,183
Total Fund Balances 2,479,839 337,064 10,436,796 203,052 13,456,751

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,566,000 $ 337,064 § 10452,123 § 203,052 § 13,558,329
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—— CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS —

COMBINING SCHEDULE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

Carver Total
San Jose Cultural San Antonio William C. Nonmajor
Burial Center Housing Morris Permanent
Park Endowment Trust Endowment Funds
Revenues
Charges for Services $ 96,590 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 9 96,590
Miscellaneous 201,819 201,819
Interest 25,984 3,396 274,641 1,233 305,254
Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments 495 495
Total Revenues 122,574 3,396 275,136 203,052 604,158
Expenditures
Current:
Culture and Recreation 440,688 440,688
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 199,491 199,491
Total Expenditures 440,688 199,491 640,179
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (318,114) 3,396 75,645 203,052 (36,021)
Operating Transfers Out (42,303) (42,303)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (42,303) (42,303)
Net Change in Fund Balances (318,114) (38,907) 75,645 203,052 (78,324)
Fund Balances, October 1 2,797,953 375,971 10,361,151 13,535,075

Fund Balances, September 30 $ 2,479,839 § 337,064 $§  10436,796 $ 203,052 § 13,456,751
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City of San Antonio
Texas

Internal Service Funds

SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS - to account for Self-Insurance Programs including funds
for the administration of all tort claims against the City and for the operation of the City’s
employee benefit programs. Included in the Self-Insurance Programs are the Insurance
Reserve Program, Employee Benefits Program, Workers’ Compensation Program,
Unemployment Compensation Program, Extended Sick Leave Program, and Employee
Wellness Program

OTHER INTERNAL SERVICES - to account for financing of goods or services (other than
data processing and programming) provided to other departments or agencies. This fund has
the following divisions.: Central Stores, Motor Pool, Automotive Repair, Temporary Services
and Building Maintenance and Repairs. Reserves for Equipment Renewal and Replacement
are recorded by charges to the user departments.

INFORMATION SERVICES - to account for financing of goods or services provided to
other departments or agencies in the field of data processing, programming, and
communication services.
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Other Accounts
Allowance for Uncollectibles
Accrued Interest
Accrued Revenue
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governmental Agencies
Allowance for Uncollectibles
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits
Total Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Computer Equipment
Buildings
Improvements Other than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Total Property, Plant and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property, Plant and Equipment

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Vouchers Payable

Accounts Payable-Other

Accrued Payroll

Accrued Leave Payable

Deferred Revenue

Accrued Interest

Due to Other Funds

Total Current Liabilities (Payable from

Current Assets)

Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets)

Lease Purchase

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued Leave Payable
Lease Purchase
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested In Capital Assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets
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